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FOUNDED IN 1986,

THE POLYTEC GROURP IS
A LEADING DEVELOPER
AND MANUFACTURER
OF HIGH-QUALITY
PLASTIC SOLUTIONS.

For 36 years now, the Austria-based company
with some 3,400 employees worldwide has
been offering its customers experience and
know-how, not only as a complete supplier

in the injection moulding field, but also as a
specialist for fibre-reinforced plastics, and a
producer of original accessories made from
plastic and special steel.

POLYTEC numbers globally renowned
automotive and commercial vehicle
manufacturers among its customers,
but is also increasingly supplying
other markets outside this sector.
The most important criteria in both
cases consist of innovative technol-
ogies, perfect quality and absolute
punctuality of delivery in combination
with competitive prices. In both the
automotive  and
areas, POLYTEC provides excellent
value-added depth in every segment.

non-automotive

This incorporates design and project
development, as well as the produc-
tion of tools and semis for fibre com-
pound materials, component simula-
tion and testing, and virtually all the
available plastics processing technol-
ogies. In addition, POLYTEC supplies
excellent performance in the shape
of downstream processes such as
painting, assembly and just-in-time or
just-in-sequence delivery.
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€ 556 MILLION l

SALES REVENUES (thereof 32.7% taxonomuy-eligible)

-45%

CO, EMISSIONS (compared to 2020)

POLYTEC



KEY FIGURES

Key figures from the consolidated income statement Unit 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Sales revenues EUR million 5559 5220 6271 636.4 676.4

thereof passenger cars & light commercial vehicles EUR million 390.2 328.7 388.8 387.9 4341

thereof commercial vehicles EUR million 924 1183 158.4 174.7 165.0

thereof smart plastic & industrial applications EUR million 73.3 75.0 79.9 73.8 773
EBITDA EUR million 44.8 483 68.4 67.1 823
EBITDA margin (EBITDA/sales revenues) % 8.1 9.3 10.9 10.5 122
EBIT EUR million 12.3 13.0 326 40.1 551
EBIT margin (EBIT/sales revenues) % 2.2 25 52 6.3 8.1
Earnings after tax EUR million 7.0 9.5 231 30.0 39.0
Earnings per share EUR 0.32 0.29 1.02 1.32 174
Balance sheet key figures Unit 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Balance sheet total EUR million 568.5 568.9 593.0 557.6 516.5
Equity ratio (equity/balance sheet total) % 420 41.3 40.5 427 421
Investments in fixed assets EUR million 36.0 14.2 458 42.6 38.4
Net working capital® EUR million 65.4 53.0 78.2 95.2 755
Net working capital/sales revenues % 11.8 101 125 15.0 1.2
Average capital employed” EUR million 330.7 348.8 3705 3418 2975
ROCE before tax (EBIT/average capital employed) % 3.7 3.7 8.7 11.7 18.5
Net debt (+)/assets ()" EUR million 79.6 66.0 108.8 101.8 78.7
Net debt (+)/assets (-)/EBITDA Years 1.78 1.37 1.59 1.52 0.96
Gearing (net debt (+)/assets (-)/equity) - 0.33 0.28 0.45 0.43 0.36
Consolidated cash flow key figures Unit 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Cash flow from operating activities EUR million 227 45.8 24.4 309 38.3
Cash flow from investing activities EUR million -25.2 121 -48.6 -39.4 -38.0
Cash flow from financing activities EUR million -18.1 -22.8 6.1 252 -22.7
Change in cash and cash equivalents EUR million -20.5 35.0 -18.1 16.7 -22.4
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents EUR million 69.7 90.4 55.6 73.6 56.9
Personnel key figures Unit 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Employees on annual average FTE? 3,585 3,939 4344 4,465 4527
Employees as of 31 December FTE 3,420 3,636 4,406 4,315 4,522
Sales revenues per employee EUR k 1551 1325 144.4 142.5 149.4

D The current and non-current interest-bearing components of contract assets were retroactively allocated to net assets and net debt
starting from 2019 and are consequently no longer included in net working capital and in capital employed.

2 FTE: full-time equivalents incl. leasing personnel



Non-financial key figures Unit 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Taxonomy-eligible turnover (economic activities) % 32.7 - - - -
Taxonomy-eligible capital expenditure (CapEx) % 30.7 - - - -
Taxonomy-eligible operating expenditure (OpEX) % 27.0 - - - -
CO, emissions (Scope 1+ Scope 2) tonnes 25,783 46,537 - - -
Energy use MWwh 189,015 195,303 238,382 240,970 252,980
Material use tonnes 74,689 70,420 79,708 80,801 86,383
Water use m? 96,300 - - - -
Waste volumes tonnes 8,424 8,690 8,778 9,291 9,831
POLYTEC share (ATOO0O0A00XX9) Unit 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Year-end closing price EUR 6.87 7.51 8.65 8.38 18.50
Highest closing price during the year (on 14 June 2021) EUR 12.56 8.93 10.64 21.00 22.38
Average closing price during the year EUR 9.43 592 8.89 13.29 16.46
Lowest closing price during the year EUR 6.65 3.21 8.05 8.38 10.40
(on 20 December 2021)
Market capitalisation at year-end EUR million 153.4 167.7 1931 1871 4131
Share turnover (daily average, double counting) Shares 86,439 68,925 47,768 93,591 83,317
Earnings per share EUR 0.32 0.29 1.02 1.32 1.74
Proposed dividend per share EUR 0.10 0.30 0.00 0.40 0.45
Dividend yield on the basis of the average closing price % 1.1 5.1 0.0 3.0 27
SALES REVENUES, EBIT MARGIN EBITDA, EBITDA MARGIN, EBIT EQUITY, EQUITY RATIO
636.4 627.1 522.0 555.9 67.1 68.4 483 44.8 238.0 2399 234.8 2389
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DIGITALISATION

BASIS FOR EFFICIENCY,
INNOVATIVE STRENGTH AND
CONTROL OF COMPLEXITY.
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STABLE IN

TURBULENT TIMES

After the highly successful organisa-
tional transformation of the POLYTEC
GROUP, we had hoped that 2021 would
be the time to reap the rewards of the
intensive work in the previous years.
The effects of corona appeared to be
under control and thanks to initiatives
such as ONE POLYTEC or POLYTEC
SOLUTION FORCE and a comprehen-
sive digitalisation campaign we were
in a good position to benefit from the
increasing demand for vehicles. Unfor-
tunately, supply shortages and price in-
creases for materials, especially micro-
chips, raw materials and energy, as well
as extremely volatile call-offs on the
part of our customers largely crushed
those hopes. Despite these challenges,
we once again succeeded in generat-
ing a clearly positive result. However,
the quality of the result neither lives up
to our aspirations nor meets the - justi-
fied - expectations of our shareholders.

Against this background, the coopera-
tion model of the automotive industry
and its suppliers will have to be recon-
sidered and placed on a new, more
partnership-based footing in the long
run. Because at present, we can only
partially pass on the massive burden
resulting from more expensive raw
materials and energy as well as the
costs for the constant provision of pro-
duction and logistics capacity to our
customers, while vehicle manufactur-
ers are free to alter their call-offs and
determine their pricing policy towards
the end user - and they are doing so
with great success. In the long run, how-
ever, only a model where both sides

fairly share the risk and the profit can
work - especially in times when sustain-
ability is the topic everyone talks about.
After all, sustainability does not end
with environmental and climate protec-
tion, but also includes social, economic
and ethical dimensions. It goes without
saying that we are committed to our
responsibility in this context. However
in the interest of a long-term, sustain-
able collaboration in the literal sense
of the word, we also have to hold our
suppliers and customers accountable.

In any case, we will actively contribute
to the dialogue - and at the same time
make every effort possible on our part
to increase both our business volume
and our results again. We have done
our homework on it in the past years.

Yours sincerely,
Markus Huemer
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The POLYTEC GROUP has repeatedly proven its
adaptability and resilience to crisis throughout its
history. Whether it was the economic turmoil caused
by the financial crisis in 2008 or the effects of the
diesel scandal in 2015 - POLYTEC always succeeded in
treating crises as an opportunity for transformation.
In keeping with this approach, the group is also using
the COVID-19 pandemic and all its side effects for
restructuring, streamlining and further development.
At the same time, the company is also benefitting

from steps it took earlier along the way.

Without a doubt, we are going through
a time of special challenges. Not only
has the automotive industry been
marked by a profound transformation
due to new, electric mobility concepts
over the last several years; COVID-19
has led to unexpected social and eco-
nomic upheavals and disruptions from
2020 onwards. Once again, the auto-
motive industry was particularly hard
hit by these changes, which also made
2020 an extremely difficult financial
year for POLYTEC. After a short pe-
riod of recovery in early 2021, rising
raw material and energy prices and
the global chip shortage burdened the
automotive industry again as the year
progressed. On top of all that, Febru-
ary 2022 saw the start of the war in
Ukraine, an important procurement
market for the automotive industry.
While the long-term consequences of
this war are difficult to predict at this
point, it has already caused major car

manufacturers to suspend production
in the short term. Due to all of these
factors, POLYTEC is faced with a par-
ticularly challenging situation as a sup-
plier caught between rising material
and production costs and highly vola-
tile volume call-offs by its automotive
customers.

I Focusing expertise

Nonetheless, POLYTEC focuses on the
opportunities that the mobility trans-
formation holds in store for the com-
pany. Even before the pandemic broke
out, the POLYTEC GROUP had imple-
mented a completely new strategic
approach: the POLYTEC SOLUTION
FORCE focuses the expertise of the
entire group and develops plastic solu-
tions for a variety of applications and
industries. The mechanism behind it is

driven by close collaboration between =»



=> Sales, Engineering and Project Man-

agement. The sales team uses its
market knowledge to develop product
ideas for different industries and fields
of application. And POLYTEC's engi-
neering experts combine the material,
technology and production compe-
tence of the entire group to implement
these ideas in practice. Read more
about the POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE,
which has completely overhauled the
group’s market approach since the be-
ginning of 2020, starting on page 28 of
this report. Thanks to this new concept,
POLYTEC now acts with much greater
agility than many a competitor in the
market and is expanding its activities
to industries aside from the automotive

\ 9%
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I Expanding the portfolio

This is also a long-term goal of the
POLYTEC GROUP: to gradually grow
its business in the non-automotive sec-
tor, with a 40-percent increase in sales
revenues in this segment by 2025. And
the group is also shifting its focus with-
in automotive sales revenues: POLYTEC
already supplies complex components
for electrically powered vehicles today
- and is working intensively to expand
its product portfolio for this category of
vehicles. Electromobility is also the seg-
ment where POLYTEC sees some of its
biggest growth potential. Because the
establishment of battery-powered ve-
hicles has long been beyond question.

industry. And while demand for products for ve-
hicles with combustion engines is slow-
ly declining in the Powertrain segment,
the group is continuously expanding
its portfolio for electric cars. Currently,
Pure
;c:mi:::tlon Automotive
228 not related to the
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not related to the 53%
powertrain
57%
? Hybrid drives
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POLYTEC is working intensively on the
development of high-voltage battery
housings, for example. These complex
components consisting of different
materials could supersede POLYTEC's
products for combustion engines in the
Powertrain segment in the long term.

I Adapting the organisation

Comprehensive structural and organi-
sational measures have been, and still
are, necessary to focus the expertise
of the entire group in the POLYTEC
SOLUTION FORCE. First and foremost,
the technological diversity, and there-
fore the complexity, of the processes
within the group must be made man-
ageable and controllable in the long
term. Hardly any other company ap-
plies such a wide variety of materi-

als and technologies as the POLYTEC =

Pure
combustion
engines

8%

Hybrid drives
19%

Purely

7%

Smart Plastics
\ 13%

The automotive segment accounts for a significant share of total sales
revenues of the POLYTEC GROUP. However, in the medium term the group
intends to diversify both within and outside this area.

electrical drives
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“THANKS TO OUR ENORMOUS
TECHNOLOGICAL DIVERSITY AND

THE ABILITY TO DEVELOP OPTIMAL
PRODUCT SOLUTIONS FOR OUR
CUSTOMERS FROM THIS COMPLEXITY,
WE HAVE COME OUT OF THE CRISIS
IN RELATIVELY GOOD SHAPE”

MARKUS HUEMER, CEO
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The enormous technological diversity of the POLYTEC GROUP offers a wide
range of opportunities for a market undergoing change. At the same time,
it confronts the company with massive organisational challenges, which it
meets with an array of measures.




“WE TAKE SUSTAIN-
ABILITY VERY SERIOUSLY
AND WILL DEFINE AND
IMPLEMENT AUTHENTIC
MEASURES FOR THE
POLYTEC GROUP AS

A CONTRIBUTION TO
CLIMATE PROTECTION.”

HEIKO GABBERT, COO

POLYTEC 2021 | COVER STORY

= GROUP: from injection moulding and

fibre-reinforced plastics to polyure-
thane processing and numerous tech-
nologies for the further processing of
the parts. In 2015, POLYTEC launched
an ambitious digitalisation programme
for the entire group to ensure that this
enormous diversity remains manage-
able and can be efficiently combined
for product innovations. All POLYTEC
locations and nearly all business areas
of the company - from engineering to
production and back office processes
- are standardised and easier to man-
age through digital applications by
massively enhancing data quality and
availability as well as by increasingly
automating processes unrelated to pro-
duction as such. In preparation for this
digitalisation offensive, the processes
within the company first had to be an-
alysed, optimised and standardised. As
a result, the POLYTEC GROUP is signifi-
cantly more efficient and agile today
than only a few years ago. Read more
about the current progress and proj-
ects of the POLYTEC's digitalisation
roadmap starting on page 22.

I Acting sustainably

It is not least thanks to this new agility
that the group also reported accept-
able results for 2021, a year marked
by instability and crisis. And agility will
continue to play a decisive role in the
success of the POLYTEC GROUP in the
years to come. Because in addition to
the current crisis and the long-term
mobility transformation, there are sev-
eral other challenges to face. Climate
protection, for example, to which the
POLYTEC GROUP aims to make a sig-
nificant contribution based on its am-
bitious goals. The formation of a team
specifically dedicated to environmental

protection and sustainability matters
under the responsibility of COO Heiko
Gabbert will put additional emphasis
on the importance of this topic within
the group.

When it comes to sustainability,
POLYTEC, whose core business consists
of processing plastic, of course has to
address the negative image of this ma-
terial. An image that is, however, only
partly justified. Because plastic has
considerable advantages over other
materials - even in terms of sustain-
ability: used responsibly, its applica-
tions are versatile and it is durable and
reusable. And of course (lightweight)
components made by POLYTEC have
contributed to making vehicles light-
er, more efficient and consequent-
ly more environmentally friendly for
many years. Nevertheless, POLYTEC
thinks ahead and scrutinises its pro-
duction processes, precursor materials
and supply chains with respect to en-
vironmental and climate compatibil-
ity. As of the 2022 financial year, the
classification system of the Taxonomy
Regulation of the European Union will
serve as a guideline in assessing mea-
surable sustainability targets. Howev-
er, the group already has measurable
successes to show for itself in terms of
sustainability. At its Central European
locations, for example, all electricity
comes from renewable energy sources;
it massively invests in energy efficiency
and installs recycling and photovoltaic
systems. In addition, POLYTEC defined
“Sustainability in the Product Portfo-
lio” as one of three central elements
in its engineering strategy in 2021.
Read more on this topic starting on
page 33, on current sustainability and
environmental protection initiatives on
page 54 and in the group management
report starting on page 100.



= Acting sustainably is not just driven

by internal motivation at POLYTEC.
External stakeholders such as investors
and customers, or policies - key word:
EU Taxonomy regulation - require a
corporate strategy that incorporates
the aspects of environmental and cli-
mate protection. POLYTEC is willing and
prepared to meet these requirements.

I Engaging in dialogue

In addition, there is another aspect of
sustainability, which is at least equally
important to the stakeholders of the
POLYTEC GROUP: namely the compa-
ny’s economic sustainability. Over the
past months, economic developments
forced POLYTEC into a situation that
increasingly limited its scope of ac-
tion. On the one hand, this was due to
rising raw material and energy costs.
On the other hand, the volumes called
off by customers were highly volatile,
making it substantially more difficult
to plan and manage capacities. In this
situation, POLYTEC fortunately benefits
from a relatively broad diversification

POLYTEC 2021 | COVER STORY

“TRANSFORMATION IS NOT

A ONE-WAY STREET. IN OUR
CURRENT WORLD WE HAVE TO
ASK OURSELVES THE FUNDA-
MENTAL QUESTION OF HOW
WE CAN ALSO MAKE BUSINESS
RELATIONSHIPS AS SUCH MORE
SUSTAINABLE.”

PETER BERNSCHER, CCO

in the automotive sector and therefore
from a good market position. The fact
that the group can only partially pass
on additional costs to customers in
this situation gives rise to the question
how business relationships between
customers and suppliers can be more
sustainably organised in the future.
POLYTEC strives to engage in an open
dialogue with its customers and suppli-
er in order to develop models that sup-
port innovative strength even in times
of crisis and safeguard jobs and busi-
ness locations.

10

I Thinking positively

Taking stock of the effects of the cur-
rent crises so far, and looking back on
the 2021 financial year, it becomes
clear that the POLYTEC GROUP was
able to maintain its course in choppy
waters. At the same time, it continued
to transform into a company that does
not think in technologies and industries,
but exclusively in solutions. And it is
making good progress on this path -
driven by the success factors that have
long taken root in the corporate culture
of the POLYTEC GROUP: engineering
expertise and innovative strength, tech-
nological leadership and efficiency,
initiative and customer proximity - and
not least the commitment to adapta-
tions in challenging times. W
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2027 A YEAR OF SEVERE HEADWINDS
AND BRIGHT SPOTS

A number of external factors have changed the economic environment of the POLYTEC GROUP over the past years -

and made it more difficult. The pandemic has additionally increased the uncertainties for the group since 2020, and
in 2021 the headwinds for automotive suppliers like POLYTEC became even stronger. However, the company has long
exceled in flexibility and readiness to continuously adapt to new framework conditions, and also uses this approach in

current environment.

INCREASING MATERIAL
PRICES

The prices for raw materials, precursor
products and energy rose by an aver-
age far above 30 percent in 2021, con-
fronting not only the POLYTEC GROUP
but the entire industry with enormous
challenges.

CHIP
SHORTAGE

Semiconductor supply shortages led
to upheavals in industry across the
world. The automotive industry was
particularly heavily affected. This led to
a drop in OEM production figures and
consequently to a decline in orders for
POLYTEC in this segment. Experts ex-
pect the difficulties in the semiconduc-
tor market to stabilise in the medium
term.

VOLATILE
CALL-OFFS

Since the beginning of the corona pan-
demic, large-volume customer orders
have often been called off or cancelled
at extremely short notice - with the
corresponding effects on the POLYTEC
GROUP’s capacity planning.

DECLINING
DEMAND

In the European automotive market
the sales figures for passenger cars in
2021 were more than a fifth below the
pre-crisis level of 2019. The sharp drop
in demand also posed a challenge for
POLYTEC, as some developments are
difficult to predict. The company re-
sponded to this situation with a flexible
production mode.

11

Despite massive additional costs,
POLYTEC recorded acceptable results
in the 2021 financial year. Following dif-
ficult negotiations, the group managed
to at least partly pass on obvious price
increases and the resulting additional
burdens to its customers. Considering
that some companies in the industry
posted record results in the past years,
POLYTEC is encouraging a discussion
process: how can savings be achieved
on the customer side, on the supplier
side and in internal processes? And
how could fair dealings along the entire
supply chain lead to economic sustain-
ability for all players?



POLYTEC 2021 | INTERVIEW WITH THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Markus Huemer (CEO), Heiko Gabbert (COO) and

Peter Bernscher (CCO) talk about constantly facing new
challenges and opportunities, successful organisational
transformation, broad technological diversity, systematic
innovation, active market development and fair collaboration.



Mr Huemer, how did the 2021
I financial year go overall for
POLYTEC? You had been quite
optimistic after the 2020 crisis
year. Are you satisfied with the
company’s performance?

Markus Huemer: Looking at it ob-
jectively, | cannot be satisfied with an
EBIT margin of 2.2 percent and ROCE
of 3.7 percent. However, considering
all the new challenges we had to face
again and again over the recent years,
we can be very proud of what our
team has achieved, especially under
these difficult circumstances. Without
the profound transformation of the
last few years - | am primarily thinking
about initiatives such as ONE POLYTEC
or the POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE, but
also our comprehensive digitalisation
offensive - it would have been impossi-
ble to cope with the upheavals of 2021
in the short term while at the same time
maintaining our forward orientation.
But of course it gnaws away at the sub-
stance when - year after year - every
time that things are looking up, the next
backlash follows.

What do the results for 2021 look
like against this background?

Markus Huemer: Sales revenues saw
a minimal increase to roughly EUR 556
million; EBIT, at EUR 12.3 million, was
slightly lower than last year and at
least clearly positive. Adjusted for the
deconsolidation result of EUR 17 million
included in 2020, this means a signif-

POLYTEC 2021 |

icant increase in operating earnings
power. We have to keep in mind that we
generated sales revenues of just under
EUR 680 million in 2017, meaning that
we had to cope with a substantial de-
cline, and that our product portfolio
changed significantly at the same time.
This required rapid adjustments of
structural costs as well as a number of
investments. It is an achievement that
we keep delivering positive results year
after year despite massive upheavals.

In all of this, it is not helpful that custom-
ers are imposing tight constraints on us
- because the capital commitment is
much too high in view of the possible
returns. Our capital employed amounts
to a considerable EUR 330 million on
average. That is not satisfactory in the
long run - either call-offs recover in
the short term, or terms and conditions
need to be discussed. Of course we are
happy that our core customers achieve
excellent results, but it would probably
be advantageous to consider a fairer
distribution.

What were the key external

I factors and main influences?
After all, the corona crisis and
the often-discussed chip short-
age confronted the automotive
industry with major challenges. In
addition, raw material and energy
prices keep increasing.

Markus Huemer: The challenges, how-
ever, did not start during the corona
crisis, but as early as 2018, when die-

INTERVIEW WITH THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

sel vehicles were banned in inner cities
in Germany, leading to a noticeable
change in consumers’ purchasing be-
haviour and consequently also our
business in the powertrain segment. At
the same time, this has been, and still is,
a good opportunity because it resulted
in quite exciting new requirements for
innovation and new products. In 2020,
corona hit, with the effects we all know.
Just when we thought we had a good
grip on them at the end of 2020, a
painful shortage of many raw and oth-
er materials followed in 2021. Micro-
chips are certainly the most prominent
example, but nearly all other important
raw materials and energy are also af-
fected - and all of this comes with mas-
sive costs increases. At the same time,
our customers were extremely volatile
in calling off their orders. In most cas-
es, high numbers were announced - on
which we based both material require-
ment planning and capacity planning
- and then reduced at the last minute,
in extreme cases even completely can-
celled. It is obvious that this caused
massive challenges in production plan-
ning. But even that seemed to have lev-
elled off to a certain extent in February
- until the Russian invasion in Ukraine
shocked the world. At this point, it is im-
possible to predict the effects of these
acts of war in the medium term, except
that the uncertainty will remain.

13



-> How do you react to reduced

I or highly volatile call-offs? Was
it necessary to make further
capacity adjustments?

Heiko Gabbert: Fortunately it was not
necessary to close down plants com-
pletely. Rather, we focused on working
as efficiently as possible at the existing
plants. In doing so, we had to deal with
tree central issues: adapting produc-
tion planning to volatile call-off pat-
terns, securing raw material supplies
at a reasonably acceptable price level
- and of course ongoing and intensive
coordination with our customers. We
even had to stop production tempo-
rarily and make short-term personnel
adjustments, in particular for leasing
personnel. At least we were able to use
the country-specific short-time work-
ing regulations. Let us keep in mind
here that we are talking about entire
weeks of customer plant shutdowns.

POLYTEC 2021 |

As a result, we also had to cut down
production shifts at our locations and
even to shut down entire plants. What
makes it even more difficult for us: our
customers can close entire plants, while
at our facilities only subsegments are
aoffected because normally we sup-
ply several customers from one plant.
Effective overall planning becomes de
facto impossible as a result. The situa-
tion is aggravated by an increased sick
leave rate of up to 20 percent due to
COVID-19. Luckily, our employees still
show understanding for the measures
taken, but their patience is being se-
verely tried. | think it is needless to say
that permanently starting up and shut-
ting down production involves consid-
erable expense.
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“WITHOUT THE
TRANSFORMATION OF
THE LAST FEW YEARS
IT WOULD HAVE BEEN
IMPOSSIBLE TO COPE
WITH THE UPHEAVALS
OF 2021 AND TO MAIN-
TAIN OUR FORWARD

ORIENTATION.”

MARKUS HUEMER, CEO

How did demand and the call-offs

I in the individual product lines and
market segments develop in this
environment?

Peter Bernscher: Due to the negative
influences already described, our sales
revenues from automotive parts fell
roughly 15 percent short of expecta-
tions in 2021. The Powertrain Solutions,
Painted Exterior and Underbody Solu-
tions Product Lines were particularly
affected. In contrast, sales revenues
fromm commercial vehicles and tooling
were on plan. A very positive count-
er-effect was a significant increase
in sales revenues in the Smart Plastic
Applications segment, exceeding our
budget by a good 40 percent. That
corroborates our strategy of stepping
up our activities in the non-automotive
segment.



You have already implied that
I business practices with the
automotive industry should be
reconsidered under the current
circumstances. Which direction
should this take?
Markus Huemer: It should become
possible to pass on actual costs to
the customer in an adequate way. As
plastic suppliers, we do not even have
a material price clause today as it is
common in other industries - and that
puts our profitability at risk. Our EBIT
margin and ROCE clearly prove that.
Because not only do we have to cope
with a decline in volume and the cost
of increased volatility, but at the same
time we additionally have to deal with
sharp increases in raw material and
energy costs. In view of the high level
of capital employed, this will not work
in the long term and does not fit the
picture when everyone always talks
about sustainability and ethics in busi-
ness. This is why our goal is a fair, via-
ble and sustainable distribution of costs
and earnings. Unfortunately, there is no
lobby for large parts of the supplier
industry.

Peter Bernscher: The situation is sim-
ply new and unfamiliar for everyone in-
volved: looking at raw material and en-
ergy prices, the development has been
largely linear and flat over many years
- and all of a sudden we see massive
upward outliers. The Ukraine crisis
will possibly even intensify this trend,
especially when it comes to energy.
| think a new mode of clarifying such
issues and of dealing with one anoth-
er will have to be found here. Because
the old business model simply doesn’t
fit anymore. By the way, this also ap-
plies internally, not just externally. This
is why we have merged the purchasing
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and sales departments and thus creat-
ed increased sensitivity, discipline and
power.

And what about consolidation

I within the industry - and conse-
quently acquisition opportunities?
In the past, times of crisis often
held some potential for POLYTEC ...

Markus Huemer: We are keeping an
eye on the situation as usual, but at the
moment there are no companies on
the market that would be strategical-
ly interesting for us and available for
a reasonable price. After the capacity
reduction in 2020, smaller acquisitions
in Europe also make little sense strate-

gically.

I How do you see the positioning of
the company despite all adverse
circumstances?

Markus Huemer: We have fundamen-
tally transformed POLYTEC over the
past years and made it fit for the future,
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and we are proud of that: in our market
approach, we started a customer- and
needs-based forward strategy with
the POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE. This
was based on making the complexity
inherent to our technological diversity
controllable as part of ONE POLYTEC
through a centrally managed organ-
isation, which, however, operates in a
decentralised way. This allows us to
fully utilise this competitive advantage.
Our comprehensive digitalisation ini-
tiative, which ensures that information
and data are available throughout the
group at any time and in high quality,
played an important role in this process
- because they are indispensable as a
basis for decision-making, especially in
the highly complex environment that
we find ourselves in today. Our team
has achieved an enormous amount
with these and other initiatives, as our
customers also agree. Unfortunately,
the circumstances currently do now al-
low us to reap the rewards of our hard
work. | can only express my respect
for our employees for implementing
all these changes so consistently de-

spite the adverse circumstances, and =




= for contributing to the further develop-

ment of our company day by day.

I You already mentioned that it is
too early to make projections at
this point - can the impact of the
events in Ukraine on the automo-
tive industry and your business
nevertheless be estimated in any
way?

Markus Huemer: We currently increas-
ingly see drops in call-offs, but it is diffi-
cult to say to what extent they are due
to general supply shortages among
our customers or to the acts of war.
However, the invasion of Ukraine has
immediately and significantly intensi-
fied the trend. This only refers to the
near future though. The impact of the
current situation on the purchasing be-
haviour of end consumers in the medi-
um to long term, and consequently on
the demand for motor vehicles, on the
raw material and energy markets, but
also on the logistics chains, especially
between Europe and Asia, remains to
be seen. In any case, we have demon-
strated over the past years that we can
react very flexibly to volatile call-offs.

I You have updated and revised
your mission statement. Has
anything changed in your
strategy?

Markus Huemer: Our strategy remains
unchanged - with the exception of
some further specification and minor
adaptations to the changed environ-
ment. The consolidation of our mar-
ket position, the development of new
technologies and applications and our
focus on customer benefits are still the
central goals. But it was important to
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us to present our positioning and our
identity more clearly and in more un-
derstandable terms, especially with
respect to our employees. In addition,
we wanted to summarise the changes
of the past years in a concise man-
ner. ldentity was a crucial topic for us
in this context because it is important
for employees to know, especially in
volatile times, who their employer is;
likewise, customers and suppliers need
to know what kind of partner they are
dealing with. In all of this, the focus on
the plastic industry remains unchanged
of course, but we also want to expand
our reach to other industries outside
the automotive industry.

You announced some time ago

I that the mandate of CFO Peter
Haidenek, which expires in 2022,
will not be extended. What is the
background of downsizing the
Board of Directors?

Markus Huemer: Since the contracts of
all Board members would have expired
at the end of 2022, we addressed this
topic early together with the Supervi-
sory Board in order to ensure stability
in the management, especially in these
currently difficult times. One of the re-
sults of these considerations was a
reduction of Board mandates because
in the current environment there is an
even greater need for rapid, close co-
ordination. In addition, it seemed to be
sensible in times of crisis to reassign
the financial responsibilities directly to
me as the CEO. The operating business
will therefore be in the hands of Peter
Bernscher and Heiko Gabbert in the
future. This not only means an even
stronger focus on process optimisation;
at the same time, we also restructured
both the purchasing-sales process and
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the area of sustainability. | myself will
be responsible for finance and all ser-
vice areas and will be supported by a
strong Vice President Finance. The pre-
requisite for this reorganisation was, of
course, the organisational optimisation
as well as the centralisation of the past
years.

Tell us about the development of

I the POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE,
which was introduced in 2020.
Has the new market development
model been well received by
customers?

Peter Bernscher: Where we have good
customer access and a well-coordinat-
ed team, we are really successful - |
clearly consider this proof of concept.
Now the challenge is to broaden the
base of success. On a positive note, we
now have access to even more sophis-
ticated parts thanks to our structural
competence. In areas such as New Mo-
bility (i.e. air taxis, e-sport cars, people
movers, cabin scooters, micromobility)
and Smart Plastic Applications (en-
ergy, logistics) we also see enormous
customer interest and the attractive
opportunity to develop new and un-
conventional solutions. However, sales
revenues in this segment of course
depend on the success of the new pro-
viders; in addition, we are dealing with
significantly longer realisation periods
here. Likewise, we have to prepare for
completely different business models
as well as different forms of acquisition
and collaboration with customers.
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“IN THE SMART
PLASTIC APPLICATIONS
SEGMENT, WE WERE

A GOOD 40 PERCENT
ABOVE BUDGET. THAT
CORROBORATES OUR
STRATEGY OF STEPPING
UP OUR ACTIVITIES IN
THE NON-AUTOMOTIVE

SEGMENT.”

PETER BERNSCHER, CCO

You have traditionally scored with

I technological diversity and innova-
tion, which also play a key role in
your strategy. What is happening
in this area at the moment?

Heiko Gabbert: Technological diver-
sity is, and will remain, a central suc-
cess factor for POLYTEC because on
this basis we can work on projects that
exceed the capabilities of most of our
competitors. Here we score through the
combination of different technologies,
further development of materials and
functional integration, and concentrate
on sustainable concepts to the best of
our ability. For example, we produce
underbody panels for electric vehicles
in which the battery module and the
underbody of the vehicle simply merge
- that saves parts and thus leads to
weight reduction. Implementing such
projects involves a great deal of proac-
tivity on our part and we also take risks

- provided that customer benefit and
marketability are given. This is some-
thing our customers really appreciate.

Peter Bernscher: We have now defined
three central engineering streams and
got them off the ground successfully.
They address the issues that are most
important in our view and also effec-
tive across the individual product lines:
the first stream, high-voltage battery
housings, is our response to power-
train electrification. The second stream
focuses on developing high-perfor-
mance materials and simulating their
characteristics. That is a central re-
quirement for the design of hybrid
structural components as we need a
360-degree overview of the materials’
performance. The third stream deals
with the sustainability of products, from
material selection and consumption to
production methods and recycling. All
of this needs to be considered already
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in the development and comprehen-
sively designed for the entire product
chain. Clearly defined roadmaps and
milestones are in place for all three
streams because we want to deliver the

results to the customer as fast as pos-
sible. Of course we also pursue various
small advance development projects in
addition to that.

I Which role does e-mobility play?

Peter Bernscher: A crucial one, be-
cause e-mobility is a strong trend - if
not a paradigm change - which holds
as much potential for us as the previ-
ously mentioned area of new mobility.
This is why we consider e-mobility a
great opportunity. Components direct-
ly linked to combustion engines only
account for about 20 percent of our
portfolio today - by 2025 their share

will drop to 7 to 8 percent and will be =



= replaced by other products. Incidental-

ly, electric vehicles contain many com-
ponents that are similar to convention-
al vehicles - allowing us to draw on our
deep expertise. Heat and cooling man-
agement, acoustic components and
underbodies are just a few important
examples. Another advantage: light-
weight design is especially important
for electric vehicles with respect to their
range. Here, we simply transfer proven
solutions to a new segment and apply
our technology and knowledge in a
useful way.

The same applies to new mobility. This
segment is also interesting because
lower speeds result in different re-
quirements for the components, which
of course offers the opportunity to in-
crease the total share of plastic. We
can manage the overall lower quan-
tities, coupled with partially increased
individualisation, very well with our
technologies.

What does the situation in the
non-automotive segment look
like?

Peter Bernscher: As mentioned before,
we have taken the right path by pro-
moting the Smart Plastic Applications
Product Line - because this segment
grew significantly even in the difficult
2021 financial year. We are focused
on two main topics in this area: energy
storage and power output on the one
hand and logistics on the other - both
areas with strong growth dynamics.
As decentralised energy production
and e-mobility are on the rise, we see
high demand for storage modules and
charging infrastructure - and we can
score with innovative plastic solutions
for both. The same is true for logistics:
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in an economy that increasingly fo-
cuses on individual solutions, flexibility
and customer proximity, it takes plen-
ty of new logistics solutions to deliver
products to the customer quickly and
efficiently. Plastic is also the material
of choice when it comes to lightweight
and reusable containers. But we are
also open to product ideas with eco-
nomic and innovative potential outside
these two segments. Overall, we expect
sales revenues to increase by up to
40 percent for Smart Plastic Applica-
tions over a cycle of five years.

How do you expect the market

I to develop in the coming years -
also against the backdrop of the
situation in Ukraine?

Peter Bernscher: Prior to the invasion
in Ukraine we saw an upward trend in
call-offs, which indicated continued sol-
id demand in the automotive market.
The situation also appeared to ease for
microchips. Based on this, we were very
confident to return to an acceptable
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sales level. This has again been put into

perspective with the crisis in Ukraine. In
addition, the uncertainty related to co-
rona continues. The bottom line is that
we will have to live with a higher level of
uncertainty for months or even years,
so there is not much point in making
projections.

The silver lining, despite everything, is
that the automotive industry’s order
books are full: order numbers are high-
er than they have been in many years,
both for cars and commercial vehicles.
Never before have we had such long
delivery times and such a high produc-
tion backlog of vehicles that have al-
ready been sold. This means that high
quantities can be expected as soon
as circumstances are somewhat more
stable.



Sustainability and ESG were

I embedded even more firmly
within POLYTEC last year, also in
organisational terms.

Markus Huemer: We have been work-
ing intensively on this topic for years,
and its significance is now also more
clearly reflected in terms of structure.
Since the main scope of control is the
deployment of personnel and resourc-
es in operations, we allocated these
responsibilities to Heiko Gabbert at the
board level. Of course this does not
mean that we view sustainability only
in terms of operations, but rather on
a much broader basis. The concept is
also firmly anchored in our engineering
strategy, for example.
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Which aspects are most important
in this context and what are your
goals?

Heiko Gabbert: The new positioning is
driven by three motives and concerns:
first of all, aspects such as CO, emis-
sions, material selection, processing
methods and recyclability are gaining
importance for our customers, who
therefore increasingly demand ap-
propriate measures, certificates and
ratings from us. Another important im-
petus is the EU Taxonomy Regulation
as part of the EU Green Deal, which
requires transparent and consistent re-
porting on different parameters from
us. As a member of the plastic industry,
we are familiar with such requirements
and can already prove around 30 per-
cent taxonomy eligibility in turnover,
CapEx and OpEx, but of course we will
take a very structured approach to this.
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And last, but not least, we have been
striving to reduce our CO, footprint for
years - as has been shown by a wide
range of energy-saving and recy-
cling measures. Our long-term goal is
CO,-neutral production, which we are
tackling based on realistic measures
and intermediate targets. Because we
want to actually bring sustainability to
life and not engage in greenwashing.

“OUR LONG-TERM

GOAL IS CO,-NEUTRAL

>

PRODUCTION, WHICH

WE ARE TACKLING

BASED ON REALISTIC
MEASURES. BECAUSE

WE WANT TO
ACTUALLY BRING
SUSTAINABILITY TO

LIFE AND NOT ENGAGE

IN GREENWASHING.”

HEIKO GABBERT, COO
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-> I Could you tell us about specific
sustainability projects? In Decem-
ber, for example, you concluded
the first green financing for the
machine park at the Ebensee

plant.

Heiko Gabbert: We also want our
electricity supply to be as green as
possible: photovoltaic systems have
been commissioned at our plants in
Horsching and Wolmirstedt, and an-
other five are currently in the planning
phase. Wherever possible, we also rely
on green electricity when we purchase
externally. In Western Europe we have
succeeded in doing so at all our plants.
In addition to the regenerative energy
sources, we also want to find new al-
ternatives and use additional decen-
tralised energy supply options.

With the green investment in Ebensee -
which apart from additional machinery
primarily concerned a new recycling
plant - we succeeded in completely
closing the material cycle. We can now
take back used, no-longer-functional

products from customers and reuse

nearly 100 percent. As a result, the lo-
cation in Ebensee combines two cen-
tral elements of sustainable business
operations: CO,-neutral production and
material recycling, for a product that is
not even an automotive product ...

Let’s take a brief look at your

I international plants - specifically
the new plant in South Africa and
the plant in China. For example,
what was the impact of the
economic slowdown in China?
And how is production in South
Africa, which was started in 2021,
progressing?

Heiko Gabbert: Our location in China
continues to develop positively;, we
recorded additional orders and ramp-
ups, even in the non-automotive seg-
ment. We are now also manufacturing
transport boxes as a new product at
this location, for the same customer
as in Ebensee, only slightly modified
for the Chinese market. Despite all the
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difficulties caused by corona - such as
comprehensive lockdowns - we were
always able to maintain operations
with our own employees. It would hard-
ly have been possible any other way
since using employees or experts from
Europe would have been impossible
due the quarantine regulations. In this
way, we also supported new ramp-ups
partially remotely.

In South Africa, we were pleased to see
a very smooth ramp-up of production
in mid-2021. However, due to signifi-
cant delays on the part of the customer
we have only generated relatively low
sales revenues there to date. Overall,
we lost about half a year, and the real
ramp-up is only just starting now. The
fact that the construction of this plant
went so well despite corona was a tre-
mendous achievement by our teams
in South Africa and Europe and of our
suppliers.

Were you able to continue your

I investment programme as
planned in 2021 and to catch up
on the investments postponed
in 2020? Which investments are
planned for the years to come?

Markus Huemer: Our investments to-
talled nearly EUR 36 million in 2021.
A central project was the new plant
in South Africa, whose construction
had already started at the end of
2019. Overall, we rough-
ly EUR 14 million in this new plant,
EUR 4 million of it in the last year. An-
other EUR 13 million was used for the

invested

project in Ebensee, which was funded
through “green financing” for the first
time. In addition, we invested in ma-
chinery, for which we were also able to
utilise funding programmes.



Heiko Gabbert: However, we will defi-
nitely invest less in the coming year
than in 2021. As a general rule, we
analyse investments very thoroughly
and limit ourselves to urgently neces-
sary projects; especially when it comes
to replacement investments, we are
rather cautious. There will be no plant
expansions in 2022.

What do your financing and

I capital resources look like? You
maintained your equity ratio at a
very high level ...

Markus Huemer: We even increased
the equity ratio by 0.7 percentage
points to 42.0 percent, which puts us at
a very solid level. In addition, we own
all of the most important properties
and equipment, so we feel well secured
overall. We also repaid EUR 24 million
of our promissory note loan in 2021,
followed by another EUR 21 million in
March 2022, which is quite a challenge
in the current environment. These re-
payments were refinanced using as-
set-based instruments. Now no further
tranches are due until November 2023.
Up until 2025, some EUR 80 million
from promissory note loans with dif-
ferent maturities remains outstanding
- we will clarify the refinancing of these
amounts in the course of this year.
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After a low in March 2020 due

I to corona, your share picked up
continuously until mid-2021, when
it reached more than EUR 12, but
the price has since dropped again.
Currently it stands below the level
of the beginning of 2020. How do
you interpret this development?

Markus Huemer: The performance of
our share reflects the current challeng-
es and risks of the automotive and au-
tomotive supply industries. We see the
positive development in the first half
of 2021 as a confirmation of our suc-
cessful transformation path. Converse-
ly, the downward trend of our share in
the second half of the year shows the
conflicting environment in which supply
industry is operating. If you believe in
the automotive industry - as suggest-
ed by the continued high demand for
vehicles -, you also have to believe in
POLYTEC because we are excellently
positioned to use the arising opportu-
nities. In any case, we do everything to
ensure through our solid business per-
formance that our share price returns
towards the carrying value, which is
significantly higher.

What about dividends - also in
view of the war in Ukraine?

Markus Huemer: Together with the
Supervisory Board we will recommend
a dividend of 10 cents per share for
2021 to the Annual General Meeting.
This way, we would like to share our
positive results with our shareholders
and at the same time adhere to our
dividend policy, which provides for a
payout in the range of 30 percent of
the annual profit.
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I In closing, what is your outlook for
2022 and the years to come?

Markus Huemer: At present, develop-
ments are impossible to predict be-
cause no qualified projections can be
made in view of the ongoing upheav-
als in the wake of corona and the war
in Ukraine. It goes without saying that
we will do everything in our power to
achieve solid results under the given
circumstances as we did last year. At
any rate, we will respond flexibly and
promptly to the ongoing changes in
our environment. In doing so, we will
coordinate closely with our customers
and suppliers in order to cope with the
current challenges together. ll
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In 2015 the POLYTEC GROUP launched ONE POLYTEC, a strategic
initiative to promote group-wide collaboration and put the group’s
enormous technological complexity to use for an improved

market development. A broad-based digitalisation offensive pro-
vides the technical and operational basis to achieve this. Nearly

all company processes are initially simplified and standardised;
subsequently digital solutions are used to enable central control of

these processes. In 2021, POLYTEC achieved important milestones
on its digitalisation roadmap.




Standardising work at 20 locations all
over the world while at the same time
managing and advancing an enor-
mous range of technologies and prod-
uct diversity and deriving new solutions
for a changing market - these are cur-
rently the main challenges the POLYTEC
GROUP is facing. To overcome these
challenges, the group is working on re-
shaping its system landscape.

I Technological diversity as a
competitive advantage

The background of this necessity is ex-
plained by a side effect of the growth
which the POLYTEC GROUP has expe-
rienced in the course of its company
history. Over the past decades, the
integration of plants focusing on dif-
ferent areas resulted in an enormous
range of technologies, which POLYTEC
aims to utilise for the development of
new application areas for its products
and of new market segments. Howev-
er, this diversity also entails a high level
of complexity, which must remain man-
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ageable and controllable. To this end,
the company implemented a central
organisation over the past years, which
ensures that teams can be coordinat-
ed and work together optimally across
locations.

New opportunities through
digital efficiency

One of the challenges of a central form
of organisation is to provide relevant
information rapidly and in reliable qual-
ity, allowing for a faster, more efficient
and more informed decision-making
process at all corporate levels. This
initially required the simplification and
standardisation of a number of pro-
cesses throughout the entire POLYTEC
GROUP, which can now gradually be
centrally controlled and coordinated
using smart software solutions.

This leads to three key advantages:
firstly, more efficient processes im-
prove overall efficiency, which is re-

flected in lower administrative and =»
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THE TEN
STREAMS ..

.. of POLYTEC's digitalisation roadmap
harmonise processes and standards
throughout the entire group and create
the basis for an agile and innovative
market development.

ERP  Enterprise Resource
Planning

MES  Manufacturing Execution
System

CAQ  Computer Aided Quality
Bl  Business Intelligence

ECM  Enterprise Content
Management

HR  Human Resources
COLLAB Collaboration

PLM  Product Lifecycle
Management

SECURITY  Cybersecurity/
Information Security

IT  Information Technology
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Three long-term goals have set the direction of the digitalisation roadmap

of the POLYTEC GROUP since 2016.

1. ENHANCED
INFORMATION QUALITY

Information is to be provided effi-
ciently and in a more user- and

assignment-oriented form.

2. HIGHER SPEED

Information of relevance is to be
made available in real time or at the
press of a button, in order to increase
the speed of reaction in the case of
deviations. This facilitates the rap-
id recognition of the need for action
and a prompt and correct response
without the need for a lengthy analyt-

ical phase.
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3. PROGRESSIVE
AUTOMATION

Standard tasks are also to be largely
automated even outside the value-
added process.



“DIGITALISATION

IS NOT AN END IN
ITSELF. IT SUPPORTS
US IN MANAGING THE
POLYTEC GROUP’S
HIGH TECHNOLOGI-
CAL COMPLEXITY ON A
SUSTAINED BASIS AND
OPENS THE WAY FOR
RAPID, WELL-FOUNDED
AND TRANSPARENT
DECISION-MAKING.”

MARKUS HUEMER, CEO
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=> production costs and consequently

increases competitiveness. Secondly,
“digital efficiency” facilitates the devel-
opment of innovative product solutions
beyond all boundaries of locations and
technologies. And thirdly, rapid and in-
formed decisions based on high speed
and quality of information are a deci-
sive competitive advantage, especially
in times of economic volatility.

Of course these three factors play a
very special role in a market environ-
ment that is currently undergoing a
profound transformation - a transfor-
mation POLYTEC intends to use to its
advantage: based on innovative power,
technological diversity and agility, the
company aims to increase its existing
market share and open up completely
new market segments with intelligent
plastic solutions.

In parallel with the ongoing digitalisa-
tion initiative, a new concept for market
development was introduced in early
2020: the POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE,
through which the POLYTEC GROUP
uses all of its expertise for the devel-
opment and realisation of new product
ideas. The digitalisation projects imple-
mented so far were also a prerequi-
site in this area. Read more about the
POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE starting on
page 28 of this report.

I Progress along a complex path

The implementation of digital applica-
tions to connect and control different
company segments and locations is a
highly complex task, which is organ-
ised in ten streams at POLYTEC. After
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COVID-19 had caused interruptions,
the digitalisation streams took some
major steps forward in the past finan-
cial year.

Even though POLYTEC has not yet
reached the end of its digitalisation
roadmap, the group is more digital
- and therefore also more agile and
flexible - today thanks to the measures
taken. Most importantly, it has already
strengthened its position in a transfor-
mative market in the long term.



MILESTONES

IN 2021

PROJECT
S4//MES

I S4//MES: cooperation optimised

As part of the S4//MES project, a team
of roughly 60 persons works on imple-
menting a system which is used to stan-
dardise processes at different locations
of the POLYTEC GROUP. In this way, an
employee in Lohne can take over the
monitoring and control of a process in
Wolmirstedt without any problem - and
vice versa. Short-term staff shortages
can thus be rapidly compensated for
and problems can be solved together.

But S4//MES also includes other fea-
tures: the display of real-time informa-
tion on consumption and the current
planning situation, better reporting
based on comprehensive data and
much more. Overall, the system is in-
tended to free up employees to focus
on more qualified tasks.

Finally, this stream also includes the
large-scale collection of process data
far beyond the usual level, enabling
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in-depth analyses, for example regard-
ing the correlation of different process
parameters. In technical terms, this not
least provides the basis for future ap-
plications of artificial intelligence.

In June 2022, S4//MES will go live
at the POLYTEC locations in Lohne,
Wolmirstedt and Thannhausen. It is al-
ready operating at the Ebensee plant,
and further locations will follow in the
coming years.

I Business Intelligence: productivity
at the touch of a button

The Business Intelligence stream is all
about transparency, data quality and
speed as well. Two software applica-
tions are used to increase the quality of
information relevant for decision-mak-
ing and its transmission speed with-
out any additional effort. As a result,
required action can be identified early
and taken swiftly where necessary. This
is possible thanks to automated reports
in real time and interactive dashboards
which enable employees to retrieve the
very latest information at any time.

All of this benefits several business
areas: employees in sales and purchas-
ing, for example, can generate reports
and analyses at the touch of a button.
Production employees receive oper-
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ational key indicators on productivity,
wastage or disruptions in real time, and
the management can have reports on
relevant key indicators generated with-
out any manual effort.

The project was launched in August
2021. Key modules are scheduled to
be rolled out gradually throughout the
group or individual pilot plants by the
summer of 2022.

l Collaboration: information
optimally shared

Collaboration is one of the most im-
portant streams in POLYTEC's digi-
talisation roadmap. It is the technical
foundation for the central organisation
based on the collaboration of working
teams across locations. The strength
of this concept was already unex-
pectedly demonstrated in 2020: the
standardised infrastructure enabled
POLYTEC to switch to working from
home within only one day throughout
the group. Its functionality is continu-
ously improved as required.



I HR: Uniform standards facilitate
processes

At the end of 2019, the HR teams of the
POLYTEC GROUP started a group-wide
project to standardise and improve
HR processes. The project has already
been implemented to a large extent in
Austria, Germany and the Netherlands.
Today, time management, travel ap-
plications, further training and many
other things are organised in a stan-
dardised manner and - most impor-
tantly - digitally.

To begin with, eight old systems had
to be replaced and all processes and
documents in the HR departments had
to be harmonised. Despite pandem-
ic-related obstacles, a large part of
the project was completed in late 2021
as planned. Now the standardised
HR systems will be developed further
and rolled out to the entire POLYTEC
GROUP in the long term.

I PEP project portal: more transpar-
ency in project management

In May 2021, a completely new digital
tool for Project Managers, Key Account
Managers, Product Line Administrators
and several other specialist areas of
the POLYTEC GROUP went live: the PEP
project portal is a platform on which
customer projects are processed from
acquisition to the transition to series
production. All project data can be re-
trieved by any project member inde-
pendent of time and location.

In the development of the system,
workflows, responsibilities, documents
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On the shop floor operational data is collected in real time through machine, hall and plant
dashboards and visualised on terminals.

and their archiving were standardised
and largely digitised. This created un-
paralleled transparency along the en-
tire process. Rather than using costly
specialised software, the PEP project
portal was technically implemented on
the basis of standard software. As a re-
sult, portal solutions can also be easily
and quickly implemented for other pro-
cesses in the future.

I Focus on roll-out capability

Overall, great importance was at-
tached to the roll-out capability of the
individual applications rather than fast
implementation of individual lighthouse
projects throughout the digitalisation
roadmap of the POLYTEC GROUP. A
close coordination process across the
entire group was required in advance to
achieve this. Teams across all technical
departments defined specific require-
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ments and the necessary standardisa-
tion measures for individual processes,
thus laying an excellent foundation for
the ongoing implementation over the
past years.

From a technical perspective, POLYTEC
aims to optimise through a minimal
number of highly flexible platforms. In
doing so, the company intends to re-
main largely independent of expensive
special software and use the high skill
level within the group for adaptations
of the systems employed.

Once again, the POLYTEC team has
shown outstanding performance and
commitment during the implementa-
tion of the digitalisation roadmap. W
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POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE

FROM VISION TO
PRODUCT SOLUTION

iiza

New mobility concepts have had a huge impact on the automotive
industry over the past years and initiated a profound change. The
POLYTEC GROUP responded to this change with a completely new
strategic approach: the POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE. The technology-
based Business Units gave way to six Product Lines for different
applications, which develop new product solutions proactively and,
above all, across technologies.
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It was coincidental that the outbreak of
the corona pandemic in Europe at the
beginning of 2020 took place exact-
ly at the time when POLYTEC not only
introduced a new strategic approach
with the POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE
(PSF), but also ushered in a paradigm
shift in the Group’s self-image. In the
past, customers usually awarded a
contract including a concrete techni-
cal solution for its implementation. The
POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE, however,
brings the ideas, innovations and solu-
tions of POLYTEC’s development teams
more strongly to the fore. Product solu-
tions made of plastic that potential cus-
tomers had often not even considered
before are created in close cooperation
with the Sales, Project Management
and Engineering departments. Based
on this sales strategy, POLYTEC not
only wants to grow in new product seg-
ments of the automotive industry, but
also expand its activities to completely
different industries.

Over the past two years, upheavals in
the global automotive market mas-
sively increased due to COVID-19,
supply bottlenecks, rising energy and
raw material prices and semiconduc-
tor shortages. This caused severe tur-
bulence in the entire industry. With the
PSF, POLYTEC is in comparatively good
shape because it is succeeding in po-
sitioning itself in a larger market with
products made of different materials
and for a variety of applications.

Three elements provide the basis for
this: the great innovative strength of
the POLYTEC GROUP, a strictly custom-
er-focused engineering approach and
not least the multi-faceted material the
group has been using for more than
35 years to mould ever more complex
products: plastic. This material, which
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PERFORMANCE
IN PLASTICS
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More than ever, the POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE combines
technologies and know-how from the entire POLYTEC GROUP for
the development of new product solutions made of plastic.

has significant advantages over met-
al and other basic materials - weight,
mouldability and functional integration
- will continue to play an equally im-
portant role in the world of tomorrow
as in the past, especially when it is sus-
tainably produced and processed.

Sustainable  production also  rep-
resents one of the core elements of
the POLYTEC GROUP’s engineering
strategy, which was developed in 2021.
Another element: the company aims to
remain a key player in its main prod-
uct segments in the future while at the
same time increasingly capturing new
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market potential. Based on this funda-
mental strategic orientation, POLYTEC
defined three streams in 2021, which
have since set the priorities in the engi-
neering sector: design of hybrid struc-
tural components, high-voltage battery
housings and sustainability in the prod-
uct portfolio.



ENGINEERING STREAM

POLYTEC 2021 |

DESIGN OF HYBRID
STRUCTURAL
COMPONENTS

Hybrid structural components are com-
posed of different materials and have
to withstand particularly high loads.
POLYTEC uses various combinations
of plastics in the production of such
components, allowing for metal parts
in vehicle structures to be replaced by
cost-effective and significantly lighter
plastic parts. Moreover, as there are
virtually no limits to the mouldability of
plastic, the often very limited assembly
space can be filled up completely and
different functions can be integrated
in one component. POLYTEC has long
made a name for itself as a pioneer in
the development of such modules for
the automotive industry. In the future,

the company’s expertise in designing
hybrid structural components will be

expanded and increasingly also used
for new applications.

I Efficient engineering through
comprehensive testing

In order to further expand its expertise
in the area of structural components,
POLYTEC is currently investing in its
testing infrastructure - for example in
a test stand where materials can be
analysed for their load-bearing capac-
ity. In this process, so-called material
cards are created, which in turn form
the basis for material simulations used
to develop new products efficiently and
economically.
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POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE

Light, stable and environmentally
friendly

One example of a successfully imple-
mented engineering project in the area
of structural components is the seat
cushion frame developed by POLYTEC
for the backseat of a car. The compo-
nent consists exclusively of glass mat
reinforced thermoplastics and replaces
a module originally made of wire frame
and EPP foam. This not only improves
the component’s stability and weight
properties, but also significantly in-
creases its recyclability.

The seat cushion frame designed by POLYTEC is one
of the most recent results of the engineering stream
for the design of hybrid structural components.

->
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The data generated in a simulation is substanti- In 2021, POLYTEC invested in a test stand which can examine the strength of
ated with a practical test on a drop tower. materials upon a high-speed pendulum impact.
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ENGINEERING STREAM

HIGH-VOLTAGE
BATTERY HOUSINGS

High voltage, generation of heat, electromag-
netic radiation and risk of fire: when it comes to
vehicles, batteries must be stored particularly

Battery-powered cars will dominate
motorised individual transport in the
medium term. This trend naturally has
an adverse effect on POLYTEC's exist-
ing product portfolio in the Powertrain
Solutions segment, which primarily
consists of modules for combustion
engines. At the same time, however, it
creates interesting potential regard-
ing new technological requirements of
electrically powered vehicles because
weight reduction plays at least an
equally important role here as for com-
bustion models. And that is by far not
everything: because the easy mould-
ability of plastic and its combinability
with other materials enable all-in-one
solutions which combine stability, fire
safety, heat insulation, crash safety
and electromagnetic radiation shield-

ing in one module. POLYTEC therefore

aims to supply all those parts of a bat-
tery module that can be produced in
plastic and can be optimised thanks to
its properties.

I Functional integration
in electric cars

The high-voltage battery housing de-
veloped by POLYTEC is one of the com-
pany’s most complex new develop-
ments. It is made up of five individual
modules, each of which consists of an
assembly of different parts and mate-
rials. Each module fulfils a special func-
tion - from electromagnetic radiation
shielding, cooling and ventilation to fire
and impact protection. In the material
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safely and well protected.

selection, POLYTEC primarily relies on
glass mat reinforced thermoplastics
and sheet moulding compound for this
product. They provide, among other
things, an ideal weight-to-strength ra-
tio. In the development of this concept,
a conscious effort was made to ensure
that the individual components of the
housing can be easily separated and
recycled at the end of its service life.

>
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ENGINEERING STREAM

POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE

SUSTAINABILITY IN THE
PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

Environmental and climate protection
are not only societal megatrends, but
also increasingly demanded by the cus-
tomers and other stakeholders of the
POLYTEC GROUP. This is not the only
reason why POLYTEC has implemented
measures to reduce the environmental
impact caused by production and the
operation of the company for many
years. POLYTEC will keep up these ef-
forts going forward and additionally
develop solutions to make its product
portfolio more sustainable - through
sustainable component design, the
right choice and quantity of materials,
processing of recycled raw materials or
by using sustainably sourced energy.
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The three engineering streams of
POLYTEC are accompanied by several
advance development projects, whose
starting points lie in the Product Lines
of the POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE and
for which development, production
and project management know-how
is sourced from all locations of the
POLYTEC GROUP. Without exception
the focus is on customer benefits. This
way, innovative ideas grow into mar-
ket-ready and, most importantly, sus-
tainable product solutions. M



POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE:
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INNOVATION AS A BASIS

Since early 2020, the POLYTEC GROUP no longer develops the market along technology-based Business Units,
but rather based on six technology-independent Product Lines, which focus on innovation and new ideas.

NEW
MOBILITY

Product solutions
for sustainable
mobility concepts

l

SMART PLASTIC
APPLICATIONS

Plastic innovations for
a variety of industries and
application areas

POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE

TRUCK, BUS &
AGRICULTURAL
APPLICATIONS

Exterior and aerodynamic parts
as well as structural components
for commercial vehicles

POLYTEC also provides its material and

manufacturing expertise for the de-

velopment of air taxis. This is an area
where component weight and stability

play a central role. At present, a proto-
type is being developed for a current
project with the ambitious start-up -
company FlyNow Aviation. The first air
taxis featuring structural components -
made by POLYTEC are scheduled to -
- wide range of applications. Specifically, -
POLYTEC manufactures the frames for

take off in 2024.

Organic flow batteries provide “green”
energy storage that is scalable as re-
quired and can make a significant
© contribution to the success of the en-
ergy revolution. They are character-
ised by eco-compatible materials and -
high flexibility. In cooperation with the -
German company CMBIu Energy AG,
POLYTEC is working on the production -
of these new battery systems for a :

- their membranes and electrodes.
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Since 2020, POLYTEC has been manu-
facturing a trailer bulkhead for Thermo
King, the world leader of transport tem-
perature control, at its Roosendaal site.
The innovative component accommo-
dates all relevant cooling and ventila-
tion units and at the same time ensures
appropriate insulation. Furthermore, it
is not only easier to assemble than the
predecessor model made of metal, but
also significantly lighter and cheaper.
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POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE

For further information on the POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE and other product
examples, please go to page 28 of this report or the website of the POLYTEC GROUP:
www.polytec-group.com/en/solution-force

PAINTED EXTERIOR >
SPECIAL SERIES

Add-on components for

exclusive car models

POLYTEC produces painted and fully
assembled car sets of the highest
optical, haptic and functional quality.
These consist, above all, of front, side
and rear components for a number
of well-known premium brands, which
play a key role in creating the exclusive
look of high-end vehicles.

POWERTRAIN
SOLUTIONS

Multifunctional
high-precision
powertrain components

POLYTEC produces the air compres-
sor housing for a fully electric SUV of
a German car manufacturer. It is an
acoustic insulation component that
protects the passenger compartment
from air compressor noise. This is
achieved by the sound-insulating and
sound-absorbing properties of the
module.

35

e

UNDERBODY
SOLUTIONS

Ultra-light and
aerodynamic underbody
modules

Often electric vehicles are offered with
a variety of optional battery sizes, but
are designed for the respective maxi-
mum battery size. If a smaller battery
is chosen, space is freed up and has
to be filled with a so-called torsional
stiffener. The torsional stiffener thus
takes on important structurally rele-
vant functions and provides stability
and safety, especially in case of an
accident.



POLYTEC
SOLUTIONS

SMART PLASTIC
APPLICATIONS

POWERTRAIN
SOLUTIONS
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POLYTEC SOLUTIONS

PRODUCT LINES

POLYTEC develops and produces complex plastic ADDED VALUE
HEEBEEY POLYTEC

solutions for its customers in a wide range of applications. SMART PLASTIC
The portfolio comprises six technology-independent j APPLICATIONS
Product Lines which POLYTEC operates based on

all-round service, innovative strength as well as FOIBATEE SRS 158 EUEHEES I
technology and manufacturing expertise along the

PERFORMANCE IN PLASTICS

realising new product ideas through- Based on an enormously broad tech-

out the entire creation process
- from the concept phase through

nology portfolio and extensive exper-
tise in lightweight design, POLYTEC
development to production and _ ) permanently increases the perfor-
logistics. The company “thinks in :)erufs::(:l‘ek?:é:zsglng containers mance of its products and conse-
plastics” and draws on its material quently continuously develops new
and technological expertise for application areas.

different industries and applications.

entire value chain.

FUNCTIONAL INTEGRATION

POLYTEC takes advantage of the vir-
tually unlimited freedom of design
of plastics in the development and

production of multifunctional compo-
A systems supplier

of exterior cabin parts,
aerodynamic packages and
battery modules for trucks
(symbolic representation)

Functional, structural and nents, which reduce the weight, com-
decoration elements
for the charging infrastructure

(symbolic representation)

plexity and costs of the end product.

COST EFFECTIVENESS AND
EFFICIENCY

Thanks to its high level of technologi-
cal independence, POLYTEC offers the
ideal solution for an efficient and eco-

NEW MOBILITY

POLYTEC sees itself as a partner in the
development of complete solutions
for leading-edge, sustainable mobility

concepts. POLYTEC offers companies in

] ) Roofs and side panels TRUCK BUS & process for projects of any type and
search of completely new lightweight for agricultural machinery ’ e

soltgions;nnova:v? <I::nd uncor;ventilor:)clxl (symbolic representation) AG RlCU LTU RAL
product ideas, the full range of available USER ORIENTATION
APPLICATIONS

POLYTEC uses its experience in plastics
POLYTEC is a recognised specialist in com- processing in order to develop opti-
mercial vehicle component manufacturing. mised solutions with significant bene-
Exterior and aerodynamic parts as well as fits for the product user, independent
structural components by POLYTEC are of specific customer requirements.
made of innovative material combinations.

nomical development and production

technology, secure production and
extensive experience in the design and
production of complex modules.

SUSTAINABILITY
With its lightweight design solutions,
POLYTEC makes a significant contribu-

This generally improves efficiency and
contributes to making vehicles lighter and
Lightweight components for new
mobility concepts such as
people movers and air taxis
(symbolic representations)

more eco-compatible.
tion to energy-efficient mobility, while

at the same time engaging in environ-

mentally friendly production and sus-
tainable business operations.
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Full Body Kits -
Specialising in smaller :
batches, POLYTEC :
applies a variety of *
technologies to produce
exterior parts that

meet very high stan-
dards regarding visual
appearance, haptics
and load capacity.

Spoilers & Wings
POLYTEC produces
aerodynamic compo-
nents in both large and -
small numbers, and :
as a full-line supplier :
provides everything
from development to
painting.

Ready-to-install, fully
assembled car bumper
systems

PAINTED
EXTERIOR >
SPECIAL SERIES

Whether it is accessories or series

production, POLYTEC is particularly
Multi-support
for electric cars

passionate about manufacturing exte-
rior parts for exclusive vehicles. In the
production of bumpers, decorative side
elements, and aerodynamic and styling
components, the company uses its
material and technological competence
to the full to achieve top-class results.

Individual spoilers
manufactured using different light-
weight construction technologies

made from PUR foam, which

tional support elements meeting
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Versatile applications :

Many solutions of this product -
line are platform-independent :
and can also be applied to *
vehicles with alternative power- *
trains: for example, components

have excellent noise and heat °
absorption properties, or func- :

the highest rigidity requirements
with minimum own weight. :

Lightweight
trunk wells

Weight reduction -

in the trunk :

Sophisticated combinations
of materials and technolo-
gies provide high mechanical :

strength and low weight in

trunk wells made by POLYTEC. :

Extremely light and
noise-absorbing
engine covers

POWERTRAIN
SOLUTIONS

Precision and integrative design
around the powertrain are crucial
since every inch of available space
must be used as efficiently as possible.
POLYTEC develops highly efficient
solutions for vehicle powertrains and
excels as a predevelopment partner
for alternative powertrains. In this
process, central functions are inte-
grated into a single component, thus
reducing material, noise, complexity
and costs.
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Underbody solutions
made of a smart material mix
featuring integrated functions

UNDERBODY
SOLUTIONS

With their aerodynamic design and lower
weight, POLYTEC underbody solutions help
to reduce fuel consumption and contribute
to an increased range of electric vehicles
and enhanced driving comfort. Additionally
required functional supports are integrated
directly into the underbody module during
production. This makes POLYTEC underbody
solutions not only more efficient, but mostly
also less expensive.

Car seat cushion frame:
easier to recycle as metal elements
are substituted by plastics

Hybrid strut

Functionally integrated
structural component behind
the dashboard

This way to the
POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE video

https://www.polytec-group.com/en/solution-force
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FOUR CONTINENTS

17 x IN EUROPE
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THE POLYTEC GROUP

e

The long-standing corporate success of the POLYTEC GROUP rests on
three strategic cornerstones whose fundamental orientation has remained
untouched during the most recent organisational reforms. Only in some
areas were targeted new priorities set and initiatives added. In 2022
POLYTEC updates its mission statement and redefines its positioning.
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NEW, UPDATED

MISSION
STATEMENT

As POLYTEC’s environment is under-
going continuous change, the group’s
strategy also has to be adapted,
focused and redefined continu-
ously. Going forward, the POLYTEC
GROUP’s mission statement will con-
sist of the sections “Corporate Aim~,
“Mission” and “Identity”. While the first
two parts have been phrased more
open to all industries thus reflecting
POLYTEC’s orientation more clearly,
the section “Identity” has been for-
mulated in greater detail. In addition
to POLYTEC's established corporate
values, it now also includes the group’s
self-image on topics such as sustain-
ability, employees, collaboration, cus-
tomer orientation and efficiency. This
way, the principles and philosophy of
the POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE, ONE
POLYTEC and POLYTEC PERFORMANCE
& EXCELLENCE SYSTEM - the central
excellence initiatives of the past years
- have been incorporated into this
fundamental document. Great impor-
tance is also attached to conveying
the revised version on a broad basis
within the company.
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CORPORATE AIM

We transform visions into plastic solutions.

MISSION

We create carefully conceived plastic solutions to provide sustainable
benefits for people while conserving valuable resources.

IDENTITY

POLYTEC is the specialist for innovative and complex plastic solutions.

1. Sustainability and a long-term focus define our way of thinking.
We take a proactive approach to our social and environmental
responsibility and make a positive contribution.
We are a listed company with the founder as a strong core shareholder.
Our actions are future-oriented and target-focused.

2. We give our employees the opportunity to develop.
We are passionate about creating. Our activities at POLYTEC create

added value - inherently and for the people.

3. In line with the POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE we focus our abilities
to find the optimal solution for our customers.
In doing so, every single employee is important.

4. We work together as ONE POLYTEC.
We think in the spirit of a common, cross-location enterprise.

5. In our daily work, we are guided by the principles of the
POLYTEC PERFORMANCE & EXCELLENCE SYSTEM.

We take action with courage, professionalism and pragmatism.
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MINOR
STRATEGY
ADAPTATION

The update of the mission statement also gave
rise to adaptations in some areas of the three
strategic cornerstones of the POLYTEC GROUP.
The main focus was on further clarification and
prioritisation regarding the sub-targets. The
segment strategies, initiatives and roadmaps
underlying the three strategic cornerstones are
now also adapted accordingly.
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CORNERSTONE 1

STRENGTHENING
THE MARKET
POSITION IN THE
PLASTICS INDUSTRY

» Comprehensive business understanding
ONE POLYTEC

* Permanent process optimisation
POLYTEC PERFORMANCE &
EXCELLENCE SYSTEM

* Good place to work

Based on a solid economic positioning,
POLYTEC focuses on close and long-term col-
laboration with its customers without any com-
promise on quality and on-time delivery. At
the same time, the group strengthens its com-
petitiveness based on a comprehensive busi-
ness understanding in line with ONE POLYTEC,
ongoing optimisation of all key processes as
part of the POLYTEC PERFORMANCE & EXCEL-
LENCE SYSTEM and becoming even more at-
tractive as an employer. In addition to organic
growth, it continuously reviews potential acqui-
sition opportunities.
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CORNERSTONE 2

DEVELOPING
NEW TECHNOLOGIES
AND APPLICATIONS

* Permanent innovation as a success factor
reduction of complexity, and functional
integration

» Sustainability
key element in all business activities

* Broad technological expertise and highest
manufacturing efficiency

POLYTEC considers permanent innovation a
central success factor and therefore promotes
openness and curiosity in its corporate culture.
Thanks to its broad technological expertise the
group guarantees its customers optimal prod-
uct solutions. The company always strives to
advance the scope of systems and modules.
The reduction of complexity and functional in-
tegration are equally crucial as the sustainable
orientation of all business activities. Additional-
ly, the company aims to continuously increase
effectiveness by advancing manufacturing
technologies.
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\ 4
+

CORNERSTONE 3

FOCUSING ON
CUSTOMER BENEFITS

* Maximum customer satisfaction
taking into account economic and
environmental framework conditions

* Pooling skills for optimum
product solutions
POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE

» Customer focus Europe
with selective international growth

Aiming for maximum customer satisfaction,
POLYTEC combines the expertise of the entire
group in the POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE to be
able to offer the best product solutions in eco-
nomic and ecological terms at all times. The aim
is to provide an optimal customer experience
based on integrating all business areas. While
focusing on customers in Europe, POLYTEC also
accompanies them in their growth in strategi-
cally interesting growth regions if required.
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EMPLOYEES -

THE DRIVING FORCE

-

Employees are the most important asset of a company. While this is not

a new insight, it gained additional importance for the POLYTEC GROUP in
the past year. Because in addition to a challenging market environment,

competition for the brightest minds is getting tougher. With a wide range
of personal development offers and an attractive working environment,
POLYTEC secures a solid position in a highly competitive job market.

ia
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“WITH OUR HR STRATEGY,

WE AIM TO COUNTER STAFF
TURNOVER AND SKILLED
LABOUR SHORTAGES, AND
INCREASE EMPLOYEE COMPE-
TENCE, EMPLOYEE RETENTION

The POLYTEC GROUP employs roughly
3,400 people worldwide. The strong
cohesion within the group’s workforce
was especially demonstrated in the last
two years, which were marked by the
corona pandemic. POLYTEC now reaps
the rewards of the seeds it sowed many
years ago: appreciation of individual
commitment, diverse opportunities for
personal and professional develop-
ment and an exciting working environ-
ment in a high-tech setting.

However, to retain existing employees
and attract new qualified personnel, it
is not enough to invoke the past. That
is why in 2021 the POLYTEC GROUP
defined a roadmap for its personnel
development with very specific targets
up until 2030. The aim is to reduce em-
ployee turnover and skills shortages,
while increasing employee skills, em-
ployee retention and productivity. Ex-
panding the training offered within the
group is a key element in this effort.
The POLYTEC Academy is responsible
for addressing these issues through its
diverse range of training programmes.
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AND PRODUCTIVITY.”

MARKUS HUEMER, CEO

Another parameter for implementing
this roadmap is a distinct, likable and
self-confident image in the labour
market. With its new employer brand-
ing concept, the POLYTEC GROUP gives
centre stage to its employees. As tes-
timonials, they increase the visibility
of POLYTEC's strengths for interested
candidates. And finally, the group is
freshening up its internal communi-
cation with a new design of POLYTEC
Insights, its popular and informative

employee magazine.



EMPLOYER BRANDING

MORE
than right
at PoLyTed

In the past two years POLYTEC imple-
mented an employer branding project
to strengthen employee retention in the
company and win potential applicants.
In a bottom-up process, the Human
Resources and Communications de-
partments derived six so-called MORE
messages from the results of an em-
ployee survey. These USPs describe, in
a catchy way, the key advantages that
POLYTEC holds in store for its employ-
ees.

The project also relies on testimonials:
portraits of employees on the group’s
website and social media channels give
POLYTEC's image in the labour market
a personal and individual touch - every
single one plays a part in the success of
the POLYTEC GROUP. At the same time,
the company offers its employees in-
teresting jobs with a variety of options
for personal development.

POLYTEC 2021 |

THE SIX MORE MESSAGES
OF THE POLYTEC GROUP
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MORE
than moulding plastics.
SHAPING TOMORROW.

We are a technologically independent devel-
oper and manufacturer of complex plastic
solutions. Thanks to our expertise and great
technological diversity, we help shape the
future with high-quality solutions.

O\n,o

MORE

than diversity.
TEAM SPIRIT.

We pull together because we are a TEAM:
Together Each Achieves More. Different
approaches lead to new ideas and better
results.
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MORE
than precision.
EMOTION.

Because precision alone is not enough
for us, we put our heart and soul into
our work. True to our motto

PASSION CREATES INNOVATION.

QO

MORE
than job training.
A PROFESSIONAL FAMILY.

We accompany young people on their
educational journey. We consider it an
honour to support the younger generation
on their way to adulthood and are happy
to take on this responsibility.
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EMPLOYEES

*
_\I

than a job holder.
A CO-CREATOR.

We offer thinkers and doers the
freedom to contribute their ideas - this
allows us to evolve continuously.

\

MORE

than four continents.
AN OCCUPATIONAL HOME.

As an international company with
locations on four continents, we offer
some 3,400 people a professional home.



POLYTEC ACADEMY
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(PROFESSIONAL)
LIFE-LONG LEARNING

Over the past years, a powerful train-
ing programme has been established:
the POLYTEC Academy, which cov-
ers training and further education at
all levels of the POLYTEC GROUP. The
programme pursues three central ob-
jectives:  strengthening qualification
and competence, addressing skills
shortages and retaining employees in
the company in the long term. In close
cooperation between the managers,
the Human Resources department and
the Board of Directors, the POLYTEC
GROUP  developed targeted and
needs-based training offers to achieve
these goals. External educational insti-
tutions such as the Linz-based LIMAK

Austrian Business School are involved

in the concept and execution of select-
ed training programmes.

Most POLYTEC Academy training pro-
grammes take place in the company
itself. They cover contents on a variety
of topics - from leadership and expert
know-how to talent management. In
2021, ten training programmes for a
total of 140 employees from different
areas and levels of the group were or-
ganised within the POLYTEC Academy.
And even during the corona-related
lockdowns, training programmes con-
tinued without interruption since most
contents could also be presented on
the digital platforms that POLYTEC oth-
erwise uses for knowledge and data

Learning and networking were at the centre of the “Networking and Communication” training
programme for Lead Engineers and Lead Project Managers again in 2021.
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transfer within the group. Here, the
enormous power emanating from the
POLYTEC GROUP’s digitalisation cam-
paign provided an unexpected synergy.

There is also another link between
digitalisation and further training and
education: an increasing number of
employees of the POLYTEC GROUP
are faced with digital solutions in their
everyday work, which serve to keep
the complexity of day-to-day busi-
ness manageable. At the same time,
employing digital solutions also brings
new challenges because the benefits
of digitalisation can only be fully cap-
tured through efficient use. This is why
POLYTEC employees are specifically
trained in applying the respective tools.
Some software solutions even offer tu-
torials guiding users through the neces-
sary functions click by click.

In further training and education itself,
digital solutions improve the acces-
sibility of available courses because
access thresholds are lower and allow
users greater flexibility in timing the
courses. Learning@POLYTEC provides
structured digital training content, thus
ensuring that every training course can
be attended using a minimum of re-
sources.

Nevertheless, Learning@POLYTEC still
centres on personal interaction be-
tween people. The POLYTEC Leader-
ship Academy, for example, a pro-
gramme established in 2015, on the



one hand focuses on conveying lead-
ership skills; on the other hand, it aims
to enable targeted networking of man-
agers within the POLYTEC GROUP. This
strengthens the team spirit and pro-
motes the willingness to engage in an
open exchange of experiences going
beyond the training programme. In the
spirit of ONE POLYTEC, the Leadership
Academy thus empowers collaboration
across the group and makes a signifi-
cant contribution to the success of the
POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE.

Another important role of the POLYTEC
GROUP’s success is a programme
which was launched in 2019 and pri-
marily addresses high potentials. The
POLYPERSPECTIVE PROGRAMME (P3)
is part of POLYTEC's talent manage-
ment and offers young employees
comprehensive training in  general
management. Many P3 graduates
took on management responsibilities
soon after and make significant con-
tributions to the transformation of the
POLYTEC GROUP today. The appli-
cants’ enthusiasm for the second round
of P3, which started in early 2022, was
also inspiring.

With its diverse further training and
education offer, the POLYTEC GROUP
is getting fit for the future - not just for
its market. It is also a strong expression
of the group’s appreciation for its most
important resource: its employees. W
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MAGAZINE
FOR EMPLOYEES

POLYTEC INSIGHTS

In 2003, POLYTEC launched its first regularly published com-
pany magazine, POLYTEC WORLD. In 2021, the magazine was
revamped based on target groups: customer communication
was moved to the POLYTEC WORLD blog on the Internet, while
employee topics are addressed in the new print magazine
POLYTEC Insights. Under the subtitle of ONE POLYTEC. ONE
MAGAZINE.,, it comes in a fresh and appealing design and fea-
tures a colourful variety of reports, interviews and case studies
from different company segments. But most importantly it puts
a clear focus on employees. The sections of the magazine re-
flect the six MORE messages of the POLYTEC GROUP’s employ-
er branding campaign and deliver on these MORE messages
with catchy examples. POLYTEC Insights is published twice a
year in German and English, with a run of roughly 4,000 copies.

ERFcurTe

Since 2021, customers and other interested parties can find
current information on the POLYTEC WORLD Blog:
https://www.polytec-group.com/en/about-polytec/blog
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SUSTAINABILITY AT POLYTEC

RAVAIN(E

RESPONSIBILITY

Plastics processing involves con-
siderable resource input. For this
reason alone, using resources
and energy as carefully as possi-
ble has always been a corporate
principle at POLYTEC. But also for
other reasons, POLYTEC attaches
great importance to sustainabil-
ity across the entire company in
order to maintain a world worth
living in for future generations.
To live up to this ecologically and
economically ambitious aspira-
tion, the group is pursuing three
strategic initiatives: resource
conservation, enhanced energy
efficiency and reduced environ-
mental emissions.

SUSTAINABILITY

RESOURCE
CONSERVATION

Resource conservation is an essential principle in all pro-
duction processes at POLYTEC. In injection moulding, for ex-
ample, the company increasingly focuses on the process-
ing of regranulate and the use of modern high-precision
dosing systems. In addition, process-related sprue is milled
directly at the machine wherever possible and returned
to the process. Several locations operate central facilities
where scrap from production is recycled and the material
obtained is reused. This not only cuts down on raw material
consumption, but also shortens transport routes and there-
fore reduces CO, emissions. POLYTEC has received public
recognition for the successful implementation of efficient
production processes, for example in the form of different
grants. Most recently, the location in Roosendaal was in-
cluded in the OPZuid regional development programme
because of its recycling facility. This initiative of the Europe-
an Union funds projects which contribute to reducing raw
material consumption.
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ENHANCED
ENERGY
EFFICIENCY

POLYTEC continuously invests in upgrading its plants in
order to enhance energy efficiency. The measures include
thermal optimisation of pipelines, machinery and build-
ings, the acquisition of modern, high-performance boilers,
comprehensive conversion to LED lighting, the implemen-
tation of energy management systems that identify the
main consumers and savings potential, and much more.
Internal energy cycles have also played a significant role
in the reduction of the POLYTEC GROUP’s relative energy
consumption over the past years. At the locations in Lohne,
Gochsheim, Wolmirstedt and Hoérsching, for example, high-
ly efficient heat recovery systems are in operation which
enable the use of waste heat from processing plants for
other areas such as building heating.
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SUSTAINABILITY

REDUCED
ENVIRONMENTAL
EMISSIONS

One of POLYTEC's measures to reduce its emissions is
switching to 100 percent renewable sources for its elec-
tricity supply. In addition, a uniform, easy-to-remember
colour coding system supports correct waste separation.
This way, unavoidable waste can be usefully recycled, while
residual waste and its disposal costs are reduced at the
same time. Another important aspect is the preferred use
of water-based paint and the resulting considerable reduc-
tion of solvent consumption and environmental emissions.
Along with these internal measures, POLYTEC has an even
more effective lever: products made by POLYTEC make ve-
hicles lighter and therefore contribute to making mobility
ever more efficient and environmentally friendly.
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SUSTAINABILITY INITIATIVE AT POLYTEC

SUSTAINABLE,
FORWARD-LOOKING,

STABLE

sustainabili
@POLYTEC

Forward-looking, environmentally conscious and prudent actions along its
entire value chain determine the operations of the POLYTEC GROUP every day,
at every single location of the group. Starting in the second quarter of 2022, a
dedicated team under the responsibility of COO Heiko Gabbert will be dealing
with all matters concerning sustainability - this way, POLYTEC will give new

momentum to this topic.

“SUSTAINABILITY

DOES NOT END WITH
ENVIRONMENTAL AND
CLIMATE PROTECTION,
BUT ALSO INCLUDES
SOCIAL, ECONOMIC AND
ETHICAL DIMENSIONS.”

MARKUS HUEMER, CEO

POLYTEC once again stepped up its
efforts regarding environmental and
climate protection in 2021. As part of
a large-scale sustainability initiative,
preparations began for the construc-
tion of a recycling plant in Ebensee.
The installation of photovoltaic sys-
tems at the locations in Hoérsching
and Wolmirstedt was completed, and
further regenerative energy recovery
systems are already being planned.

I Resource conservation
at all levels

In 2021, POLYTEC expanded its ener-
gy management system, allowing it
to better measure, and subsequently
optimise, its own consumption. Con-
sumption and measurement were also
important focal points in the areas of
material and waste. Based on exter-
nal and internal audits, specific targets
were defined in all areas and the corre-
sponding measures were implemented
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or initiated. The company’s employees
were actively involved in this process.

I Employee satisfaction increases
efficiency

The latter also applies to initiatives
which POLYTEC took in personnel man-
agement in the past financial year, for
example the new employer branding. It
gives the company an attractive image
in the labour market while at the same
time strengthening the team spirit
among existing employees, which sub-
sequently also helps improve employ-
ee satisfaction. Read more about the
new employer branding and other HR
topics in the POLYTEC GROUP starting
on page 48 of this report.



I Engineering for more
sustainability

In engineering, a specific research focus
is dedicated to sustainable materials -
in this context, POLYTEC is working on
solutions for the processing of recycled
materials and the design of products
that are more sustainable throughout
their entire life cycle. For more infor-
mation on sustainability in engineering
please go to 33 of this report.
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EFFICIENT RECYCLING

report.

I ESG is gaining importance

To give the environment, social, gov-
ernance (ESG) topic special emphasis,
a dedicated team under the respon-
sibility of COO Heiko Gabbert will ad-
dress these issues starting from the
second quarter of 2022. In doing so,
POLYTEC demonstrates that sustain-
ability means more to the company
than just collecting and compiling indi-
cators. Rather, the declared goal is to
embrace sustainability authentically
and comprehensively throughout the
group. Although sustainability topics
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IN ROOSENDAAL

At its Roosendaal location in the Netherlands, POLYTEC op-
erates a highly efficient recycling facility for glass-fibre rein-
forced thermoplastics. Scrap generated at the presses of the
plant is collected on site, shredded and returned to the produc-
tion process in the form of granulate. Prior to the commission-
ing of this facility, scrap was shredded at an external company,
which involved long transport routes. A similar recycling facility
in Ebensee is scheduled to start operations by the summer of
2022. Further information can be found from page 62 of this

have long been embedded in various
departments of the POLYTEC GROUP,
they are now becoming even more
transparent, comprehensible and eas-
ier to verify for all stakeholders thanks
to the central positioning and man-
agement. This is required not least by
the new Taxonomy Regulation of the
European Union, which aims to make
companies’ climate and environmental
protection activities easier to measure
and compare, and to provide guidance
for investors and customers for invest-
ment and purchasing decisions.
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GREEN COOLING
SAVES 670,000 KWH
OF ELECTRICITY

Central cooling systems manage the tem-
perature control necessary for machinery and
tools at the POLYTEC GROUP. The operation
of such facilities requires a high amount of en-
ergy. Therefore, POLYTEC focuses on modern,
energy-efficient technology especially in this
area. In the 2021 financial year the cooling
systems were completely overhauled at the
Lohne location. This included the installation
of a new, highly efficient cooling facility, which
led to an annual CO, reduction by 12 tonnes.
A second facility was completely redesigned:
roughly 670,000 kWh of electricity can be
saved at the location in Lohne thanks to

process temperature optimisation and other
measures in operations.

T

32.7%

Taxonomy-eligible turnover

350.7%

Taxonomy-eligible capital expenditure (CapEx) The Taxonomy Regulation of the Euro-

-> I EU Taxonomy: a yardstick for
sustainability

pean Union entered into force in June

27.0% 2020. The framework is intended to

. i i motivate companies to make their eco-
Taxonomy-eligible operational expenditure (OpEx)

nomic activities more environmentally

As of 2021
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and climate-friendly on the basis of
measurable targets. In addition, the EU
aims to counteract greenwashing and
direct finance flows towards sustain-
able activities and technologies.

In accordance with the Regulation,
POLYTEC publishes the proportion of its
turnover, capital expenditure (CapEx)
and operational expenditure (OpEx)
which can be assigned to the classifi-
cations of the Taxonomy. However, it
also deliberately uses the Taxonomy to
analyse its sustainability strategy and
as a yardstick for current and future
sustainability initiatives. Details on the
Taxonomy Regulation of the European
Union can be found in the manage-
ment report starting on page 108.

I Participation in the Carbon
Disclosure Project

POLYTEC also pursues enhanced trans-
parency for its customers by partici-
pating in the Carbon Disclosure Project
(CDP), which collects data on green-
house gas emissions, climate risks
and reduction targets by means of a
questionnaire and makes them publicly
available.

The results of the CDP surveys are
evaluated and published as part of a
ranking of the participating companies.
POLYTEC's results were published in
December 2021. There have been nu-
merous customer enquiries since then,
proving how important sustainable
action is for successful business rela-
tionships today.
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14,000 TONNES OF CO,
AVOIDED THROUGH
GREEN ELECTRICITY

POLYTEC increasingly relies on renewable
sources when purchasing electricity. Its loca-
tions in Austria, Germany and the Netherlands
are already exclusively operated with green
electricity. Other plants will also be convert-
ed in the coming years. Overall, the POLYTEC
GROUP has reduced its carbon footprint by
nearly 14,000 tonnes of carbon dioxide by
purchasing green electricity - that is equiv-
alent to 35 percent of all of the company’s
greenhouse gas emissions.

45% LESS CO, EMISSIONS
YEAR-ON-YEAR

25,783 t
In the 2021 financial year, POLYTEC
saved more than 20,000 tonnes of
CO, compared to the previous year,
thereof roughly 14,000 tonnes by
using green electricity.
2021




PHOTOVOLTAICS
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SUNNY ENERGY

FUTURE

POLYTEC focuses on emission-free and
sustainable energy production as part
of its decarbonisation strategy. In the
future, the group will produce up to 10
GWh of green electricity per year using
photovoltaic systems on the rooftops
of its plants. A beginning has already
been made: between May and Sep-
tember 2021 a photovoltaic system
with a nominal power of approximately
500 kWp and covering an area of more

than 2,500 square meters was installed
at the Hérsching plant. The 1,350 mod-
ules prevent 232 tonnes of CO, emis-
sions per year at the location in Upper
Austria. For the time being - because
an increase in nominal power to a total
of 1,100 kWp is already a done deal.

The second photovoltaic system com-
pleted in 2021 is located at the plant
in Wolmirstedt, Germany. Its electrical
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power totals 614 kWp. Specific proj-
ect plans for the locations in Lohne,
Weierbach and Gochsheim are also
in full swing. In this context, the use of
open space is also being reviewed.

In addition to the reduction of green-
house gas emissions, the company’s
own electricity production has a posi-
tive side effect: due to the current sharp
increase in energy prices, significant
economic benefits are likely to arise in
the long term as well. Photovoltaics are
therefore a sensible investment in the
future in every way.

The Hoérsching plant of the

POLYTEC GROUP was the first to be
equipped with a photovoltaic system.
A further expansion is already being
planned.



LIFE CYCLE ASSESSMENT
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MORE SUSTAINABILITY
IN THE SUPPLY CHAIN

The question about the durability of products and the fate

of the raw materials contained in them after the end of their
service life has gained increasing importance over the past
years. Based on a well-founded life cycle assessment, POLYTEC
supports its customers in making their supply chains more

sustainable.

Sustainability aspects no longer just
have sociopolitical importance. Rather,
they are among the central criteria for
awarding a contract, along with prod-
uct quality and efficiency. Based on
this knowledge, POLYTEC is expanding
its activities in the area of life cycle as-
sessment (LCA). Because the company
not only wants to offer its customers
the best products in the market, but
also to consciously support them in the
development of sustainable product
concepts which ensure longer service
life, environmentally friendly disposal
and maximum recyclability of the ma-
terials used.

I Starting point for sustainable
concepts

In the development of such concepts,
experts from different areas of the
POLYTEC GROUP collaborate within the
framework of the POLYTEC SOLUTION
FORCE. They combine materials and
manufacturing methods, considering
the effects of every single technology
on the ecological footprint of the prod-

uct. Results of such life cycle engineer-
ing include products made by using the
differential construction method. These
products are easier to repair and also
easier to separate and recycle at the
end of their life cycle. Or components
made of the same type of material: for
example, a polyamide injection-mould-
ed fibre composite reinforced by poly-
amide fibres is much easier to recycle
than composite materials made of
completely different base materials.

I Measures for sustainable
competitiveness

In order to remain competitive in the
future, POLYTEC has stepped up its
life cycle assessment with a number of
measures, for example building internal
know-how, training offers such as the
module “Sustainability in Engineering”,
with specialised software solutions to
collect valid data, or the goal of being
certified as a “Life Cycle Assessment
Certified Professional”.

61

LIFE CYCLE
ASSESSMENT

Life cycle assessment is the systematic
analysis of the potential environmental
impact and the energy footprint of a
product throughout all stages of its life
cycle - from production to disposal. In
other words: the ecological footprint is

determined.

Starting with two lighthouse projects
in the underbody segment, the aim is
to review all POLYTEC products, step
by step, for their environmental im-
pact - from development to production
through to the end of their life cycle.
Life cycle management thus paves the
way to increased sustainability along
the entire value chain for the POLYTEC
GROUP and its customers.



RPCs BY IFCO

COMING
FULL CIRCLE

At its location in Ebensee, POLYTEC has
produced collapsible reusable pack-
aging containers (RPCs) for IFCO, the
globally leading supplier of reusable
transport systems for fresh foods,
for many years. In summer 2021, the
collaboration was extended and the
production capacity increased. These
RCPs, which are used for the transport
of fruit and vegetables among other
things, are a prime example of a partic-
ularly sustainable and resource-friend-
ly circular economy: they can be fully
recycled at the end of their life cycle;
in addition, they reduce packaging
waste in the supply chain. And last, but
not least they ensure that the transport
goods are not damaged, thus prevent-
ing food waste.

In 2021, IFCO’s Lift Lock series was the
first - and so far only - food packaging

POLYTEC 2021 |

SUSTAINABILITY

container to become Cradle to Cradle
Certified® (Version 3.1) at the Silver
level. This prestigious award stands
for an end-to-end and consistent cir-
cular economy and, therefore, saving

At the new recycling hall at the POLYTEC location in Ebensee, defective reusable
packaging containers are turned into raw material for new ones.
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IFCO

e

erapdiato eradle

resources and using them responsibly,
safe recycling of materials and the use
of renewable energies. POLYTEC makes
a significant contribution to achieving
this strict certification through car-
bon-neutral production of the reusable
containers at its location in Ebensee
and the raw material recovery at the
end of the life cycle. M
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A LOOP IN EBENSEE

When a reusable packaging container  defective containers are doing this loop  Its operation is highly automated, ef-
(RPC) becomes defective, it is removed  at the POLYTEC location in Ebensee, ficient, saves water and energy and
from the usual cycle. At least initially -  when the newly built recycling facility meets the highest standards of the
until its recycled components can be is commissioned. Defective RPCs are  food industry.

reintegrated in the form of new RPCs.  granulated, washed and used for the

As of the second quarter of 2022, production of new RPCs at this facility.

1.
Defective RPC is
removed from the
logistics cycle.

™~
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5. ' 2
.. and reintroduced RPCis

into the granulated.
logistics cycle. \l/ J/
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4. — Granulate is
With new granulate washed and dried in

added, it is processed
into a new RPC ...

centrifugal dryers.
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SHARE & INVESTOR RELATIONS

SHARE & INVESTOR

RELATIONS

I POLYTEC SHARE PRICE DEVELOPMENT

On 30 December, the last stock exchange trading day of the
2021 financial year,the POLYTEC share (ISIN: ATOOO0OAOOXX9)
closed at EUR 6.87, down EUR 0.64, or 8.5%, on the closing
price of the previous year (EUR 7.51). The annual average

31 March 2021 30 June 2021

—— POLYTEC share
—— ATX Total Return

The POLYTEC share started into the 2021 stock exchange
year very successfully with a sharp price increase: like every
year since the initial public offering in 2006, the POLYTEC
share also recorded a plus of more than 11% during the first
month of 2021. This strong performance continued until mid-
June, when the POLYTEC share peaked at a closing price of
EUR 12.56 and reached its annual high on 14 June. From the
beginning of January until the beginning of August, the
POLYTEC share consistently outperformed the ATX Total
Return index (ATX-TR). After dropping continuously during
the second half of the stock exchange year, the POLYTEC
share recorded its annual low of EUR 6.65 on 20 December
and closed the 2021 stock exchange year at EUR 6.87.

30 September 2021

closing price of the share amounted to EUR 9.43 (2020:
EUR 5.92), and year-end market capitalisation totalled
EUR 153.4 million (2020: EUR 167.7 million).

30 December 2021

Source: Vienna Stock Exchange, price data indexed as per 30 December 2020
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Compared to 2020, the average daily trading volume of
the POLYTEC share rose by 25.4%. During the 254 days of
trading on the Vienna Stock Exchange, the average trading
volume amounted to 86,439 shares per day in 2021
(2020: 68,925 shares, both figures using double counting).
The two busiest trading days were 14 December 2021 and
13 December 2021, when 486,812 and 355,906 POLYTEC
shares, respectively, were traded on the Vienna Stock
Exchange (double counting in both cases).

31 March 2022
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In an international comparison, the Vienna Stock Exchange Europe 600 Automobile & Parts (SXAP) closed at 660 points
recorded above-average gainsin 2021. The ATX Total Return ~ (2020: 527), exceeding the level at the end of 2020 by 25.2%.
index was up 43.6% to 7,848.78 points in 2021. The STOXX®

POLYTEC share (ATOO00A00XX9) Unit 2021 Change 2020 2019 2018 2017
Year-end closing price EUR 6.87 -8.5% 7.51 8.65 8.38 18.50
Highest closing price during the year EUR 12.56 40.6% 8.93 10.64 21.00 22.38
(on 14 June 2021)

Average closing price during the year EUR 943 59.3% 592 8.89 13.29 16.46
Lowest closing price during the year EUR 6.65 107.2% 3.21 8.05 8.38 10.40
(on 20 December 2021)

Market capitalisation at year-end EUR mM 153.4 -8.5% 167.7 1931 187.1 413.1
Vienna Stock Exchange money turnover EUR mM 1971 96.5% 100.3 107.2 299.7 3479
(double counting)

Vienna Stock Exchange share turnover Shares m 21.9 25.9% 17.4 12.0 231 20.6
(double counting)

Share turnover Shares 86,439 25.4% 68,925 47,768 93,591 83,317

(daily average, double counting)

Source: Vienna Stock Exchange

I PRICE DEVELOPMENT AFFECTED BY THE WAR had to be cancelled at short notice due to tightened corona
IN UKRAINE IN THE FIRST QUARTER OF 2022 measures.

In January 2022, the POLYTEC share again recorded a signif-

icant increase by 13.5%, thus ranking among the three most ~ Conducting countless video and audio conferences with in-

successful securities on the ATX Prime index. This positive  stitutional investors, analysts and private investors, POLYTEC

upward trend continued until mid-February, when it was nevertheless succeeded in regularly engaging in intensive

abruptly stopped by the acts of war in Ukraine. dialogue with interested capital market participants despite
the “impersonal” conditions.

At the end of the first quarter of 2022, the price of the
POLYTEC share stood at EUR 6.67, thus falling EUR 0.20, or
29%, below the closing price of 2021. In comparison, the
shares of competitors suffered substantially more marked
declines: the STOXX® Europe 600 Automobile & Parts (SXAP)
dropped by 12.3% to 579 points between year-end 2021 and
31 March 2022. The ATX Total Return index fell by 14.2% to
6,733.73 points in the first quarter of 2022.

I INVESTOR CONTACTS

Due to corona, POLYTEC held nearly all contacts with inves-
tor in virtual form again during the 2021 financial year, with
the exception of the Annual General Meeting, a lunch meet-
ing with investors on the occasion of the publication of the

third-quarter results in early November 2021, a hybrid con-

ference in Munich, an investor visit at the POLYTEC head- Since the beginning of the second quarter of 2022,
CEO Markus Huemer has been responsible for the
entire finance portfolio. The CEO (right) manages the
IR agendas jointly with Investor Relations Manager
Vienna Stock Exchange. Several planned investor events  Paul Rettenbacher.

quarters in Horsching in combination with a plant tour as well
as an information event in Graz in cooperation with the
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I IN-PERSON AGM ALSO IN 2021

POLYTEC Holding AG also decided to hold the Annual General
Meeting in the form of an in-person meeting in the second
year of the corona pandemic, strictly adhering to the safety
measures required on the day of the event. Both share-
holders and members of the Supervisory Board and the
Board of Directors of POLYTEC Holding AG valued this
in-person meeting. Overall, 111 shareholders and share-
holder representatives, who represented 41.1% of the share
capital eligible to vote, attended the 21t Ordinary Annual
General Meeting of POLYTEC Holding AG, which was held on
13 July 2021. The voting results and other important docu-
ments related to the Annual General Meeting can be viewed
in the Investor Relations, Annual General Meeting section of
the company’s website at www.polytec-group.com.

CHRONOLOGY OF EARNINGS AND DIVIDEND PER SHARE
SINCE THE IPO

SHARE & INVESTOR RELATIONS

I DIVIDEND POLICY

POLYTEC’s dividend policy is based on the profitability,
strategic growth perspectives and capital requirements of
the group. In the 2021 financial year, the net profit of
POLYTEC Holding AG amounted to EUR 164.3 million (2020:
EUR 152.8 million). The Board of Directors and the Super-
visory Board will propose the distribution of a dividend of
EUR 010 per eligible share to the 22" Ordinary Annual
General Meeting to be held on 1 July 2022. This corresponds
to a gross dividend payment of approximately EUR 2.2 mil-
lion (2020: EUR 6.6 million). On the basis of the average
closing price of EUR 9.43 during the year, this results in a
dividend yield of 11%. 5 July 2022 is the ex-dividend day and
7 July 2022 the dividend payout day.

0.86 1.66 0.42 112 154 0.97 0.65 0.62 1.08 1.65 174 1.32 1.02 0.29 0.32
I 0.25 0.30 0.00 0.00 I 0.00 | 0.35 0.35 0.25 0.25 I 0.30 | 0.40 | 0.45 I 0.40 I 0.00 0.30 0.10
I I g b kL h b hoh T .
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
-2.33
| Earnings per share in EUR
I Dividend per share in EUR
POLYTEC share (ATOO0O0AQ0XX9) Unit 2021 Change 2020 2019 2018 2017
Earnings per share EUR 0.32 10.3% 0.29 1.02 132 174
Proposed dividend per share EUR 0.10 -66.6% 0.30 0.00 0.40 0.45
Payout ratio % 31.3 -721%-pts. 103.4 0.0 30.3 259
Dividend yield on the basis of the % 11 -4.0%-pts. 51 0.0 3.0 2.7

average closing price during the year
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I SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE

At the 31 December 2021 balance sheet date, the share
capital of POLYTEC Holding AG amounted to EUR 22.3 million
divided into 22,329,585 shares of a nominal value of
EUR 1.00 each. No other types of shares existed. All shares
were admitted to trading in the prime market segment of
the Vienna Stock Exchange.

The Huemer Group was the only investor owning more than
10.0% of share capital on the 31 December 2021 balance
sheet date. It holds 29.04% (16.00% Huemer Holding GmbH
and 13.04% Huemer Invest GmbH) of POLYTEC Holding AG’s
share capital. Apart from the aforementioned, the Board of
Directors knew of no shareholders with an interest in excess
of 10.0% of share capital on the balance sheet date. No
shareholder has special control rights.

In accordance with § 130 of the Austrian Stock Exchange Act,
POLYTEC Holding AG received three voting right notifications
from shareholders relating to the 2021 financial year. Details
on this topic can be found under item 7 of the group man-
agement report. Any changes in material shareholdings
that became known to POLYTEC Holding AG after the edito-
rial deadline of this report can be viewed in the Investor
Relations, News, Major Holdings section of the company’s
website www.polytec-group.com.

On the basis of the 22,329,585 issued shares, the share-
holder structure of POLYTEC Holding AG had the following
form as at 31 December 2021:

Treasury shares
1.50%

Huemer Group
29.04%

Free float
~_ 69.46%

The current composition of the shareholder structure can be
viewed in the Investor Relations, Share section of the Group’s
website www.polytec-group.com.
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I MANAGERS’ TRANSACTIONS

POLYTEC Holding AG received four reports regarding
managers’ transactions in accordance with Article 19 MAR
during the 2021 financial year and disclosed each of these
events in due time as stipulated. Details on this topic can be
found under item 7 of the group management report. An
overview of managers’ transactions, including those that
took place after the editorial deadline of this report, can be
viewed on the Market Data, Statistics and Managers’ Trans-
actions section of the website of the Vienna Stock Exchange
www.wienerborse.at.

For further information regarding capital, share, voting and
control rights (for example “treasury shares” and “authorised
capital”) and the related obligations pursuant to § 243a of
the Austrian Commercial Code, please refer to the state-
ments in item 7 of the group management report.

I RESEARCH COVERAGE

The support of the POLYTEC GROUP by national and inter-
national investment banks is an important element in its
comprehensive investor relations activities and plays a
significant role in the visibility of the POLYTEC share within
the investor community.

The following financial institutions published regular reports
on the POLYTEC GROUP and the recommendations during
the 2021 financial year. The recommendations and price
targets at the editorial closing date of this report at the be-
ginning of April 2021 are shown in the following table:

Latest

Recommen- price
Institute dation target
BAADER Helvea Equity Research, Reduce EUR 6.70
Munich (Peter Rothenaicher)
ERSTE Group Research, Vienna Hold EUR 6.80
(Michael Marschallinger)
M.M. Warburg Research, Hamburg Hold EUR 7.50
(Marc-René Tonn)
Raiffeisen Research, Vienna Buy EUR 10.50
(Markus Remis)
Average price target EUR 7.88

The current recommendations and price targets can be
viewed in the Investor Relations, Share, Share Price and Re-
search section of the Group’s website www.polytec-group.com.
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

I 1. COMMITMENT TO THE AUSTRIAN CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The key elements in an active corporate governance culture
consist of a high degree of transparency for all stakeholders
and along-term and sustainable increase in corporate value.
Their realisation necessitates efficient teamwork between
the company’s governing bodies, the protection of share-
holders’ interests and open corporate communications.

Since its IPO, POLYTEC Holding AG has committed itself to
compliance with the Austrian Corporate Governance Code
in its respective current form. The information and state-
ments provided in this report pursuant to § 243c and 267b of
the Austrian Commercial Code (UGB) are based on this
edition. The complete text of the Austrian Corporate
Governance Code can be accessed from the website of the
Austrian Working Committee for Corporate Governance
www.corporate-governance.at.

During the 2021 financial year, POLYTEC Holding AG com-
plied with all the compulsory L-Rules (“Legal Requirements”)
and all the C-Rules (“Comply or Explain”) contained in the
Austrian Corporate Governance Code with the exception of
the C-Rules 53, 62 and 83. In accordance with the guidelines
for the classification of the independence of the Supervisory
Board set out in Appendix 1 of the Code, three members of
the Supervisory Board declared that they were not indepen-
dent. Two of these members did so owing to the length of
their Board membership. In this sense, contrary to C-Rule 53
the majority of the members of the Supervisory Board elect-
ed by the Annual General Meeting are not independent. Ac-
cording to C-Rule 62, the company should allow the regular
evaluation of adherence to the C-Rules of the Code by an
external institution at least every three years and to date this
has not taken place. In addition, C-Rule 83 states that on the
basis of the documentation presented, the auditor should
adjudge risk management functionality and report its find-
ings to the Board of Directors. The company justifies the fail-
ure to implement these two rules with the related high costs,
but is nonetheless convinced that adherence to the C-Rules
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and the required transparency are secured through internal
audits and measures. The Corporate Governance Report for
the 2021 financial year is publicly available via POLYTEC
Holding AG’s corporate website www.polytec-group.com,
which is entered in the Austrian Company Register.

I 2. POLYTEC HOLDING AG GOVERNING BODIES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ORGANISATION AND WORKING METHODS

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Board of
Directors of POLYTEC Holding AG consists of one, two, three,
four or five members. The Supervisory Board appoints the
members of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors
manages the company in accordance with the relevant laws,
the Articles of Association and the internal rules of proce-
dure, which are subject to Supervisory Board approval. In
addition to other items, the internal rules of procedure regu-
late the collaboration and distribution of responsibilities
amongst the members of the Board of Directors, as well as
business transactions requiring approval. The distribution of
competences amongst the Board members is specified in
the descriptions of their individual functions.

The members of the Board of Directors are in constant, close
contact with each other in order to exchange information,
assess corporate progress and take any necessary deci-
sions in a timely manner. As a rule, the POLYTEC Holding AG
Board of Directors holds meetings every two weeks in order
to discuss current POLYTEC GROUP development. At least
once a quarter, the Board of Directors provides the Supervi-
sory Board with regular, comprehensive and prompt assess-
ments of the course of business that incorporate the risk sit-
uation, risk management and the status of the company
within the context of future group development. The Chair-
man of the Supervisory Board is informed immediately of
significant events and is in regular contact with the Chairman
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of the Board of Directors. Ongoing discussions are also held
regarding strategy, business trends and company risk man-
agement.

All of the serving members of the Board of Directors in the
2020 financial year were granted a unanimous discharge at
the 21t Ordinary Annual General Meeting held on 13 July 2021.

CHANGES TO THE POLYTEC HOLDING AG

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At its meeting held on 15 December 2021, the POLYTEC
Holding AG Supervisory Board prematurely prolonged the
appointments of Board Chairman Markus Huemer and the
Board members Peter Bernscher (CCO) and Heiko Gabbert

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

(COO0), which were due to expire on 31 December 2022, by a
further five years with effect from 1 January 2022. The
extended appointments and the contracts of the Board of
Directors now expire on 31 December 2026. By mutual
agreement, the appointment of Peter Haidenek, POLYTEC
Holding AG’s CFO since 1 February 2011, which was also due
to expire on 31 December 2022, was not extended.

As part of the further centralisation of the POLYTEC GROUP
organisation, all operative finance agendas have been
merged and are now pooled across the group in the function
of a Vice President Finance. The position of CFO was not
filled and Markus Huemer (CEO) will assume the related
responsibilities with effect from 1 April 2022.

MEMBERS OF THE POLYTEC HOLDING AG BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Markus Huemer (CEO)

e Born: 1981

e Chairman of the Board
of Directors

e Date of initial
appointment:
1 January 2014

e End of current term of
office: 31 December 2026

e Areas of responsibility:
M&A, investment
management,
corporate strategy,
corporate communica-
tions, purchasing, IT,
legal affairs, human
resources

e Supervisory Board
mandates: GlobeAir AG

Peter Bernscher (CCO)

e Born: 1968

® Member of the Board of
Directors

e Date of initial
appointment:
1 August 2018

e End of current term of
office: 31 December 2026

e Areas of responsibility:
sales, engineering,
marketing

e Supervisory Board
mandates: none
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Heiko Gabbert (COO)

e Born: 1968

e Member of the Board of
Directors

e Date of initial
appointment:
1 January 2019

e End of current term of
office: 31 December 2026

e Areas of responsibility:
operations, innovation,
industrial engineering

e Supervisory Board
mandates: none

Peter Haidenek (CFO)

e Born: 1965

e Member of the Board of
Directors

e Date of initial
appointment:
1 February 2011

® End of current term of
office: 31 March 2022

e Areas of responsibility:
finance, controlling,
accounting, investor
relations, internal
auditing

e Supervisory Board
mandates: none
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SUPERVISORY BOARD

ORGANISATION AND WORKING METHODS

The Supervisory Board advises the Board of Directors with
regard to its strategic planning and projects. It has the task of
monitoring the Board of Directors’ management of the com-
pany. The laws and regulations that apply to listed companies
in Austria, in particular the Austrian Stock Corporation Act and
the Austrian Stock Exchange Act, govern the Supervisory
Board’s scope of activities. In addition, the Supervisory Board
is obliged to comply with the rules of the Austrian Corporate
Governance Code. As far as internal company regulations are
concerned, the Articles of Association and the rules of internal
procedure are of primary importance. In accordance with the
POLYTEC Holding AG Articles of Association, the Supervisory
Board consists of at least three and no more than six mem-
bers, elected by the Annual General Meeting. The members of
the Supervisory Board are obliged to conduct an annual
self-assessment of their activities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

All five serving members of the Supervisory Board in the
2020 financial year were granted a unanimous discharge at
the 21% Ordinary Annual General Meeting on 13 July 2021.

CHANGES TO THE POLYTEC HOLDING AG

SUPERVISORY BOARD

The resolution proposed by the Supervisory Board, based on
the recommendation of the nomination committee and the
requirements of the Austrian Corporate Governance Code, to
increase the number of Supervisory Board members from
four to five and to elect Friedrich Huemer to the Supervisory
Board for the first time, was adopted with the required ma-
jority by the shareholders and shareholder representatives
present at the 21t Ordinary Annual General Meeting on
13 July 2021. At the subsequent constituent meeting of the
Supervisory Board held after the AGM, Friedrich Huemer was
unanimously elected as the Chairman of the Supervisory
Board and Fred Duswald was unanimously elected as the
Supervisory Board’s Deputy Chairman.

MEMBERS OF THE POLYTEC HOLDING AG SUPERVISORY BOARD

Friedrich
Huemer

® Born: 1957

e Chairman of the
Supervisory Board

e Date of initial
appointment:
2021

e End of current
term of office:
Annual General
Meeting regarding
the 2024 financial
year

e Other Supervisory
Board mandates:
none

e Not independent

Fred
Duswald

e Born: 1967

e Deputy Chairman
of the Supervisory
Board

e Date of initial
appointment:
2006

® End of current
term of office:
Annual General
Meeting regarding
the 2024 financial
year

e Other Supervisory
Board mandates:
none

e Not independent

Manfred
Trauth

® Born: 1948

e Member of the
Supervisory Board

e Date of initial
appointment:
2007

® End of current
term of office:
Annual General
Meeting regarding
the 2024 financial
year

e Other Supervisory
Board mandates:
none

¢ Independent
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Viktoria
Kickinger

e Born: 1952

e Member of the
Supervisory Board

e Date of initial
appointment:
2006

® End of current
term of office:
Annual General
Meeting regarding
the 2024 financial
year

e Other Supervisory
Board mandates:
none

e Not independent

Reinhard
Schwendtbauver

e Born: 1972

e Member of the
Supervisory Board

e Date of initial
appointment:
2010

e End of current
term of office:
Annual General
Meeting regarding
the 2024 financial
year

e Other Supervisory
Board mandates:
none

¢ Independent
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INDEPENDENCE OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

Members of the Supervisory Board are deemed to be inde-
pendent if they have no business or personal relationships
with the company or its Board of Directors that could result
in a material conflict of interest and thus influence the mem-
bers’ conduct. Pursuant to C-Rule 53, the majority of the
members of the Supervisory Board elected by the Annual
General Meeting must be independent.

In assessing the independence of a member of the Super-
visory Board, the Supervisory Board is guided by the follow-
ing guidelines, which correspond to those contained in the
Annex to the Austrian Corporate Governance Code in the
version of January 2021:

e The Supervisory Board member shall not have been a
member of the Board of Directors or a senior executive of
the company or a company subsidiary in the past five
years.

The Supervisory Board member shall not maintain or have
maintained in the past year any business relations with the
company or a subsidiary of the company to an extent that
is significant for the Supervisory Board member. This shall
also apply to business relationships with companies in
which the Supervisory Board member has a significant
economic interest, but not to the exercise of board func-
tions within the group. The approval of individual transac-
tions by the Supervisory Board pursuant to L-Rule 48 does
not automatically lead to qualification as not independent.
The Supervisory Board member shall not have been an

auditor of the company, or a participant in, or employee of,
the auditing company in the last three years.

The Supervisory Board member shall not be a member of
the management board of another company in which a
member of the Board of Directors of the company is a
supervisory board member.

The Supervisory Board member shall not be a member of
the Supervisory Board for longer than 15 years. This shall
not apply to Supervisory Board members who are share-
holders with an entrepreneurial interest, or represent the
interests of such a shareholder.

The Supervisory Board member shall not be a close rela-
tive (direct offspring, spouse, partner, parent, uncle, aunt,
sibling, niece, nephew) of a member of the Board of Direc-
tors, or of persons who hold one of the positions described
above.
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The members of the Supervisory Board are committed to
the criteria of independence according to C-Rule 53. The
Chairman of the Supervisory Board declares himself to be
not independent in his function as a core shareholder of
POLYTEC Holding AG, as well as due to his relationship to the
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the company. Both
Fred Duswald and Viktoria Kickinger declare themselves to
be not independent owing to the length of their membership
on the Supervisory Board. The requirements of C-Rule 54 are
met.

BUSINESS TRANSACTIONS OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
MEMBERS REQUIRING PRIOR APPROVAL

In the 2021 financial year, a member of the Supervisory
Board concluded the following transaction pursuant to
L-Rule 48. As part of a joint venture with the German Stinshoff
Holding GmbH, RSAG Immobilienbeteiligungen GmbH & Co
KG acquired a plant site located in Marchtrenk in December
2021, which previously belonged to the “Industrial” business
unit and was sold to a group of investors at the beginning of
December 2020. Due to the significant economic interest of
Fred Duswald, the Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory
Board, in RSAG Immobilienbeteiligungen GmbH & Co KG, the
approval of the Supervisory Board was obtained prior to the
conclusion of the purchase and assignment agreement. The
Supervisory Board member did not participate in this proce-
dure.

The consulting services provided to the POLYTEC GROUP
since January 2019 by IMC Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH,
Hoérsching, were terminated with effect from 30 June 2021.
Flight services provided by Globe Air GmbH, Horsching, were
and are used subject to arm's length conditions. The Super-
visory Board approved the conclusion of a leasing agree-
ment by POLYTEC Car Styling Hérsching GmbH for the in-
stallation and leasing of a photovoltaic system on the roof of
the plant in Hérsching by HI Solar GmbH, Horsching. The
aforementioned companies are related parties of the Chair-
man of the Supervisory Board.

In accordance with L-Rule 24, all transactions with related
persons or companies comply with the customary industry
standards.

Otherwise, during the financial year, the company did not
enter into any significant transactions with related parties
pursuant to § 95a of the Austrian Stock Corporation Act.
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SUPERVISORY BOARD COMMITTEES

In accordance with the Austrian Stock Corporation Act, the
POLYTEC Holding AG Supervisory Board has established an
audit committee, which carries out the scheduled controlling
and monitoring functions. The chairperson of the audit com-
mittee disposes over the appropriate knowledge and practi-
cal experience with regard to financing, accounting and re-
porting (financial expert). Apart from the supervision of ac-
counting and the auditing process for both the financial
statements and the consolidated financial statements, the
proposal for the distribution of profits, and audit planning, in
particular the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems was monitored. Moreover, consulta-
tions were held regarding the strategic focal points of the
audits and the procedures of the committee in the light of
new legal stipulations. Last, but not least, the committee is
required to examine the Corporate Governance Report and
reporting with regard to Austrian Sustainability and Diversity
Improvement Act.

During the 2021 financial year, the audit committee con-
vened twice, whereby at both these meetings the (group)
auditor was present. The Supervisory Board held a total of
four meetings during the reporting period.

COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEES

Committees Chairperson
Audit committee

Nomination committee

Reinhard Schwendtbauer

Friedrich Huemer
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In addition to the mandatory audit committee, a nomination
committee has been established at the company, which also
performs the tasks of the remuneration committee. In partic-
ular, the nomination committee is responsible for the negoti-
ation, content, conclusion, implementation and, if necessary,
termination of employment contracts with members of the
Board of Directors, and in doing so observes the relevant
rules of the Austrian Corporate Governance Code. It pre-
pares the annual draft of the remuneration report for the
members of the Board of Directors and reviews the remu-
neration policy of the company at least every fourth finan-
cial year. The nomination committee met twice during the
2021 financial year. The subjects of the resolutions related
primarily to the preparation of the elections to the Super-
visory Board and adjustments to the employment contracts
of the Board of Directors. No Supervisory Board member
was absent from more than half of the meetings.

As there is no requirement for the establishment of a risk
management committee from a legal perspective or in ac-
cordance with the provisions of the Austrian Corporate
Governance Code, this committee was dissolved in the mid-
dle of the 2021 financial year.

The areas of responsibility of the individual Supervisory
Board members in the respective committees are shown in
the following table:

Members
Viktoria Kickinger, Fred Duswald
Viktoria Kickinger, Fred Duswald
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I 3. OTHER INFORMATION

REMUNERATION OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD AND

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Owing to the coming into force of the 2019 Austrian Stock
Law Amendment Act,in January 2021 the Austrian Corporate
Governance Code was adapted in line with the new regula-
tions regarding remuneration policy and reporting. In this
Corporate Governance Report for 2021, the presentation of
the remuneration of corporate body members used to date
is omitted.

The Supervisory Board and the Board of Directors drew up a
new remuneration policy, which was approved by the
20™" Ordinary Annual General Meeting on 7 August 2020 with
the necessary majority. In accordance with § 78b Para. 1 in
conjunction with § 98a of the Austrian Stock Corporation Act,
the remuneration policy must be presented to the Annual
General Meeting for approval at least in every fourth finan-
cial year.

Reporting of the remuneration of the Supervisory Board and
the Board of Directors in the 2021 financial year takes place in
the Remuneration Report prepared in accordance with
§ 78c and § 98a of the Austrian Stock Corporation Act. The
Remuneration Report will be presented to the 22" Annual
General Meeting of POLYTEC Holding AG for approval and will
subsequently be available for perusal in the Investor Relations
section of the company website www.polytec-group.com.

CODE OF CONDUCT AND COMPLIANCE

For the POLYTEC GROUP conduct in accordance with the law
and strict ethical standards represents a matter of course.
However, compliance in this connection means far more
than merely the implementation of current rules and regula-
tions. In fact, compliance is a matter of corporate culture.
Therefore, the acceptance of responsibility and actions in
accordance with ethical principles have been integrated into
the POLYTEC GROUP’s corporate values and mission state-
ment in unequivocal form, and tabulated in the Code of
Conduct, which can be accessed via the group’s website.

As a listed corporation POLYTEC Holding AG is obliged to ful-
fil the complete range of stipulations regarding adherence to
capital market legislation. In order to prevent insider deal-
ings, employees and other persons acting on behalf of
POLYTEC Holding AG are informed continually of the ban on
the misuse of insider information and internal guidelines
have been issued for the transfer of information within the
company. Adherence to the latter is monitored and suitable
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organisational measures have been taken in order to prohib-
it the improper use or passing on of insider information. The
related tasks constitute a major element within the compa-
ny’s compliance organisation. During the year under report,
the members of the Supervisory Board and the Board of
Directors received comprehensive information regarding
compliance activities at regular intervals.

In addition to capital market compliance content, the POLYTEC
GROUP holds regular coaching regarding data protection,
anti-corruption and anti-trust law. The awareness levels of em-
ployees are raised with respect to issues of data protection,
competition and anti-trust law relevance, as well as correct
conduct when dealing with data, gifts and invitations. The aim
is to protect both employees and the group against infringe-
ments of the law and to offer practice-related support during
the application of the relevant regulations. No breaches of
compliance were determined during the period under review.

DIVERSITY AND THE PROMOTION OF WOMEN

The POLYTEC GROUP now has a workforce of around 3,400
on four continents. As a result of this internationality, diversi-
ty, respect, equality of opportunity and the integration of
employees from differing cultures represent integral ele-
ments within corporate culture. Any form of personal dis-
crimination whether due to origin, gender, skin colour, age,
religion, sexual orientation or disability is strictly rejected.

During recruitment for vacant positions, a focus is placed on
performance orientation, knowledge, skills and equal oppor-
tunity and treatment. New team members are selected pri-
marily on the basis of the best possible qualifications and
experience, which the candidates can then contribute to the
POLYTEC GROUP.

When electing members of the Supervisory Board, the Annu-
al General Meeting has to account for requirements relating
to professional and personal qualifications, as well as the
balanced specialist composition of the board. Furthermore,
diversity aspects have to be taken into reasonable account
with regard to the representation of both genders, age struc-
ture and internationality. Newly elected Supervisory Board
members must inform themselves appropriately regarding
the structure and activities of the company and their tasks
and responsibilities. The POLYTEC Holding AG Supervisory
Board has had a female member for over fifteen years, who
during the 2021 financial year occupied one of the four
Supervisory Board positions and following the supplementa-
tion of the Supervisory Board with a fifth member, one of the
five positions. Accordingly, the share of female membership
in 2021 initially amounted to 25% and is now 20%. L-Rule 52
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is thus fulfilled, as at present the POLYTEC Holding Supervi-
sory Board does not consist of at least six persons.

In the 2021 financial year there were no women on the
POLYTEC Holding AG Board of Directors. On 31 December
2021, women accounted for 46.3% (2020: 46.0%) of the
POLYTEC Holding AG workforce. As at the 31 December 2021
balance sheet date, at the POLYTEC GROUP’s companies
women held 10.8% of the managerial posts (2020: 9.2%) with
long-term personnel responsibility. On 31 December 2021,
the quota of female employees in the POLYTEC GROUP
(excluding leasing personnel) amounted to 24.4% (2020:
23.4%).

AUDITOR

KPMG Austria GmbH Wirtschaftspriofungs- und Steuer-

beratungsgesellschaft, Linz was recommended by the

Hoérsching, 31 March 2022

The Board of Directors of POLYTEC Holding AG

Markus Huemer
Chairman - CEO

Peter Bernscher
Member of the Board - CSO

Heiko Gabbert
Member of the Board - COO

Peter Haidenek
Member of the Board - CFO
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Supervisory Board as the auditor of POLYTEC Holding AG’s
financial statements and consolidated financial statements
for the 2021 financial year. This proposal was approved with
the necessary majority at the 271t Ordinary Annual General
Meeting held on 13 July 2021. In 2021, total expenses for
auditing purposes amounted to EUR 260 k (2020: EUR 250 k).
A more detailed breakdown of these expenses into the single
fields of activity is available in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

CHANGES AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

No changes to matters subject to obligatory reporting
occurred between the reporting date and the editorial clos-
ing date of the Corporate Governance Report at the end of
March 2022.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

OF POLYTEC HOLDING AG FOR THE 2021 FINANCIAL YEAR

In the financial year expired, the Board of Directors of
POLYTEC Holding AG provided the members of the Super-
visory Board and its committees with regular information
about the business performance and situation of the com-
pany. During both Supervisory Board meetings and informal
discussions, communications between the Board of Direc-
tors and the Supervisory Board were characterised by a high
degree of openness, which allowed the Supervisory Board to
comprehensively assess the management of the company
at all times and support the Board of Directors with regard to
key decisions. The Supervisory Board executed its duties
pursuant to the Austrian legal provisions and the company’s
Articles of Association, as well as in compliance with the
Austrian Corporate Governance Code in its current version.

In addition to ongoing oversight and company development
topics, in the course of the 2021 financial year the Superviso-
ry Board concerned itself with the measures necessitated by
the COVID-19 pandemic and also focused on the economic
effects of the shortage of semiconductors and other
pre-products, rising material and energy prices and the or-
ganisational changes within its own internal structure. At the
271 Ordinary Annual General Meeting of POLYTEC Holding
AG on 13 July 2021, elections to the Supervisory Board were
held and Friedrich Huemer was elected to the Board as an
additional member. At the subsequent constituent meeting,
Friedrich Huemer was then selected as the Supervisory
Board Chairman with Fred Duswald as his deputy. Owing
to the fact that the formation of a risk management commit-
tee is neither required from a legal perspective nor by the
statutory provisions of the Austrian Corporate Governance
Code, this committee was disbanded.

During the 2021 financial year, the committees formed in
accordance with the Austrian Corporate Governance Code
(audit and nomination committees) convened as stipulated.
The meetings dealt largely with the discussion of the course
of business and resolutions regarding business matters and
measures of importance. The Supervisory Board of POLYTEC
Holding AG, which until 13 July 2021 was composed of four
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capital representatives and following the election at the
27t Ordinary Annual General Meeting, of five, is committed
to compliance with the Austrian Corporate Governance
Code. According to the definition contained in the Austrian
Corporate Governance Code, the majority of the Supervisory
Board members are not deemed as independent.

In its capacity as the auditor for the 2021 financial year
KPMG Austria GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungs- und Steuerbera-
tungsgesellschaft, Linz, audited the financial statements in-
cluding the management report, the consolidated financial
statements and the group management report of POLYTEC
Holding AG. The auditor granted both the 2021 financial
statements and consolidated financial statements of
POLYTEC Holding AG an unqualified opinion. In addition to
the clarification of key auditing matters, it was confirmed on
the basis of this audit that the annual financial statements
and the consolidated financial statements comply with all
legal requirements and provide a true and fair view of the
asset and financial situation as at 31 December 2021, as well
as the profit situation for the financial year ending on this
closing date. Pursuant to the opinion of the auditor, the annu-
al financial statements were prepared in accordance with
the stipulations of Austrian commercial law and the consoli-
dated financial statements in line with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as applied in the EU,
and the additional requirements pursuant to § 245a UGB
(Austrian Commercial Code).

At its meeting on 7 April 2022, the audit committee of the
Supervisory Board studied in detail the annual financial
statements including the management report, the corporate
governance report, the consolidated financial statements
including the group management report and the auditors’
report and discussed the results of the audit with the auditor.
Following its own examination, the audit committee en-
dorsed the findings of the auditors’ report and informed
the Supervisory Board accordingly.
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The Supervisory Board examined the annual financial state-
ments, the consolidated financial statements, the manage-
ment report, the group management report and the corpo-
rate governance report and endorsed the result of the audit
of the financial statements and consolidated financial state-
ments. The Supervisory Board concurred with the annual
financial statements for 2021, which are thus adopted pursu-
ant to § 96 Para. 4 of the Austrian Stock Corporation Act. The
Supervisory Board also agreed with the recommendation of
the audit committee and will propose to the Annual General
Meeting that KPMG Austria GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungs- und
Steuerberatungsgesellschaft, Linz, be appointed as the audi-
tor for the 2022 financial year.

Furthermore, the Supervisory Board concurs with the recom-
mendation of the Board of Directors to distribute a dividend
of EUR 0.10 per eligible share for the 2021 financial year.

On behalf of the Supervisory Board, | would like to express
my gratitude to the Board of Directors and all the members
of the POLYTEC GROUP workforce for their endeavours and
great commitment during the 2021 financial year. | would
also like to thank the POLYTEC GROUP’s shareholders and
customers for their trust.

Horsching, April 2022

Friedrich Huemer
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT AND ECONOMIC SITUATION

1. AUTOMOTIVE INDUSTRY
DEVELOPMENT IN 2021

REGISTRATIONS OF NEW CARS IN THE MAJOR INTERNATIONAL MARKETS

in units 2021
China 21,090,200
USA 14,913,700
Europe (EU, EFTA and UK) 11,774,900
Total three major markets 47,778,800
Other selected countries

Japan 3,675,700
India 3,082,400
Brazil 1,977,100
Russia 1,666,800

During 2021, the global COVID-19 crisis retained its firm grip
upon virtually every branch of industry. The shortage of
semiconductors posed the greatest challenge to the interna-
tional automotive markets. In addition, supply bottlenecks in
the procurement of other preliminary products and raw
materials, as well as rising energy prices, also slowed auto-
motive industry development. While China and the USA re-
corded increases in new car registrations due to catch-up
effects and the low level of the preceding year, even fewer
new cars were sold in Europe (EU, EFTA and UK) than in the
2020 crisis year. Due to the lack of semiconductors, the situ-
ation is not expected to improve until the end of 2022 - but
there are already isolated positive signs.

In the three main automotive industry markets, China, the
USA and Europe (EU, EFTA and UK), new car registrations in
2021 rose by almost 1.6 million units, or 3.4%, to around
47.8 million units (2020: 46.2 million). This increase was at-
tributable to the gradual recovery of the markets in China
and the USA, which are the largest automotive markets
alongside Japan and Europe (EU, EFTA and UK). While the
sales regions of China and the USA recorded growth, Japan
and Europe (EU, EFTA and UK) closed 2021 with a negative
result.

Share 2020 Share Change 2019
441% 19,790,000 42.8% 6.6% 21,045,000
31.2% 14,463,900 31.3% 3.1% 16,965,200
24.7% 11,958,100 25.9% -1.5% 15,805,700
100% 46,212,000 100% 34% 53,815,900
3,810,000 -3.5% 4,301,100
2,435,100 26.6% 2,962,100
1,954,800 1.1% 2,665,600
1,598,800 4.3% 1,759,500

In Japan, the downward trend of 2020 continued. The num-
ber of new cars sold fell by 3.5% to 3.7 million, which meant
that the 2021 total was below the four-million mark once
again. By contrast, India recorded significant growth, with
vehicle sales rising by 26.6% to 3.1 million units, also surpass-
ing the registrations of 2019. In Brazil, the weak level of the
previous year in the light vehicle market (cars and light
trucks) improved only slightly. With an increase of just 1.1% to
around 2.0 million units, a return to the 2019 sales volume of
2.7 million remained a distant prospect. Russia also failed to
reach the pre-crisis level of 2019, but posted a 4.3% increase
with around 1.7 million new vehicle registrations.

Annual performance for China’s car market better

than 2019

Following three years of decline, in 2021 the world’s largest
car market registered growth again. The People’s Republic
of China largely overcame the COVID-19 pandemic and its
consequences for car sales, ending 2021 with a market vol-
ume of 211 million new registrations. This represented an
increase of 6.6% and meant that among the world’s three
most important sales regions, which also include the USA
and Europe (EU, EFTA and UK), China recorded the largest
growth. The annual result even surpassed that of the pre-
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crisis year 2019. In December alone, around 2.4 million vehi-
cles were sold, corresponding to an increase of 2.0% com-
pared to December 2020. Nonetheless, China remained far
behind the record market volume achieved in 2017.

US car market recovers only slowly
New car registrations in the USA increased by 3.1% in 2021.
However, with just under 14.9 million vehicles sold, the mar-

GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT

ket for light vehicles (cars and light trucks) was unable to
reach the 2019 pre-crisis level of around 17.0 million units. In
December 2021, 1.2 million new vehicles were sold, which
represented a month-on-month fall of just over a quarter
(-26.0%). Sales of light trucks (+5.0%) developed markedly
more dynamically than those of cars (-2.0%).

REGISTRATIONS OF NEW CARS IN EUROPE (EU, EFTA AND UK)

in units 2021
Germany 2,622,100
France 1,659,000
United Kingdom 1,647,200
Italy 1,458,000
Spain 859,500
Other European countries 3,529,100
EUROPE (EU, EFTA and UK) 11,774,900

European car market remains in the red

The European car market has not yet recovered from the
pandemic-related downturn. In 2021, new car registrations in
Europe (EU, EFTA and UK) totalled slightly less than 11.8 mil-
lion, down 1.5% from the previous year (2020: 12.0 million).
However, divergent developments were observable in the
five largest individual markets. While Italy achieved an in-
crease of 5.5%, Spain and the United Kingdom recorded only

Share 2020 Share Change 2019
22.3% 2,917,700 24.4% -10.1% 3,607,300
14.1% 1,650,700 13.8% 0.5% 2,214,300
14.0% 1,631,100 13.6% 1.0% 2,311,100
12.3% 1,381,800 11.6% 5.5% 1,916,900

7.3% 851,200 7.1% 1.0% 1,258,200
30.0% 3,526,200 29.5% 0.1% 4,497,900
100% 11,958,100 100% -1.5% 15,805,700

slight growth of 1.0% and France added just 0.5%. Further-
more, Germany’s car market lagged far behind with a 10.1%
drop to 2.6 million new registrations. In particular, the Euro-
pean market suffered an overall decline towards the end of
the year and in December, only 950,200 new passenger cars
were registered, representing a decline of 22% compared to
the same month of 2020.

REGISTRATIONS OF NEW CARS IN EUROPE (EU, EFTA AND UK) BY DRIVE TECHNOLOGY

in units 2021
Petrol-driven cars 4,756,900
Diesel-driven cars 2,078,000
Battery electric vehicles (BEV) 1,218,400
Plug-in hybrid vehicles (PHEV) 1,045,000
Hybrid electric vehicles (HEV) 2,409,500
Natural gas vehicles (NGV)" 43,500
Other alternatively-powered vehicles (APV)" 226,700
EUROPE (EU, EFTA and UK) 11,778,000

" Data for 2019 not available seperately

Despite record e-car sales, Europe lags behind China

In the fast-growing global market for battery-powered cars,
European carmakers are under pressure. In 2021, new regis-
trations for battery cars doubled worldwide to 4.5 million
units. However, every second e-car came from China, and as
the Asian industry found a better way to deal with the semi-
conductor crisis, the task of regaining the lost market shares

Share 2020 Share Change 2019
40.4% 5,760,100 48.1% -17.4% 9,216,000
17.6% 3,106,200 26.0% -33.1% 4,794,400
10.3% 745,600 6.2% 63.4% 360,200
8.9% 620,200 52% 68.5% 199,700
20.5% 1,520,700 12.7% 58.5% 956,800

0.4% 55,600 0.5% -21.7%
255,600

1.9% 153,600 1.3% 47.6%
100% 11,961,400 100% -1.5% 15,782,700

on a global level presents European manufacturers with a
massive challenge.

Within the European domestic market (EU, EFTA and UK) a
new sales record was established for cars employing electri-
cal drive technologies. Moreover, December 2021 saw an
unprecedented market picture, as for the first time more new
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cars with purely electrical powertrains were sold than mod-
els fitted with diesel engines. Demand for battery-powered
cars and plug-in hybrids increased significantly and for the
year as a whole reached a share of registrations in excess of
20%. Hybrid-electric cars alone accounted for a fifth of new
registrations across Europe in 2021, thus overtaking the
market share of diesel cars for the first time.

In Europe (EU, EFTA and UK) numerous government support
programmes in the form of direct payments or tax breaks,
as well as purchase incentives from manufacturers and
dealers, boosted the sales of alternatively-powered vehicles.
However, growth could have been even stronger had pro-
duction not been restricted by the shortage of semiconduc-
tors. Indeed, owing due to the industry’s inability to deliver,
during December 2021, sales in the major automotive mar-
kets developed far more slowly than in the course of the year
as a whole.

Across Europe, the new registrations of all types of vehicles
employing alternative power technologies increased by
47.6%, while petrol-driven cars saw a drop in registrations of
17.4% and diesel-powered cars one of 33.1% as compared to
2020. In the European market natural gas-powered cars also
suffered a 21.7% downturn, which reduced their already
marginal share from 0.5% to 0.4%.

GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT

Petrol-driven vehicles accounted for only 40.4% of all new
passenger car registrations in 2021. This means that within
Europe (EU, EFTA and UK) their market volume shrank to
4.8 million units, which was roughly half the 2019 figure.
Moreover, the share of newly registered diesel-powered
passenger cars decreased even further, dropping by around
one third from 26.0% to 17.6%.

Across Europe, vehicles powered other than exclusively by
petrol or diesel accounted for 42.0% of new registrations
(2020: 25.4%). These registrations were divided up between
battery electric vehicles (BEV) with 10.3% (2020: 6.2%),
plug-in hybrid electric vehicles (PHEV) with 8.9% (2020:
5.2%), hybrid electric vehicles (HEV) with 20.5% (2020: 12.7%)
and alternatively-powered vehicles (APV; powered with liquid
gas, ethanol or other fuels) with 1.9% (2020: 1.3%). The most
significant increases were recorded by plug-in hybrids with a
plus of 68.5%, followed by purely battery-powered cars with
+63.4% and hybrid-e-cars with +58.5%.

If the 2021 registrations in the individual European markets
are subjected to a comparison, the following picture
emerges. As far as new e-cars were concerned, i.e. purely
electric vehicles and plug-in hybrids, Germany was far
ahead with a share of 26.0%. The United Kingdom followed
with 18.5% and France with 18.3%. In Italy and Spain the
share was significantly lower at 9.3% and 7.8%, respec-
tively.

REGISTRATIONS OF NEW COMMERCIAL VEHICLES IN EUROPE (EU, EFTA AND UK)

in units 2021
Light commercial vehicles <3.5t 1,981,400
Medium commercial vehicles >3.5t to <16t 62,800
Heavy commercial vehicles >16t 278,800
Medium and heavy buses and coaches >3.5t 35,800
EUROPE (EU, EFTA and UK) 2,358,800

As far as commercial vehicles are concerned, an increase in
new registrations was recorded across Europe in 2021, al-
though to a large extent this was due to the weak 2020 period
of reference. The COVID-19 related slump in the previous year
(-19.4%) was followed by an upturn of more than a tenth with
a total of 2.4 million newly registered commercial vehicles.
However, owing to the chip shortage, sales figures for light
commercial vehicles fell significantly in the second half of
2021 and in particular, this decline was tangible in Germany,
Spain, France and Italy, which constitute the four most import-
ant EU markets.

Share 2020 Share Change 2019
84.0% 1,793,300 84.3% 10.5% 2,187,000
2.7% 63,700 3.0% -1.4% 79,100
11.8% 233,900 11.0% 19.2% 325,200
1.5% 35,800 1.7% -0.1% 46,300
100% 2,126,700 100% 10.9% 2,637,600
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As in 2020, registrations of light commercial vehicles up to
3.5 tonnes remained just below the two-million mark in 2021.
This constituted a 10% increase in this vehicle class, which has
amarket share of 84.0%, and was therefore particularly signif-
icant, but nonetheless insufficient for a return to the pre-crisis
total of 2.6 million new commercial vehicle registrations in
Europe (EU, EFTA and UK). After suffering the biggest losses
in the previous year, sales of heavy trucks of more than
16 tonnes recorded the strongest growth with an increase of
19.2%.

Sources: German Automotive Industry Association (VDA), European Auto-
mobile Manufacturers Association (ACEA), “Automobilwoche”
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2. GROUP BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT AND
STATUS

SALES REVENUES

During the 2021 financial year, consolidated POLYTEC
GROUP sales revenues amounted to EUR 555.9 million and
were therefore 6.5% or EUR 33.9 million above the figure
for the preceding year (EUR 522.0 million) owing to the
COVID-19-related lower comparative basis.

The increase in sales revenues for the year as a whole is due
mainly to higher demand in the Passenger Cars & Light
Commercial Vehicles market area. By contrast, sales reve-
nues in the Commercial Vehicles market area declined
significantly as compared to the previous year. The Smart
Plastic & Industrial Applications market area remained
roughly at the 2020 level.

In the second half-year and especially in the third quarter of
2021, the disruptions in the international automotive industry
intensified due to the shortage of raw materials and, in par-
ticular, owing to supply bottlenecks for semiconductors. The
negative effects caused by this interference to supply chains
and international logistics capacities, as well as the continu-
ing corona pandemic, culminated in the slowing down of the
industry’s global upturn.

These and other factors resulted in significantly reduced
call-off volumes and repeated call-off cancellations by auto-
motive customers at extremely short notice, which in the sec-
ond half of 2021 led to substantial revenue losses and signif-
icant additional costs for the POLYTEC GROUP.
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SALES REVENUES BY MARKET AREA

in EUR m 2021 Share 2020 2019
Passenger Cars & 390.2 70.2% 328.7 388.8
Light Commercial

Vehicles

Commercial 924 16.6% 118.3 158.4
Vehicles

Smart Plastic & 73.3 13.2% 75.0 79.9
Industrial

Applications

POLYTEC GROUP 555.9 100% 5220 627.1

Smart Plastic &
Industrial Applications
13.2%

Commercial
Vehicles
16.6%

Passenger Cars
&LCV
~_ 70.2%

In the 2021 financial year, sales revenues in the Passenger
Cars & Light Commercial Vehicles market area increased
significantly, rising by 18.7%, or EUR 61.5 million, to
EUR 390.2 million (previous year: EUR 328.7 million). They
thus returned to the pre-COVID level (2019: EUR 388.8 mil-
lion). As compared to 2020, the share of the market area
generating the strongest sales revenues for the POLYTEC
GROUP was 7.2 percentage points higher at 70.2% (2020:
63.0%).

As compared to the 2020 financial year, revenues in the
Commercial Vehicles market area in 2021 were 21.9%,
or EUR 259 million, lower at EUR 92.4 million (2020:
EUR 118.3 million). However, in view of the fact that its sales
revenues from truck components had been falling for several
periods, the POLYTEC GROUP had already reduced its
production capacities in this area during 2020. In the 2021
financial year, the share of the Commercial Vehicles market
area dropped by 6.0 percentage points to 16.6% (2020:
22.6%).
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Sales revenues in the Smart Plastic & Industrial Applications
market area amounted to EUR 73.3 million in the 2021
financial year and thus remained at approximately the level
of the previous year (EUR 75.0 million). Smart Plastic &
Industrial Applications recorded a highly significant increase
in sales revenue in the third quarter of 2021, which is attrib-
utable to the commissioning of additional production facili-
ties for the manufacture of logistics boxes. These addition-
ally generated sales revenues almost compensated for
those lost during the 2021 financial year owing to the sale of
the “Industrial” business unit (beginning of December 2020).
In year-on-year terms, the share of the Smart Plastic &
Industrial Applications market areain the POLYTEC GROUP’s
consolidated sales revenues declined by 1.2 percentage
points to 13.2% (2020: 14.4%).

SALES REVENUES BY CATEGORY

inEURm 2021 Share 2020 2019
Parts and 489.7 88.1% 463.8 567.7
other sales

revenues

Tooling and other 66.2 11.9% 58.2 59.4
engineering sales

revenues

POLYTEC GROUP 555.9 100% 5220 627.1

As compared to the preceding year, in the series production
area the POLYTEC GROUP recorded an increase of 5.6%
to EUR 489.7 million. Tooling and other engineering sales
revenues are subject to cyclical fluctuations and rose sharply
by 13.8% to EUR 66.2 million.
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SALES REVENUES BY REGION

in EURm 2021 Share 2020 2019
Austria 36.7 6.6% 223 44.4
Germany 319.4 57.5% 285.6 329.4
UK 45.7 8.2% 433 59.2
Sweden 233 4.2% 245 31.6
Hungary 241 4.3% 12.0 253
Other EU countries 78.0 14.0% 103.7 97.0
Other countries 28.7 5.2% 30.6 40.2
POLYTEC GROUP 555.9 100% 5220 627.1
Other
countries
5.2% Austria
Other FU 6.6%
countries
14.0%
Hungary
4.3%
Sweden - Germany
0, d
A% 57w
UK
82% /

The breakdown of sales revenues by region is determined on
the basis of the location of the customers. As compared to
the previous year, revenues in Germany, the POLYTEC
GROUP’s strongest national market in terms of sales reve-
nues, rose by 11.8%, or EUR 33.8 million, to EUR 319.4 million.
In Hungary and Austria, sales revenues increased signifi-
cantly. The United Kingdom also showed a slight increase as
compared to the previous year, but as exemplified by the
Netherlands and the Czech Republic, POLYTEC GROUP sales
revenues in the other EU countries were lower.
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EARNINGS DEVELOPMENT

GROUP EARNINGS FIGURES

GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT

Unit
Sales revenues EURmM
EBITDA EURmM
EBITDA margin (EBITDA/sales revenues) %
EBIT EURmM
EBIT margin (EBIT/sales revenues) %
Result after income tax EURmM
Average capital employed EUR mM
ROCE before tax (EBIT/average capital %
employed)
Earnings per share EUR
Dividend per share (proposal to the AGM) EUR

2021 Change 2020 2019
555.9 6.5% 5220 6271
44.8 -7.1% 48.3 68.4
8.1 -1.2%-pts. 9.3 10.9
123 -5.1% 13.0 326
2.2 -0.3%-pts. 25 52
7.0 -25.7% 9.5 231
330.7 -5.2% 348.8M 370.5Y
3.7 0.0%-pts. 3.7 8.7
0.32 10.3% 0.29 1.02
0.10 -66.6% 0.30 0.00

" The balance sheets as at 31 December 2019 and 2020 were adjusted owing to the retrospective amortisation of goodwill, which resulted from a sample
audit by the Austrian Financial Reporting Enforcement Panel (OePR). For further details, please refer to the explanations under item D. 19 of the notes
to the consolidated financial statements. Similarly, short- and long-term interest-bearing contractual assets were retroactively adjusted in capital
employed. These are allocated to net financial liabilities and net financial assets respectively.

SALES REVENUES AND
EBITDA MARGIN DEVELOPMENT

6271 5220 5559

10.9%

9.3%

8.1%

2019 2020 2021

I sales revenues in EUR m —QO EBITDA margin

MATERIAL EXPENSES

As a result of the distortions in the international commodity
markets, at the beginning of the second quarter of 2021 pur-
chasing prices demonstrated an abrupt and drastic rise.
Moreover, further price increases, especially for energy,
were recorded in the course of the year. As a result, the ma-
terial ratio (material expenses/sales revenues) amounted to
491% in the first quarter of 2021, 52.5% in the second quarter
and 55.8% in the third quarter. The material ratio for the full
financial year was 51.2%, which as compared to the same
period of the previous year represented an increase of
1.9 percentage points (2020: 49.3%). In the 2021 financial
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year, the POLYTEC GROUP's material expenses increased
by 10.5%, or EUR 27.0 million, to EUR 284.5 million (2020:
EUR 257.6 million).

PERSONNEL EXPENSES

In 2021, the POLYTEC GROUP’s personnel expenses fell by
EUR 14.4 million, from EUR 194.8 million to EUR 180.3 million.
In combination with increased sales revenues, the personnel
ratio (personnel expenses/sales revenue) was 4.9 percentage
points lower at 32.4% (2020: 37.3%). However, a comparison
with 2020 is inappropriate owing to capacity adjustments,
the utilisation of COVID-19 short-time working models and
the deconsolidation of the "Industrial” business unit.

EBITDA

In the 2021 financial year, POLYTEC GROUP EBITDA totalled
EUR 44.8 million (2020: EUR 48.3 million) and as compared to
the previous year, the EBITDA margin was 1.2 percentage
points lower, falling from 9.3% to 8.1%. In the previous year,
the deconsolidation of the “Industrial” business unit had a
positive effect on EBITDA of EUR 17.0 million. However, in
2021 the turbulent developments in the raw material and en-
ergy markets had a noticeable impact upon the group’s
earnings situation, especially from the second quarter
onwards. In addition, the POLYTEC GROUP’s earnings
decreased due to significantly reduced call-off volumes,
repeated call-off cancellations by automotive customers at
extremely short notice and the increased expense emanat-
ing from considerably more difficult cost adjustment mea-
sures.
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AMORTISATION AND DEPRECIATION

As compared to the same period of the preceding year, in
2021 depreciation and amortisation declined by EUR 2.8 mil-
lion to EUR 32.5 million. This fall can be traced to capacity
adjustments and the deconsolidation of the “Industrial” busi-
ness unit. An increase derived from the commissioning of the
new plant in South Africa in the second half of the year.

EBIT

POLYTEC GROUP EBIT in 2021 totalled EUR 12.3 million
(2020: EUR 13.0 million). By comparison with 2020, the EBIT
margin fell by 0.3 percentage points from 2.5% to 2.2%.

FINANCIAL AND GROUP RESULT

The POLYTEC GROUP’s financial result amounted to minus
EUR 2.7 million (2020: EUR -5.3 million), the tax rate was
26.6% (2020: tax income of EUR 1.8 million), and earnings
after tax totalled EUR 7.0 million (2020: EUR 9.5 million). Fol-
lowing an adjustment for minority interests owing to the sale
of the “Industrial” business unit in December 2020, the parent
company’s result for the previous year was EUR 6.4 million.
Earnings per share amounted to EUR 0.32 and were thus
above the previous year’s result (EUR 0.29). The POLYTEC
Holding AG’s Board of Directors will propose to the Annual
General Meeting that a dividend of EUR 0.10 per eligible
share be distributed for the 2021 financial year.

ASSETS AND FINANCIAL STATUS

INVESTMENTS
in EURm 2021 Change 2020 2019
Investments in 360 153.4% 14.2 458

tangible assets

During the 2021 financial year, investments in tangible assets
increased by EUR 21.8 million to EUR 36.0 million. This re-
flected the fact that owing to the COVID-19 lockdown, apart
from a few significant measures, investment activity in the
previous year was limited or postponed to later periods. In
particular, investments in the 2021 financial year focused on
the expansion of capacity at the Ebensee plant in Austria
and the final construction work at the new production plant
in the East London Industrial Development Zone in South
Africa.
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KEY GROUP BALANCE SHEET AND
FINANCIAL FIGURES

in EURm 31.12. 31.12. 31.12.
2021 Change 2020 2019
Equity 238.9 1.7% 234.8M 239.9M
Equity ratio (equity/ 42.0 0.7%-pts. 41.3" 40.5"
total assets) in %
Total assets 568.5 -0.1% 568.9" 593.0M
Net working capital? 65.4 23.5% 53.0% 78.2%
Net working capital/ 11.8  1.7%-pts. 10.1® 12.5%

sales revenues in %

» The balance sheets as at 31 December 2019 and 2020 were adjusted
due to the retrospective amortisation of goodwill resulting from a sam-
ple audit by the Austrian Financial Reporting Enforcement Panel (OePR).
For further details, please refer to the information under item D. 19 of the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

2 Net working capital = current non-financial assets minus current non-
financial liabilities

» Net working capital were adjusted retroactively for current and non-
current interest-bearing contract assets. These are allocated to net
financial liabilities or net financial assets. For further details, please refer
to the explanations under item D. 5 “Contract assets/liabilities from con-
tracts with customers” in the notes to the consolidated financial state-
ments.

At 31 December 2021, total group assets amounted to
EUR 568.5 million and thus remained at the 2020 level. As
compared to the previous year, the equity ratio as at the
balance sheet date improved by 0.7 percentage points to
42.0% and therefore continues to demonstrate solidity. In
comparison to the 31 December 2020 balance sheet date,
working capital showed a marked increase of EUR 12.4 mil-
lion, or 23.5%, to EUR 65.4 million. This is primarily due to the
increase in contract assets from contracts with customers,
and inventories.
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BALANCE SHEET STRUCTURE OF THE POLYTEC GROUP

Assets Equity and liabilities
I 20.6% I 25.5% I 25.2%
43.8% 47.8% 43.7%
38.9% 33.2% 32.8%
56.2% 52.2% 56.3% 40.5% 41.3% 42.0%
2019 2020 2021 2019 2020 2021
B Current assets B Current liabilities
B Non-current assets Non-current liabilities
| Equity
Unit 2021 Change 2020 2019
Net debt (+)/assets (-) EURm 79.6" 20.8%" 660" 108.8"
Net debt (+)/assets (-)/EBITDA Years 1.78" 30.0%" 1377 159"
Gearing (net debt (+)/assets (-)/equity) - 0.33" 17.9%"Y 0.28" 0.45"

" Current and non-current interest-bearing contract assets were retroactively allocated to net financial liabilities or net financial assets.

Compared to the 31 December 2020 balance sheet date, net
debt was 20.8%, or EUR 13.6 million, higher at EUR 79.6 mil-
lion. This rise was due primarily to the marked increase in
working capital. The notional debt repayment period was
prolonged from 1.37 to 1.78 years and as compared to the
end of 2020, the gearing ratio rose from 0.28 to 0.33.

CASH FLOW

in EUR m 2021 2020 2019
Cash flow from 22.7 45.8 24.4
operating activities

Cash flow from -25.2 121 -48.6
investing activities

Cash flow from -18.1 -22.8 6.1
financing activities

Change in cash and -20.5 35.0 -18.1
cash equivalents

Final cash and 69.7 90.4 55.6

cash equivalent balance

In the 2021 financial year, cash flow from operating activities
declined from EUR 45.8 million to EUR 22.7 million. This was
largely the result of the increase in trade and other receiv-
ables and contract assets of EUR 11.6 million.

Cash flow from investment activities amounted to minus
EUR 25.2 million, as during the 2021 financial year, invest-
ments were completed that had been restricted or post-
poned in 2020 as a result of the COVID-19 lockdowns. The
aforementioned figure also includes a positive effect of
EUR 8.0 million derived from the sale of fixed assets and
assets held for sale.

Cash flow from financing activities totalled minus
EUR 18.1 million (2020: EUR -22.8 million). The main effects in
the 2021 financial year consisted of a redemption of
EUR 24.0 million from the promissory note loans issued, as
well as the distribution of a dividend of EUR 6.6 million and
inflows from borrowing. For the first time, this figure also in-
cludes green financing of EUR 12.9 million.
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On the 31 December 2021 balance sheet date, the POLYTEC
GROUP disposed over cash and cash equivalents of
EUR 69.7 million. As a result of proactive cash flow manage-

EMPLOYEES

During the past three years the average numbers of
POLYTEC GROUP employees (including leasing personnel)
and their geographic spread were as shown below. No short-
time working effects are accounted for in the personnel data
(in full-time equivalents - FTE):

in FTE 2021 Share 2020 2019
Austria 479 13.4% 522 554
Germany 1,763 49.2% 2,006 2,089
Other EU countries 925 25.8% 955 1,034
UK 314 8.7% 369 474
Other countries 104 2.9% 87 193
POLYTEC GROUP 3,585 100% 3,939 4,344
Sales revenues per 155.1 1325 144.4
employee in EUR k
Other
countries
UK 2.9% Austria
8.7% 13.4%
Other EU
countries  / Germany
258% / N 49.2%

On the basis of an annual comparison, average group work-
force numbers (including leasing personnel) fell by 354 (FTE),
or 9.0%, from 3,939 to 3,585. The average leasing personnel
quota was 11.2% (2020: 6.5%). At EUR 155.1 k of sales reve-
nues per employee (including leasing personnel) were
higher than in the previous year. On the 31 December 2021
balance sheet date, the POLYTEC GROUP workforce (exclud-
ing leasing personnel) numbered 3,420. Owing to production
structure adjustments and the deconsolidation of the
“Industrial” business unit (around 130 employees at three
locations), the number of employees fell by a total of 216, or
5.9%, as compared to the previous year’s balance sheet date
(3,636 employees).
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ment, payment flows could be flexibly adjusted and opti-
mised to meet both internal and external requirements at
any time.

3. REPORT ON
PROBABLE GROUP
DEVELOPMENT
AND RISKS

OUTLOOK FOR THE DEVELOPMENT
OF THE AUTOMOTIVE INDUSTRY

The effects of the corona pandemic are likely to extend well
into 2022 and this situation is now being further complicated
by the production interruptions and supply bottlenecks re-
sulting from the war in Ukraine. These will seriously impact
the European automotive market, as Ukraine is one of the
world’s most important suppliers of cable harnesses, as well
as of neon, palladium and nickel. Therefore, a significant
price increase is expected for these products and raw mate-
rialsin 2022. Moreover, at present the question as to whether
or not the supply of fossil fuels from Russia for energy
production in Europe can be secured in the medium- and
long-term remains unclear.

The chip crisis is also not over and may be additionally exac-
erbated by the war. Indeed, according to experts, at best the
current shortages are only likely to ease during the rest of
2022. At the moment, persistent supply disruptions and
especially a lack of semiconductors are preventing manu-
facturers from meeting rising demand. However, the accel-
erating transition to e-mobility will probably continue
unchecked in the coming year.

In the first half of the year, the shortage of semiconductors
will in all likelihood put a brake on deliveries. According to the
British market research institute LMC Automotive, the scarci-
ty of semiconductors will reduce the number of cars pro-
duced worldwide by almost four million units in 2022, with
80% of the estimated impact occurring in the first half of the
year. However, as demand for new cars increases and man-
ufacturers register an increasing number of orders, LMC
estimates that sales figures will rise noticeably in the second
half-year.
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Nonetheless, the imbalance between supply and demand
will quite possibly lead to further price increases for raw ma-
terials. Consequently, a significant price rise may occur with
regard to both new and used cars, whereby the latter are
already more expensive than ever before due to the supply
shortage. A rapid recovery is unlikely: according to experts,
price increases will not be limited to 2022, but will continue
into 2023.

In Europe (EU, EFTA and UK), around 18.5 million new car
registrations are expected in 2022 and the forecast sales
volume of almost EUR 350 billion in this market has created
a degree of confidence amongst analysts and the represen-
tatives of automobile associations, as it would mean that
Europe could return to the pre-crisis level. However, the glob-
al market is unlikely to rebound and according to calcula-
tions by IHS Markit, in 2022 car sales worldwide will only in-
crease by 3.7% to 82.4 million units. Moreover, US sales are
even predicted to be well below this global average, increas-
ing by only 2.9% to just under 15.5 million units. The Chinese
passenger car market is also expected to grow at a be-
low-average rate of 24.2 million new registrations (+3.3%).

In 2022, European production of battery-powered cars is
forecast to exceed the one-million mark for the first time. This
would correspond to a 42% increase in this vehicle segment,
which means that the European share of purely electrically
powered vehicles and plug-in hybrids would account for
one-third of annual global production. It is anticipated that
as compared to 2021, worldwide e-vehicle production will in-
crease by 37% and the market share of plug-in hybrids in
global output will amount to 40%.

The industry association VDA also expects growth in the
commercial vehicle sector, albeit at a much lower level than
in the years before the crisis. The strong increase in demand
is offset by a limited supply due to bottlenecks and when
dealing with orders, manufacturers have to refer their cus-
tomers to delivery times of six to twelve months and pass on
cost increases to buyers. Nevertheless, production is expect-
ed to rise by six to 19% in 2022 in the main regions except
China. In the European market, the recovery will be delayed
further, as the shortage of semiconductors has had a partic-
ularly severe impact. Conversely, continuous growth is ex-
pected during the next three years with IHS Markit forecast-
ing a 5% increase in registrations in Europe (EU, EFTA and
UK) for 2022 and a 9% increase in 2023.

Meanwhile, China is investing increasingly in the develop-
ment of electric commercial vehicles and is expected to see
fewer fossil fuel related registrations than in the previous
year. Electric power trains are also gaining ground among
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commercial vehicles in Europe, where according to IHS
Markit, 14% of buses and 8% of trucks will be electric by
2028.

Sources: German Association of the Automotive Industry (VDA), “Auto-
mobilwoche”, LMC Automotive, IHS Markit (IHS)

OUTLOOK FOR THE GROUP'S
EARNINGS DEVELOPMENT

The management of the POLYTEC GROUP suspends its fore-
cast for the 2022 financial year since it is currently not possi-
ble to make a qualified assessment of the future develop-
ment of the economic environment. The main elements of
uncertainty are the ongoing economic upheavals caused by
the corona pandemic, the shortage of raw materials and
other materials, in particular semiconductors, disruptions of
the international supply chains and the effects of the war in
Ukraine. All of these factors may have an impact on the
revenue and earnings development of the POLYTEC GROUP
in the 2022 financial year. In particular, it cannot be estimat-
ed to what extent additional costs arising for the above-
mentioned reasons can be accounted for in sustainable

pricing.

The POLYTEC GROUP’s management responds flexibly and
promptly to the continuous changes in the business environ-
ment and coordinates closely with the group’s customers
and suppliers in order to overcome the current challenges
together.

4. RISK REPORTING AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

After two years, the global economy and the automotive in-
dustry are still facing the consequences and indirect impacts
of the COVID-19 crisis.

The tangible, general economic recovery during 2021 could
have been even more dynamic had it not been hampered by
supply chain disruptions. In fact, numerous force majeure
notifications from a wide range of raw material suppliers and
disruptions in international logistics operations led to signifi-
cant shortages and adverse effects upon the flow of goods.

Since the beginning of the second quarter of 2021, there
have been sudden and savage price increases for numerous
raw materials and this phase of above-average purchase
prices in the raw material markets continued in the second
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half of the year. In addition, energy and oil prices began to
rise and then subsequently accelerated.

From the middle of 2021, the numbers of monthly new car
registrations in the POLYTEC GROUP’s main markets contin-
ved to decline significantly. Furthermore, the autumn recov-
ery promised to suppliers by the OEMs, during which they
would recover the vehicle production lost up to the summer,
failed to materialise. Indeed, during the second half of 2021,
the OEMs were scarcely able to provide reliable information
on planned quantities and call-off dates.

Since the creation of additional or new production capacity
for the manufacture of semiconductors requires long lead
times, car manufacturers remain confronted with consider-
able supply problems, which repeatedly lead to temporary
plant closures and subsequently to extremely short-term
call-off reductions amongst suppliers. The rapidity of de-
mand adjustments also makes short-term (weeks) and
medium-term planning (months) considerably more difficult
and consequently causes significant additional costs.

Owing to the escalating hostilities in Ukraine since the end of
February 2022 and the extensive economic sanctions im-
posed upon Russia, the availability of raw materials, semi-
finished and finished products within Europe and in other
regions has already been greatly reduced. Furthermore, this
problem has been accompanied by sharp price increases for
materials, oil, gas and electricity. It can therefore be as-
sumed with a high degree of probability that the automotive
industry will continue to experience production interruptions
and irregular call-offs.

Representatives of the automotive suppliers interests warn
that a wave of insolvencies, especially amongst small and
medium-sized automotive suppliers, could result from per-
sistently low and irregular call-offs in tandem with the grow-
ing financing burdens emanating from massive price rises.

For an indefinite period, the risks attached to the develop-
ments in the war in Ukraine will clearly constitute the great-
est uncertainty for almost all sectors, including the automo-
tive industry.

At present, it is impossible to fully assess the degree to which
the aforementioned risks and uncertainties will influence the
POLYTEC GROUP’s revenue and earnings development in the
future and whether any additional risks and uncertainties will
surface. Whatever the case, the management is following
developments extremely closely and has initiated numerous
measures to keep the financial impact upon the POLYTEC
GROUP to a minimum.
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As far as detailed risk reporting is concerned and in particu-
lar with sales market, volume, procurement market, invest-
ment, production and climate risks, as well as financial risks
such as loan, liquidity, currency rand interest rate risks, in
order to avoid redundant text, we would refer you to the in-
formation contained under G. 2 in the group notes. In order
to avoid textual redundancies reference should be made to
the information under item G. 2 of the notes to the consoli-
dated financial statements.

5. RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT REPORT

During the 2021 financial year, the POLYTEC GROUP em-
ployed some EUR 18.7 million for research and development
activities (2020: EUR 15.9 million). The research cost ratio
(R&D costs/sales revenues) rose from 3.0% to 3.4%.

The development of new products and applications, primar-
ily for the automotive industry, constitutes one of the
POLYTEC GROUP’s key competences. As a strategic corner-
stone, it is an integral part of the group’s foundations and
over the past decades has made a major contribution to its
success. Moreover, the requirements of the group’s long-
term customers represent the constant focal point of the
numerous and labour-intensive, new and further develop-
ments.

The POLYTEC GROUP endeavours to impress its customers
proactively at any early stage with innovative applications
and technology combinations, as well as complete product
and manufacturing concepts, which are also aimed at
strengthening group competitiveness. In this connection, the
group does not think in terms of technologies, but rather
solutions and thus convinces during the engineering phase
with an imposing depth of value added that extends from
material production and concept development to simulation.
POLYTEC’s engineering staff develop and plan innovative
solutions in a diversity of plastic technology areas on the ba-
sis of comprehensive experience and profound specialist
knowledge.

In combination with the latest production know-how, an
enormous diversity of materials and processes ranging from
injection moulding and various fibre composites to polyure-
thane applications enables the POLYTEC GROUP to supply
its customers with tailor-made solutions that offer top quality
at an attractive price-performance ratio. Apart from the
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integration of an increasing number of functions in plastic
parts and the ongoing expansion of the possibilities for the
substitution of metals, the development of new materials
and processes aimed at making plastic parts still lighter and
more stable represents one of the POLYTEC GROUP’s core
activities.

The experience gathered by POLYTEC during the manufac-
ture of highly complex vehicle parts and systems can also be
utilised in the Smart Plastic & Industrial Applications area.
Not merely development, material and production know-
how is involved in this connection, but also logistics, product
complexity and operational excellence. Above all, this makes
POLYTEC’s capabilities interesting for customers seeking
solutions for products subject to stringent demands regard-
ing surfaces or strict technological requirements, as well as
multi-stage production processes and complex logistical
problems. In this connection, the POLYTEC GROUP possesses
both the necessary competence and the required resources.

The topic of e-mobility offers clear-cut opportunities for the
POLYTEC GROUP and in recent years, its development engi-
neers have placed a special focus on the question as to
which components in an e-vehicle can be manufactured
from lightweight materials. This is because in view of the
heavy batteries required for the drive system, e-powered
vehicles should weigh as little as possible in every other
regard.

In many cases, plastic components such as vehicle under-
bodies, battery boxes and complex acoustic solutions meet
this demand for lightness to perfection. Conversely, the
trend towards e-mobility also confronts POLYTEC with fresh
challenges, as the components for e-vehicles partly require
utterly different solutions to those needed by vehicles with
conventional drive systems. In e-vehicles the focus is no lon-
ger on engine noise attenuation, but rather the minimisation
of exterior and road noise. Therefore, concepts have to be
newly evolved and developed.
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6. KEY FEATURES

OF THE INTERNAL
CONTROL AND

RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
WITH REGARD TO THE
ACCOUNTING PROCESS

The Board of Directors is responsible for implementing an
appropriate internal control and risk management system
for the accounting process and financial reporting. Suitable
organisational measures and controls ensure that all the
relevant legal requirements necessary for complete, correct,
timely and orderly entries in the books and other records
are met.

The entire process, from procurement to payment, is subject
to strict regulations and group-wide valid guidelines that are
intended to prevent any related risks such as CEO fraud
scenarios. These measures and rules include, among others,
the separation of functions, signature directives and signa-
tory powers for payment authorisations on an exclusively
collective basis that are restricted to a small number of
employees, as well as system-supported checks by the soft-
ware employed.

The most important management control instrument is the
planning and reporting system, which has been implement-
ed across the group. In particular, this includes medium-term
planning with a three-year horizon, annual budget planning
and monthly reporting. The promptly issued monthly finan-
cial reports, which are drawn up by POLYTEC GROUP Finan-
cial Services, show the current development of all group
companies. The content of these reports has been stan-
dardised throughout the group and apart from an income
statement and balance sheet, also contains the main extrap-
olated key indicators and a deviation analysis.

The Board of Directors is constantly kept up to speed
regarding all relevant issues and risks by means of the uni-
form, group-wide financial reporting system and ad hoc
reports on major events. At its meetings, which are held at
least once a quarter, the Supervisory Board is informed
about current business developments, operative planning
and medium-term group strategy. In special cases the
Supervisory Board is also provided with direct and immedi-
ate information. Among other topics, the audit committee
meetings consider the internal control and risk manage-
ment.
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7. DISCLOSURES
REGARDING CAPITAL,
SHARE, VOTING AND
CONTROL RIGHTS, AND
ANY RELATED OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO § 243A

OF THE AUSTRIAN
COMMERCIAL CODE

As at the balance sheet date of 31 December 2021, the share
capital of POLYTEC Holding AG remained unchanged at
EUR 22.3 million divided into 22,329,585 bearer shares with a
nominal value of EUR 1.00 each. The group has no other
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types of shares. All shares have been admitted to trading in
the prime market segment of the Vienna Stock Exchange.

On the 31 December 2021 balance sheet date, the Huemer
Group was the only investor owning more than 10.0% of
share capital. It holds 29.04% of POLYTEC Holding AG share
capital (16.00% Huemer Holding GmbH and 13.04% Huemer
Invest GmbH). Apart from the aforementioned, on the
balance sheet date the Board of Directors knew of no stock-
holders with an interest in excess of 10.0% of share capital.
No stockholder disposes over special control rights.

VOTING RIGHT NOTIFICATIONS -
STOCKHOLDER STRUCTURE

POLYTEC Holding AG received three voting right notifications
in accordance with § 130 of the 2018 Austrian Stock Exchange
Act which affected the 2021 financial year. These are shown
in the table below:

Personages required to

provide notification Address/State

NN Group N.V. Amsterdam/Netherlands
LOYS Investment SA. Munsbach/Luxembourg
NN Group N.V. Amsterdam/Netherlands

Every change in material participations about which
POLYTEC Holding AG was informed after the 2021 balance
sheet date can be called up from the Investor Relations,
News - Participation Reports section of the company’s
website www.polytec-group.com.

As at 31 December 2021, on the basis of the 22,329,585
issued shares, the stockholder structure of POLYTEC Holding
AG had the following form:

Treasury shares
1.50%

Huemer Group

29.04%

Free float
~_ 69.46%

Absolute Relative
Date Reason voting rights  voting rights
26.01.2021 Disposal 1,093,351 4.90%
10.02.2021 Disposal 860,468 3.85%
26.03.2021 Disposal 886,351 3.97%
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The current composition of the stockholder structure can be
called up from the Investor Relations, Share section of the
company website www.polytec-group.com.
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MANAGERS’ TRANSACTIONS

During the 2021 financial year, POLYTEC Holding AG was
informed of managers’ transactions in accordance with
Article 19 MAR four times and published the required notifi-
cation in due time for each of these occasions. The transac-
tions are shown in the following table:
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Price per share

Person obliged to report Position Date Transaction Share volume in EUR
Peter Bernscher Board member 27.01.2021 Purchase 5,880 8.509
Peter Haidenek Board member 20.05.2021 Disposal 3,000 11.535
Peter Bernscher Board member 13.08.2021 Disposal 4,000 9.310
Heiko Gabbert Board member 14.12.2021 Purchase 5,000 6.817

Apart from these occurrences, during the 2021 financial
year POLYTEC Holding AG received no further reports re-
garding managers’ transactions from persons discharging
managerial responsibilities within POLYTEC Holding AG or
persons (natural or legal) closely associated with them.

An overview of managers’ transactions, including those that
took place after the balance sheet date can be called up
from the Market Data, Statistics, Managers’ Transactions
section of the website of the Vienna Stock Exchange
www.wienerborse.at.

TREASURY SHARES

During the 2021 financial year, the company did not pur-
chase or sell any treasury shares. On the balance sheet date
of 31 December 2021, POLYTEC Holding AG thus held an
unchanged total of 334,041 treasury shares, which repre-
sented a holding of roughly 1.5% of share capital. The stock
market value of these shares on the balance sheet date
amounted to around EUR 2.3 million (2020: EUR 2.5 million)
and their acquisition value to approximately EUR 1.9 million.
The authorisation of the Board of Directors to purchase trea-
sury shares, which is based on a resolution passed by the
215t Annual General Meeting on 13 July 2021, remains valid
until 12 January 2024.
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AUTHORISED CAPITAL

Pursuant to a resolution of the 19™ Annual General Meeting
on 10 May 2019, authorised capital (§ 169 of the Austrian
Stock Corporation Act) was approved. Following the consent
of the Supervisory Board, the Board of Directors is autho-
rised to increase share capital by up to a nominal amount of
EUR 6,698,875.00 through the issue of new shares at a mini-
mum issue price of EUR 1.00 each for a maximum period of
three years from the date of entry in the commercial register,
i.e. until 4 September 2022. The issue of new shares may also
be carried out with the exclusion of shareholders’ subscrip-
tion rights if the share capital is increased in return for a con-
tribution in kind of companies, operations, part operations or
participations in one or several companies.

OTHER INFORMATION

No indemnification agreements exist between the company
and the members of the Board of Directors in the eventuality
of a change in control. Equally, there are no indemnification
agreements for the Supervisory Board members and em-
ployees or any other major agreements which would be
affected by a change in control or a public takeover bid.
There are no provisions in the Articles of Association that go
beyond the statutory provisions for the appointment of
members of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory
Board, or are intended for amending the Articles of Associa-
tion. The POLYTEC HOLDING AG website is entered in the
company register under www.polytec-group.com.



POLYTEC 2021

8. NON-FINANCIAL
DECLARATION PURSUANT
TO § 267A OF THE
AUSTRIAN COMMERCIAL
CODE

Non-financial declaration pursuant to § 267a of the Austrian
Commercial Code and reporting with regard to the Austrian
Sustainability and Diversity Improvement Act (NaDiVeG).
Within the framework of the non-financial statement for the
2021 financial year, in accordance with the EU Taxonomy
Regulation and the supplementary delegated acts, for the
first time POLYTEC reports the share of taxonomy-eligible
and taxonomy-non-eligible group turnover, investments
(CapEx) and operating expenses (OpEx) that relate to the
environmental objectives "climate change mitigation” and
"climate change adaptation” formulated in the EU Taxonomy.

BUSINESS MODEL

Founded in 1986, the POLYTEC GROUP is a leading develop-
er and manufacturer of high-quality plastic components and
has some 3,400 employees on four continents. The Austria-
based company now offers its customers 36 years of
experience and know-how, not only as a complete supplier in
the injection moulding field, but also a specialist for fibre-
reinforced plastics and a producer of original accessories
made from plastic.
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POLYTEC numbers globally renowned marques from the
car and commercial vehicle industry among its customers
and is also increasingly supplying markets outside this sec-
tor. In both cases, the most important criteria for success
consist of innovative technologies, resource-protective pro-
cessing methods, perfect quality and absolute punctuality of
delivery in combination with competitive prices. In the auto-
motive and non-automotive fields, POLYTEC provides out-
standing value added depth in every segment. This entails
design and project development, the production of tooling
and semis for fibre composites, component simulation and
examination, as well as numerous plastics processing tech-
nologies. Furthermore, POLYTEC convinces through excellent
performance with regard to downstream processes such as
painting, assembly and just-in-time or just-in-sequence
delivery.

MATERIALITY

POLYTEC GROUP stakeholders are personages or groups
that have a justified interest in the development of the enter-
prise. The prompt recognition of their concerns and expecta-
tions leads to important findings in connection with opportu-
nities and risks. This information plays a significant role in the
action of the POLYTEC GROUP's management.
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The following external and internal stakeholders have been
identified as being of relevance to group activities:
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CUSTOMERS

e OEMs

e Tier 1 suppliers

e Industrial Applications clients

EMPLOYEES

e Members of the Board of Directors, CEOs and
executive managers

¢ Blue- and white-collar employees
(including leasing personnel)

e Employee representatives

* Recruitment market applicants

SUPPLIERS

e Suppliers of raw materials, materials, energy, etc.

e Subcontractors, suppliers for production (e.g. tooling)

¢ Plant and machinery manufacturers

e Services suppliers and consultants (maintenance, IT,
legal matters, further education bodies)

PUBLIC SECTOR

e Legislators on a European Union, Republic of Austria,
federal province and district level

* Agencies and authorities (especially for anti-trust and
competition law, commerce, labour inspection,
finance and taxation, financial market supervision)

CAPITAL MARKET

e Investors - the founding family Huemer

e Investors - institutional and private

e Debt capital markets

e Stock exchanges, banks and insurance companies,
auditors, credit protection associations

* Analysts, proxy advisors and rating agencies

e Financial market media

IDENTIFIED MATERIAL ISSUES

A list of pertinent issues was drawn up on the basis of the
POLYTEC GROUP’s corporate strategy (relevance from a
group perspective) taking into consideration the interests
and expectations of internal and external stakeholders iden-
tified from ongoing communications. This list was then
supplemented with the topics pinpointed by means of a
benchmark analysis of selected competitors, customers and
suppliers with the result that the following themes were de-
fined and prioritised according to their materiality:

e Long-term economic success and value increase

e Customer advantages and satisfaction

e Enhanced cost efficiency and value added generation
e Production of top-quality, innovative plastic products
* A consistent dividend policy

e Compliance
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OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

e Members of the Supervisory Board

¢ Media (specialist and social)

e NGOs (environmental, social), consumer protection

e Politicians, branch associations, trades unions, other
interest group representatives

e Competitors and other market participants

» Universities, research bodies and schools

e Neighbours

* Work safety and occupational health protection

e Employee advancement

e Optimisation and digitalisation of company processes

e Climate and environmental protection measures
(e.g. emission minimisation)

e Efficient energy use

e Resource conservation through the efficient use of raw
and other materials

¢ Waste avoidance and reduction

Information regarding these topics is contained in this and
other sections of the Management Report. Issues not dealt
with are currently the object of concept preparation.
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RISK REPORTING

Within the scope of its business activities, the POLYTEC GROUP
is subject to a variety of risks, which relate directly to entrepre-
neurial transactions. Risk management is therefore an inte-
gral part of POLYTECs strategy and all of its business
processes. The comprehensive certifications required by an
automotive industry supplier (e.g. TS ISO/16949:2016) already
specify appropriate regulations, the observance of which is
also monitored via external audits.

In line with the POLYTEC GROUP’s organisational structure,
risks are managed and monitored decentrally and close to
the market, especially in the course of ongoing business
processes. However, group headquarters provides the bulk of
financial risk management.

As far as detailed risk reporting is concerned and in particular
with regard to sales market, volume, procurement market,
investment, production and climate risks, as well as financial
risks such as loan, liquidity, currency rand interest rate risks, in
order to avoid textual redundancies reference should be
made to the information under item G. 2 of the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

THE NEW POLYTEC GROUP
MISSION STATEMENT

In the course of 2021, work commenced on adapting the
current POLYTEC GROUP mission statement, which has been
in place since the beginning of 2016, to the constant changes
in general conditions. POLYTEC will finalise its new mission
statement in 2022 and thus more clearly define its position-
ing.

In future, the POLYTEC GROUP’s mission statement will incor-
porate the “Corporate Aim”, “Mission” and “Identity” sections.
Whilst the first two of these have been formulated in a more
general and sectorally unrestricted manner and thus reflect
the long-term orientation of POLYTEC with greater clarity,
the “Identity” section has been more broadly defined. In
addition to POLYTEC’s tried and tested corporate values,
“Identity” now includes the group’s self-image in respect of
topics such as sustainability, employees, cooperation, cus-
tomer orientation and efficiency. This means that the princi-
ples and philosophy of the POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE, ONE
POLYTEC and POLYTEC PERFORMANCE & EXCELLENCE
SYSTEM, which represent the key excellence initiatives of
recent years, are also included in this fundamental docu-
ment.
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POLYTEC - THE NEW MISSION STATEMENT

CORPORATE AIM
WE TRANSFORM VISIONS INTO PLASTIC SOLUTIONS

MISSION

With carefully considered plastic solutions, we create sus-
tainable human benefits while simultaneously conserving
valuable resources.

IDENTITY
POLYTEC is the specialist for innovative and complex
plastic solutions.

. We think sustainably and have a long-term focus.
We actively assume our social and environmental respon-
sibilities and make a positive contribution.
We are a listed company with the founder as a strong core
shareholder. We act in a future-oriented and targeted
manner.

. We give our employees the opportunity to realise
their potential.
We participate in design with passion and by giving
meaning to both content and people, our activities at
POLYTEC create added value.

. In the spirit of the POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE, we pool
our capabilities in order to find optimum solutions for
our customers.

Every single employee is important in this regard.

. We work together as ONE POLYTEC.
We think in terms of a joint, cross-location company.

. During our day-to-day activities, we are guided by
the principles of the POLYTEC PERFORMANCE &
EXCELLENCE SYSTEM.

We act with courage, professionalism and pragmatism.

Strategic fine-tuning

In the course of updating the mission statement, it became
apparent that there was also a need for adjustments to
some aspects of the POLYTEC GROUP’s three strategic ob-
jectives. The focus in this regard was on the clarification and
prioritisation of the respective sub-goals. The area strate-
gies, initiatives and roadmaps behind the three strategic
objectives are now also being adapted accordingly.
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Objective 1: A strengthening of the market position in
the plastics industry

e A comprehensive business understanding
e Continual process optimisation
e A good place to work

On the foundation of a solid economic position, POLYTEC
focuses on close and long-term cooperation with its custom-
ers based on uncompromising quality and reliable delivery.
At the same time, the group consolidates its competitiveness
through a comprehensive business understanding in the
sense of ONE POLYTEC, the continual optimisation of all
essential processes within the framework of the POLYTEC
PERFORMANCE & EXCELLENCE SYSTEM and the enhance-
ment of its attractiveness as an employer. In addition to
organic growth, it also constantly examines potential acqui-
sition opportunities.

Objective 2: The development of new technologies
and applications

e Permanent innovation

e Sustainability

e Extensive technological competence in tandem with
maximum production efficiency

POLYTECC sees permanent innovation as a key factor in
success and therefore explicitly defines openness and in-
quisitiveness as corporate values. Thanks to its extensive
technological competence, the group is able to guarantee its
customers optimum product solutions. Moreover, it strives
constantly to increase the scope of its systems and modules.
Within this context reduced complexity, functional integra-
tion and a sustainable orientation in all corporate activities
are of equal importance. The company also seeks to contin-
vally raise efficiency through the further development of
production technologies.

Objective 3: A focus on customer advantages

e Maximum customer satisfaction

e The pooling of competences for optimum product
solutions

¢ A European customer focus

With an eye to achieving the aim of maximum customer sat-
isfaction and in order to be permanently able to offer the
best product solutions from both an economic and ecologi-
cal perspective, POLYTEC pools the competences of the en-
tire group within the framework of the POLYTEC SOLUTION
FORCE. This linkage of every business area is intended to
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provide an optimum customer experience. The focus is on
customers in Europe, but if required POLYTEC also provides
them with support should they expand into strategically in-
teresting growth regions.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The POLYTEC GROUP Code of Conduct will also be adapted
in the course of the update of the new mission statement
during 2022.

In our current Code of Conduct we describe our mission
statement, the values that we share within the group and
how we wish to conduct its business. The Code provides clear
goals for the employment of ethical standards such as integ-
rity, openness, honesty and law-abidance. Adherence to all
the mandatory regulations and internal rules that apply to
POLYTEC Holding AG and its subsidiaries forms the basis of
the cooperation of group employees with shareholders,
owners, authorities, the public, customers, suppliers, service
providers, colleagues, competitors and other stakeholders.

The Code of Conduct furnishes a platform for the morally,
ethically and legally correct conduct of all POLYTEC GROUP
employees and business partners, and therefore represents
a significant element in corporate culture.

Code of Conduct regulations

Behaviour in the business environment: adherence to the
law, free and fair competition, the relationships with custom-
ers, competitors and suppliers, the avoidance of conflicts of
interest and compliance with the regulations governing the
prevention of money laundering.

Behaviour towards colleagues and fellow employees: equal
treatment and non-discrimination, observance of human
and employee rights, as well as health and safety.

Behaviour within society: sustainable environmental and
climate protection, resource efficiency and public image.

Handling of information: reporting, confidential group infor-
mation, the treatment of insider information and information
of capital market relevance, as well as data protection and
information security.

All POLYTEC GROUP employees are expected to examine
their conduct in the light of the directives established by this
Code of Conduct and ensure their observance. In December
2021, a web-based whistleblower system was introduced
within the POLYTEC Group in compliance with the EU
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Whistleblower Directive (2019/1937) and as an addition to
the existing whistleblower channel. The system serves as an
input channel for information regarding violations of both
applicable EU law and internal company principles of con-
duct and rules. It thus offers employees an opportunity to
report in-house and external misconduct while retaining
their complete anonymity. The system contributes system-
atically to the early and effective detection of compliance
violations within the group.

For detailed information regarding the Code of Conduct, ref-
erence should be made to the corresponding document,
which is available for downloading on the POLYTEC GROUP
website www.polytec-group.com.

RESPECT FOR HUMAN RIGHTS

The POLYTEC GROUP has committed itself to the preserva-
tion and protection of the fundamental values contained in
the European Convention on Human Rights. This commit-
ment is also an important part of the Code of Conduct, which
constitutes the basis for the moral, ethical and legally com-
pliant behaviour of all of the POLYTEC GROUP’s employees
and business partners and is thus a key element in its corpo-
rate culture.

With regard to business activities, no risks of relevance to
human rights reporting were identified or disclosed through
the existing and newly introduced whistleblower channels. As
the majority of production takes place in EU countries and
the POLYTEC GROUP also demands the highest standards in
terms of respect for human and labour rights at its non-
European sites, particularly in South Africa and China, no
material risk was identified.

COMPLIANCE - COMBATTING CORRUPTION

For the POLYTEC GROUP, conduct that is both legal and of a
high ethical standard represents a matter of course and
compliance means far more than merely the implementa-
tion of current rules and regulations. Instead, it is a matter of
corporate culture. Therefore, in addition to capital market
compliance content, regular coaching takes place within the
group with regard to anti-corruption and anti-trust laws.
Employees are thus made aware of issues of relevance to
both competition and anti-trust legislation, as well as the
correct handling of gifts and invitations. Furthermore, the
training deals with the issues of corruption, conflicts of
interest, bribery and the acceptance of gifts, as well as the
expectations relating to all POLYTEC GROUP personnel and
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the consequences of misconduct. The aim is to safeguard
POLYTEC and its employees against infringements of the
law, allocate even greater significance to the topic of
anti-corruption measures and provide practical support
during the application of relevant regulations.

During the financial year, the new inter-group rules of proce-
dure for the management of the POLYTEC GROUP and the
group-wide authority guideline were issued in accordance
with the new organisational structure, which has been in
place since 1 January 2021. These measures ensure further
that the rights, obligations and responsibilities of the respec-
tive persons involved are clearly defined, understood and
where necessary delegated, and that these strictures are
communicated in transparent fashion. As a result, employ-
ees are subject to a binding obligation to observe correct
conduct.

No breaches of compliance were determined during the
period under report.

SUSTAINABILITY IS OF GROWING
IMPORTANCE AND IS BEING INTENSIFIED

Apart from the COVID-19 pandemic, in 2021 climate change
was one of the most important and widely discussed, so-
cio-political issues in the media. Moreover, the topics of
“Environment - Social - Governance” (ESG) also gained in
importance in communications with investors and banks.
Today, fund managers increasingly base the composition of
their funds on sustainability criteria and many fund compa-
nies either employ their own ESG analysts to approach com-
panies directly with relevant questions, or buy in the exper-
tise of external analysts and rating agencies. For example, in
2021 POLYTEC received a growing number of enquiries from
institutional investors regarding which ESG rating agencies
cover the group’s shares and what their current ratings look
like.

Simultaneously, 2021 also witnessed an upturn in the num-
ber of contacts made by such agencies, which invite a
prompt response to extensive questionnaires, or the input of
data onto elaborately designed online platforms. Even
though the provision of these analysis portals is labour-in-
tensive, the evaluations and ratings that they generate rep-
resent an increasingly significant factor for listed stock cor-
porations with regard to their ESG perception on the financial
markets.

POLYTEC is aware that it is analysed by ESG rating agencies
on behalf of fund companies either regularly or when re-
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quired. However, the group does not always learn the results
of these analyses, as they are not published automatically.
Nonetheless, some rating agencies known to POLYTEC have
granted permission that their identity and ratings be made
known. These include the following:

» Gaiao-RESEARCH by EthiFinance: 69/100 (the higher, the
better; assessment in the preceding period: 63/100)

¢ V.E - Vigeo Eiris (MOODY’S ESG Solutions): 32/100
(the higher, the better; assessment in the preceding
period: 24/100)

e Leading sustainability analyst (company name withheld):
ESG risk rating of 25.5 - medium risk (the lower the better,
assessment in the preceding period: 26.9)

ESG aspects have long been an integral part of the POLYTEC
GROUP’s corporate strategy and culture. However, in 2021, it
intensified its efforts with regard to environmental and cli-
mate protection and intends to allocate even greater impor-
tance to the topic of ESG in future. Indeed, in order to be able
to achieve optimum progress with the implementation of
corresponding improvement measures in the coming years,
sustainability has been anchored organisationally in a sepa-
rate Board of Directors portfolio.

POLYTEC thus affirms that it sees sustainability as constitut-
ing more than just the gathering and compilation of key fig-
ures. Instead, the declared goal is to personify sustainability
authentically and comprehensively throughout the entire
group. Furthermore, although sustainability issues have long
been established in the various specialist areas of the
POLYTEC GROUP, the central positioning and management
of these topics now renders them even more transparent,
understandable and verifiable for all stakeholders, both in-
ternal and external. Not least, this is required by the Europe-
an Union’s new Taxonomy Regulation, which is intended to
make the climate and environmental protection measures of
a company more measurable and comparable, and provide
investors and customers with guidance for investments and
purchasing decisions.
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CLIMATE RISKS

Climate change and other environmental pressures pose an
increasing global threat in a diversity of areas. Companies are
therefore faced with the challenge of improving their energy
and resource efficiency, as well as limiting their consumption.
Accordingly, the promotion of these goals is also becoming
increasingly important in the automotive supply industry.

The European Commission has responded to this situation
with the “European Green Deal”, which incorporates a series of
measures in the areas of financial market regulation, energy
supply, transport, trade, industry, agriculture and forestry.
The aim is to achieve the goal of a drastic reduction in CO,
emissions within the European Union.

The “European Green Deal” is also leading to a fall in demand
for internal combustion engines. The share of POLYTEC
GROUP products in sales revenues of combustion engines is
thus set to decline significantly from a current level of around
20% to a medium-term planning value of approximately 5%
in. The POLYTEC GROUP has been able to counteract this
downturn with new substitute products and considers itself
well positioned for the future. Moreover, in the group’s
medium-term planning, on the basis of the respective sales
plans of group customers, risk discounts in the order of 10%,
15% and 20% have been made for the financial years begin-
ning in 2024.

Companies are faced with the difficult task of both raising
their energy and resource efficiency and limiting their energy
consumption, and pushing ahead towards these targets is
also of growing importance in the automotive supply industry.
For example, the POLYTEC GROUP has for the first time em-
ployed green financing, which has been used to fund state of
the art machinery and a plastics recycling plant at its Ebensee
location. This project demonstrates clearly that ecological
and economic requirements can be ideally combined.

The additional costs resulting from both investments in
climate-friendly technologies and energy price increases
constitute an economic risk for the POLYTEC GROUP. The
group deals with these risks as described under item b. Pro-
curement market risk.

In the 2021 financial year, the POLYTEC GROUP analysed the
potential risks resulting from resource scarcity and climate
change. No risks were identified that exert a significant influ-
ence upon the POLYTEC GROUP business model.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As an automotive industry supplier, the POLYTEC GROUP
provides key solutions for the optimisation of new vehicle
generations. Moreover, owing to its innovative capacity and
flexibility, in the course of its more than 30-year existence
POLYTEC has established an excellent reputation in the auto-
motive sector. By means of comprehensive research and
development work, POLYTEC makes a significant contribu-
tion to the ongoing improvement of the products of its
customers, which ultimately has a positive effect upon the
environment. For example, the dead weight of vehicles is
lightened through material substitution and as compared to
steel, for some components weight savings of up to 60% are
possible. This lowers fuel consumption markedly and leads
to a transitive cut in CO, emissions.

Systematic, ecological impact analyses represent a perma-
nent feature of POLYTEC’s product development processes
and are carried out by the group’s specialists in close coordi-
nation with its customers. In combination with perfect quality
and absolute punctuality of delivery, continual optimisation
successes in areas such as weight reduction, material
substitution and savings, noise abatement, etc. constitute
POLYTEC’s main strengths and are greatly valued by its cli-
entele.

However, POLYTEC does more than constantly upgrade the
products and services supplied to its customers, as on the
basis of a coordinated environmental, quality and lean man-
agement system, all of the group’s internal production pro-
cesses are analysed and improved regularly with the aim of
cutting in-house material and energy use. Plastics process-
ing demands large quantities of resources and hence the
careful employment of production materials constitutes
both an ecological and an economic necessity. Individual, in-
group production phases are therefore continually optimised
with a view to saving energy and reducing raw material con-
sumption, and process water and various cleaning solutions
are virtually always utilised in closed cycles. Moreover, as far
as the use of paints is concerned, POLYTEC fulfils stringent
indoor and waste air standards, which serve the protection
of employees and the environment to an equal extent.

The bulk of the parts, top-quality component modules and
multifunctional plastics systems designed by POLYTEC are
manufactured in accordance with certificated development
and production processes. All of the POLYTEC GROUP's loca-
tions are now certified according to the IATF 16949 quality
management and the ISO 14001 environmental manage-
ment standards. In addition, the vast majority of group pro-
duction plants possess certification pursuant to the interna-
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tionally recognised ISO 50001 energy management stan-
dard, and furthermore also meet numerous special custom-
er standards. These are facts that clearly underline the
long-term commitment and successes in the environmental
protection field to which POLYTEC can refer.

Within the scope of the POLYTEC GROUP’s digitalisation of-
fensive, software for the improved control of specific cus-
tomer requirements in connection with IATF 16949 has been
implemented and tested successfully at the Horsching loca-
tion. The software, which enables special customer demands
to be met through the systematic allocation of processes
and responsible personnel, will now be rolled out and made
available to all other POLYTEC GROUP locations. The curren-
cy of the data is ensured by regular questioning via custom-
er portals and a related check on any changes in client
needs.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

Environmental and climate protection forms an essential
and increasingly important part of POLYTEC’s business pro-
cesses. The intention is that the resultant, diverse measures
be implemented continually during the coming years as part
of POLYTEC's environment and energy management. The
main items in POLYTEC’s environmental strategy determined
in the course of this process are:

1. Resource conservation. With this strategic objective,
POLYTEC wishes to place a greater emphasis upon a holistic
approach with the intention of ensuring that the group con-
siders the protective use of all raw materials and intensified
recycling throughout the entire production process in order
to secure the conservation and optimum employment of the
resources available. This also incorporates the consumption
of both natural resources such as water and the savings
achieved by POLYTEC through the lightweight design or the
functional integration of its components. In addition, the
group is cutting its raw material usage still further by the in-
creased use of regranulate, modern dosing systems, im-
proved reject ratios and the modified chemical composition
of materials.

Furthermore, wherever possible process-related sprue is
ground directly at the machine and fed back into the pro-
cess. Some locations have central plants in which rejects
from production are recycled and the recovered materials
reused. This not only reduces raw material consumption, but
also shortens transport routes and thus CO, emissions.
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In spite of the economical handling of raw materials, the cre-
ation of waste cannot be prevented entirely. Therefore, the
best possible separation of unavoidable waste is all the more
important, as is its transfer to useful recycling whenever this
is feasible. POLYTEC supports its personnel during correct
waste classification by means of a uniform colour coding
system. This not only reduces residual waste, but also the
cost of its disposal.

2. Enhanced energy efficiency. A particularly important re-
source and thus cost factor for the POLYTEC GROUP is
formed by energy. Therefore, the pursuit of maximum ener-
gy efficiency is not only worthwhile from an ecological per-
spective, but also an economic standpoint. In recent years,
differing projects have resulted in the optimisation of import-
ant energy consumers across various locations and hence
the achievement of sizeable savings.

In order to further raise its energy efficiency, POLYTEC in-
vests continuously in the modernisation of its plants. Among
the numerous measures taken are the thermal optimisation
of pipelines, machines and buildings, the purchase of mod-
ern and powerful condensing boilers, a comprehensive
switch to LED lighting and the implementation of energy
management systems that identify main consumers and
potential savings. Internal energy cycles have also played a
significant role in POLYTEC GROUP’s steadily reduced ener-
gy consumption in recent years. For example, at several
locations highly efficient heat recovery systems are in use,
with the help of which waste heat from process plants is used
for other areas such as the heating of buildings.

3. Reduced environmental emissions. In order to take even
greater account of the concept of sustainability, POLYTEC
already adopted the reduction of environmental emissions
as a strategic goal some years ago. Environmental protec-
tion now plays a central role within the production process in
order to achieve the continual reduction of harmful emis-
sions. Accordingly, in 2020 the volumes of CO, (Scope 1 und
Scope 2) emitted by the POLYTEC GROUP were for the first
time the object of broadly based logging and evaluation.
The statistics thus gathered led to emission reduction initia-
tives, the results of which are measured. In addition, the
group is expanding its current programmes for waste pre-
vention and a reduction in substances that constitute a
health and environmental hazard.
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Following successful testing, the various pilot projects
launched over the years at POLYTEC GROUP plants in con-
nection with these focal points have been and will be imple-
mented successively at other group locations.

POLYTEC is well aware of its responsibilities as an industrial
enterprise and via the aforementioned measures continually
and systematically initiates further steps aimed at making its
production processes more sustainable and resource pro-
tective.

SELECTED ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION PROJECTS

Switching to electricity from renewable sources reduces
CO, emissions

POLYTEC is increasingly turning to renewable energy for its
electrical power. Its locations in Austria, Germany and the
Netherlands already operate exclusively with electricity from
reusable energy sources and this transition is to follow at
other plants in the coming years. By obtaining green elec-
tricity, the POLYTEC GROUP intends to reduce its CO, foot-
print year by year.

Installation of photovoltaic systems intensified
As part of its decarbonisation strategy, POLYTEC is
focusing on emission-free energy generation and intends
to generate electricity by means of photovoltaic systems
mounted on the roofs of its production plants. From May
to September 2021, a photovoltaic system with an area of
more than 2,500 square metres and a nominal output of
around 500 kWp was installed at the Horsching location
(Austria). This capacity is set to increase in the future, as ex-
pansion to a total rated output of 1,100 kWp has already

been decided.

The second photovoltaic plant completed during the 2021

financial year is located at the Wolmirstedt location
(Germany) and has a total electrical output of 614 kWp.
Furthermore, concrete plans for the construction of photo-
voltaic plants at three other German locations are already in
the realisation phase and the utilisation of open spaces for

the installation of PV systems is also being examined.
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Saving electricity through efficient cooling systems
Central cooling systems provide the necessary temperature
control of machines and tools in POLYTEC GROUP plants.
However, the operation of such systems requires large vol-
umes of electricity and therefore, in this area in particular,
POLYTEC relies upon modern, energy-efficient technology.
For example, in the 2021 financial year, the cooling systems
at the Lohne location (Germany) were optimised. This in-
volved the installation of a new and highly efficient refriger-
ation machine. Moreover, a second plant at the Lohne loca-
tion was completely redesigned and through the optimisa-
tion of the process temperature and other operational mea-
sures, around 670,000 kWh of electricity are saved annually.
At the Sladcovicovo location (Slovakia) rather than repair
and enlarge the existing plant, a new cooling concept was
implemented in 2021. The efficient system installed saves
around 472,000 kWh of electricity annually.

Initial green financing for energy-efficient machinery
and a plastics recycling plant at the Ebensee location
The Ebensee plant is situated on the southern bank of the
Traunsee in the historic, industrial region of the Salzkammer-
gut (Austria), which is also a picturesque tourist area and a
UNESCO World Heritage Site. Within the POLYTEC GROUP,
the Ebensee plant functions as a leader in the digitalisation
and sustainability fields, and has already been in CO,-neutral
operation for several years. Among other installations, it has
an environment-friendly heating system, which employs
wood chips in a biomass heating plant located directly on
the factory premises.

At the Ebensee location, which has a workforce of around
170, POLYTEC produces exterior parts for passenger cars
and commercial vehicles using injection moulding and in ad-
dition, several million reusable transport boxes annually for
food logistics. In connection with the prolongation of the ex-
isting customer relationship in this field, ten additional pro-
duction lines were installed in summer 2021.

In order to finance this extremely modern machine park and
a new plastics recycling plant, in 2021 the POLYTEC GROUP
concluded its first ever green financing with a volume of
EUR 13 million. The ecological aspect was at the forefront of
the investment and through replacements and the acquisi-
tion of new hybrid injection moulding machines, which run
entirely on green electricity, energy savings of around 45%
have resulted as compared to the equipment used previous-
ly. Accordingly, this project demonstrates that ecological
and economic requirements can be combined to perfection.
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In addition, a recycling plant is being built in which defective
logistics boxes will be granulated and the regrind fed back
into the production process. This will facilitate raw material
savings of more than 10% and the closing of the raw materi-
al cycle for this product.

Owing to compliance with a range of sustainability
criteria, the described investments at the Ebensee location
qualified for green financing. This is being refinanced via
Oesterreichische Kontrollbank AG (OeKB) by means of a
40% federal guarantee from the Republic of Austria.
Raiffeisenlandesbank Oberdsterreich AG was obtained as
a financing partner.

With the new investment in combination with green financ-
ing, the POLYTEC GROUP has set a striking example for
environment-friendly and sustainable production.
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ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENTAL TARGETS
The group’s objectives with regard to energy pursue the
following inter-plant goals:

Target definition Dimension Key indicator  Basis

Strategic objective: resource protection

A reduction in raw material consumption 15% by 2023 kg/kg Materials for blank production (excluding
through an improvement in the reject ratio painting and part upgrading)
Increase in the recycling share through At least two Number of Number of recyclable plastics in ratio to the
project realisation projects per completed total of plastics used

year up to projects

2023

Increase share  kg/kg

Strategic target: increased energy efficiency

Reduction in energy consumption (base load) 20% by 2025 kWh/EUR k Group energy consumption (gas, electricity,
oil)/sales revenues

Reduction in electricity consumption due to 50% by 2025 kWh/EUR k Group energy consumption (gas, electricity,
compressed air leakages oil)/sales revenues

Equipping of all plants with energy monitoring Realisation by ~ Number of Basic equipment (main electricity and gas
(including reporting and active control 2025 plants metres) energy monitoring in all plants
processes)

Strategic target: environmental emission
minimisation

Creation of Scope 1 und 2 carbon footprint 20% by 2025 % Preparation of targets for Scope 1 and 2 using
(CFP) monitoring and CFP reduction the available data basis
(cutin CO, emissions)
Reduction in waste quantities and the 15% by 2025 % Waste quantity/Material use
reject ratio
Increase in the share of recyclable waste 0.75%/year % Specific waste in ratio to total waste amount
through improved sorting and 8% by
2025
Reduction or substitution of materials that 10% by 2023 % Yearly check on the number of materials
represent an environmental or health hazard in use that represent an environmental or
health hazard
Uniform hazardous material management Realisation by
2022
Development of innovative products At least two Number of Lightweight design, metal substitution,
(e.q. lightweight design), which through their projects per completed combination of differing production
use cut environmental emissions year projects technologies
KEY INDICATORS closures. The plants in Marchtrenk (Austria) und Bochum

The figures listed for 2021 incorporate the plants of all the  (Germany) were sold in the course of an M&A transaction.
fully consolidated companies in the POLYTEC GROUP. As  This was finalised on 7 December 2020 with the result that
compared to 2019, the 2020 values were lower owing to the  up to the closing date, the key indicators of both plants were
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and permanent location  taken into account for the last time on a pro rata basis.
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Energy use

in MWh 2021 Share 2020 2019
Electricity 109,565 580% 113,215 134,915
Natural gas™ 73,796 39.0% 76,589 e
Heating oil” 397 0.2% 267

Heating 1,991 1.1% 2,571 2,708
Other 3,266 1.7% 2,661 2,811
POLYTEC GROUP 189,015 100% 195,303 238,382

" Data for 2019 not reported separately

238,382 195,303 189,015

2019 2020 2021

| Energy use in MWh

As compared to the preceding year, energy consumption
throughout the group during the 2021 financial year fell by
approximately 3.2%, or 6,288 MWh, to 189,015 Mwh (2020:
195,303 MWh). In relation to the 6.5% increase in total sales
revenues over the previous year, the ratio fell by around
3.4 percentage points from 37.4% to 34.0%.

Material use

int 2021 Share 2020 2019
PP - polypropylene 33,775 45.2% 29,998 25,851
PA - polyamide 7,101 9.5% 6,696 8,892
ABS - acrylonitrile 458 0.6% 1,157 1,763
butadiene styrene

PUR - polyurethane 2,576 3.5% 3,440 4,613
Glass fibres 6,303 8.4% 6,212 7,498
Resins 3,794 5.1% 5,070 4,462
Paints 440 0.6% 678 1,493
SMC - sheet 15,284 205% 13,520

moulding

compounds® 25,136
Other? 4,958 6.6% 3,649

POLYTEC GROUP 74,689 100% 70,420 79,708

" Data for 2019 not reported separately
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79,708 70,420 74,689

2019 2020 2021

I Material use int

In comparison to the preceding year, the use of materials
throughout the group during the 2021 financial year rose by
approximately 6.1%, or 4,269 t, from 70,420 t to 74,689 t. In
relation to sales revenues, at 13.4%, the ratio was slightly be-
low that of the previous year (13.5%). The rise in material
consumption was due primarily to the increase in the pro-
duction of plastic boxes for the food industry, which are
manufactured using polypropylene.

Water use

in m? 2021 Share
Used water (non-hazardous, 77,453 80.4%
municipal disposal)

Evaporated water 18,746 19.5%
Waste water (disposed of 101 0.1%
as hazardous waste)

POLYTEC GROUP 96,300 100%

As sustainability rating agencies explicitly request data on
water consumption, in this connection POLYTEC reports
group-wide key figures for the first time for 2021. 80% of the
total water utilised in the 2021 financial year, amounting to a
total volume of 96,300 m?, could be classified as non-hazard-
ous and was delivered to the long-established municipal
wastewater treatment system. Approximately 19.5% of the
water volume evaporated during production processes,
especially during cooling. Only a very small proportion of
0.1% or 101 m® corresponded with the hazardous waste cri-
teria and was disposed of in accordance with waste legisla-
tion. In relation to turnover, the ratio of water use was 17.3%.
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Waste volumes

int 2021 Share 2020 2019

Non-hazardous 7,119 84.5% 7,343 7,298

waste

Hazardous waste 1,305 15.5% 1,347 1,480

POLYTEC GROUP 8,424 100% 8,690 8,778
8,778 8,690 8,424

. 1480 1347 | RESE

7,298 7,343 7,119

2019 2020 2021

I Hazardous waste in t

I Non-hazardous waste in t

The volume of hazardous and non-hazardous waste pro-
duced by the POLYTEC GROUP in the 2021 financial year
was 3.1%, or 266 t, lower than in the previous year at 8,424 t.
In relation to sales revenues, the ratio fell marginally by
0.2 percentage points from 1.7% to 1.5%.

CO, emissions

2021
25,783

2020
46,537

int
POLYTEC GROUP

46,537 25,783

2020 2021

| CO, emissions in t
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In 2020, CO, emissions in the POLYTEC GROUP were mea-
sured for the first time on an inter-group basis and the exist-
ing key indicators were converted into CO, equivalents. In
terms of CO, equivalents, greenhouse gas emissions in the
2021 financial year totalled 25,783 t (2020: 46,537 t). These
were thus markedly lower than in the previous year, falling
by 44.6%, or 20,754 t.

There are several reasons for this striking decrease. For
example, changes in the sourced energy mix to green elec-
tricity significantly increased the overall share of renewable
energy and thus substantially reduced the volume of CO,
emissions. Moreover, the plant locations in Austria, Germany
and the Netherlands now obtain their electricity exclusively
from CO,-neutral sources and in addition, the energy-saving
measures implemented during the 2021 business year are
having a positive effect upon the POLYTEC GROUP’s CO,
balance.

It should also be mentioned that apart from the implement-
ed savings measures and the larger share of green electric-
ity, plant closures and disposals also affected the group’s
CO, balance. On the one hand, the sale of the “Industrial”
business unit at the beginning of December 2020 eliminated
the CO, values of the plants in Marchtrenk (Austrid) and
Bochum (Germany) and on the other the four locations in
Aksaray (Turkey), Putte (Netherlands), Rastatt and Idstein
(both in Germany) were closed permanently during 2020.

This transition will follow at other plants in the coming years
and the POLYTEC GROUP will continue to reduce its CO, foot-
print in future through the purchase of green electricity.

EMPLOYEES

In addition to a challenging market environment, competi-
tion for the best employees is becoming increasingly fierce.
In this situation, POLYTEC has secured a solid position in the
hotly contested labour market by means of multifaceted of-
fers for personal development and an attractive working
environment.

Restoring post-COVID normality

After 2020, which was dominated by the COVID-19 pandem-
ic, an attempt was made to gradually return to a new form of
normality in everyday working life during the 2021 financial
year. Activities that could not take place as planned in the
previous year, or were subject to forced postponement, were
adapted to the changed circumstances and completed step-
by-step. In addition, subject to compliance with the currently
applicable COVID-19 safety regulations, important meetings
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were once again increasingly held in person. Nevertheless,
virtual meetings will continue to be an important and rapid
means of communication, both externally and internally.

POLYTEC is diverse and open

Owing to the internationality of the POLYTEC GROUP,
diversity, respect, equality of opportunity and the integration
of employees from differing cultures represent integral ele-
ments within corporate culture. Any form of personal dis-
crimination whether due to origin, gender, skin colour, age,
religion, sexual orientation or disability is strictly rejected.
During recruitment for vacant positions, a focus is placed on
a performance orientation, knowledge, skills, and equal
opportunity and treatment. Applicants are selected on the
basis of the best possible qualifications and the experience
that they can contribute to the POLYTEC GROUP as new
team members.

Reduce the shortage of skilled workers, increase
competences and intensify internal training programmes
In order to keep existing employees and attract new, quali-
fied personnel, a reference to the past is simply insufficient.
For this reason, in 2021 the POLYTEC GROUP defined a
roadmap for its Human Resources development with very
specific objectives for the period up to 2030. Fluctuation and
shortages of skilled workers are to be reduced, and staff
competence, retention and productivity are to be boosted.
An essential element in this roadmap is the expansion of
the training offers within the group for which, with its
diverse training programmes, the POLYTEC Academy is
responsible.

MORE than right at POLYTEC

For the implementation of the roadmap, a distinctive, like-
able and at the same time self-confident labour market im-
age is essential. With its new employer-branding concept,
the POLYTEC GROUP allocates pride of place to its employ-
ees and places them in the spotlight. As employee testimoni-
als, for interested candidates they increase the visibility of
the group’s strengths. Furthermore, for internal communica-
tions, the group has improved the design of the popular and
informative employee magazine “POLYTEC Insights”.
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POLYTEC Academy

In recent years, a highly effective training programme has
been established under the POLYTEC Academy umbrella,
which offers basic and further training for all POLYTEC
GROUP company levels. The three central aims of the pro-
gramme are to strengthen qualifications and competences,
counteract the shortage of skilled workers and encourage
long-term employee loyalty to the company. In order to be
able to successfully achieve these objectives, the POLYTEC
GROUP prepares targeted and needs-oriented training
programmes in close cooperation with the management,
Human Resources and the Board of Directors. External edu-
cational institutions such as the LIMAK Austrian Business
School in Linz are also commissioned to design and imple-
ment selected training courses.

Most of the POLYTEC Academy’s training activities take
place within the company itself. They incorporate holistic
content on a variety of topics, ranging from leadership and
technical know-how to talent management. In the 2021 fi-
nancial year, ten training programmes were organised with-
in the framework of the POLYTEC Academy for dozens of
employees from various group areas and levels. Moreover,
even during the corona-related lockdowns, the training ses-
sions continued uninterrupted. This was because most of the
content could be delivered at short notice via the digital plat-
forms that POLYTEC also employs for knowledge and data
transfers within the group. The enormous strength emanat-
ing from the POLYTEC GROUP’s digitalisation offensive was
thus clearly demonstrated.

POLYTEC Leadership Academy

The POLYTEC Leadership Academy, which has been in exis-
tence since 2015, is a programme that on the one hand deals
with the teaching of leadership skills, but on the other is also
intended to facilitate targeted networking among the man-
agers within the POLYTEC GROUP. This strengthens cohesion
and promotes a willingness to openly exchange experiences,
which extends beyond the training programme itself. In the
spirit of ONE POLYTEC, the Leadership Academy consoli-
dates group-wide cooperation and thus creates the founda-
tions for the success of the POLYTEC SOLUTION FORCE. With
its diverse range of basic and further training programmes,
the POLYTEC GROUP is not only making itself fit for the
future within its market, but also clearly expresses the esteem
in which it holds its employees, who constitute its most im-
portant resource.
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KEY EMPLOYEE INDICATORS

Employees excluding

leasing personnel Unit 2021 2020 2019
Key indicators by

geography

(asat 31.12)

Austria FTE 434 421 521
Germany FTE 1,610 1,703 2,092
Other EU countries FTE 740 789 897
UK FTE 244 255 412
Other countries FTE 116 60 176
POLYTEC GROUP FTE 3,144 3,228 4,098
Gender

(asat 31.12)

Men % 75.6 76.6 78.8
Women % 244 23.4 21.2
Age

(asat 31.12)

<30 years % 15.2 15.7 15.7
30-50 years % 48.2 483 49.2
>50 years % 36.6 36.0 351
Fluctuation rate % 14.3 379 17.0
(annual average)

Work safety

(annual figures)

Work accidents subject  Number 77 84 100
to reporting

Average accident- Days 19.8 18.9 19.2
related sick leave

Fatal work accidents Number 0 0 1

The key indicators shown in the table relate to full-time em-
ployees and exclude leasing personnel. If the latter are in-
cluded (276 FTE; leasing personnel quota: 8.1%), at the 2021
balance sheet date the POLYTEC GROUP had a total work-
force of 3,420. As compared to the 2020 balance sheet date
(3,636 FTE), this represents a reduction of 216 persons, or
5.9%, which was due to production restructuring measures
and the deconsolidation of the “Industrial” business unit (ap-
proximately 130 employees at three locations). Short-time
working was not accounted for in the reported figures.
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The group fluctuation rate is calculated by dividing the num-
ber of leavers (terminations of employment by employees
and employer, arrangements by mutual consent, as well as
the expiry of short-term employment contracts) by the aver-
age total POLYTEC GROUP workforce. On average, in 2021
the fluctuation rate within the POLYTEC GROUP amounted to
roughly 14.3%. In 2020, plant shutdowns, the sale of the
“Industrial” business unit and restructuring measures meant
that at 37.9%, the fluctuation rate was markedly higher.

GEOGRAPHIC STRUCTURE AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

Other
countries
3.7% .
UK Austria
7.8% 13.8%

N,

Other
EU countries g Gerr:wng
23.5% ﬂ
AGE STRUCTURE AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021
<30 years
15.2%
>50 years
36.6%
30-50 years

S 48.2%

As at 31 December 2021, the share of women among all
POLYTEC GROUP employees (excluding leasing personnel)
was 24.4% and therefore 1 percentage point higher as com-
pared to the previous year. In terms of age structure, about
a half of the group workforce is in the 30-50 age group.
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As compared to the previous year, the number of reportable
workplace accidents in the POLYTEC GROUP during 2021 fell
by 11.5% from 84 to 77, while the lost time average increased
from 18.9 to 19.8 days. In order to prevent accidents at work,
POLYTEC focuses on raising awareness with regard to health,
safety and environmental (HSE) issues and personal protec-
tive equipment (PPE) requirements. For example, articles on
safety topics are regularly presented to employees via the
POLYTEC Information TV info screens and training measures
are implemented.

Numerous technical optimisation measures, which include
improved exhaust air extraction systems to protect the respi-
ratory tract and better workplace lighting to safeguard the
eyes, have enhanced general workplace safety throughout
the group. The overall increase in the level of automation in
production processes also reduces the dangers that can
arise during manual activities and thus prevents occupation-
al accidents.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 8
OF THE EU TAXONOMY REGULATION

Pursuant to the EU Taxonomy Regulation, as well as the sup-
plementary delegated acts, in its non-financial statement for
the financial year 2021, POLYTEC discloses for the first time
the share of taxonomuy-eligible and taxonomy-non-eligible
group-wide revenues, capital expenditure (CapEx) and oper-
ating expenditure (OpEx) related to the environmental objec-
tives “climate change mitigation” and “climate change adap-
tation” as formulated in the current EU taxonomy.

Climate change and environmental degradation are among
the greatest challenges facing humankind, nature and the
world economy. There is a global need for action - and
with regard to the Europe-wide target of climate neutrality
by 2050, also for the individual member states of the
European Union. With the EU Taxonomy Regulation, which
came into force in June 2020, the European Union wishes to
counteract increasing global warming and the waste of
resources, while simultaneously creating EU-wide awareness
of sustainability.

As the foundation for its Sustainable Finance Strategy, the
European Commission is utilising this regulation in order to
establish a framework that enables economic activity to be
classified as “environmentally sustainable” and actively
counteracts so-called greenwashing. Financial flows are to
be steered towards sustainable activities and technologies
and at the same time rendered more transparent. In total,
six environmental targets have been defined in the EU Tax-
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onomy Regulation, whereby only the “climate change
mitigation” and “climate change adaptation” objectives are
relevant for the first reporting year. It is essential that corre-
sponding economic activity makes a significant contribution
to at least one of the six targets, but at the same time does
not significantly impair any of the other five. In addition, a
legally regulated minimum level of protection for workers
with regard to human rights and working conditions must be
guaranteed.

As part of this forward-looking transition to a modern,
resource-efficient and competitive economy, in its annual
financial report for the financial year 2021 POLYTEC publish-
es the proportion of its turnover investments and operating
expenses that are taxonomy-eligible.

In an analysis of its economic activity, POLYTEC has been
able to classify those activities that meet the requirements of
the EU Taxonomy Regulation. POLYTEC finds itself in two
items of the categorisation system by which economic activ-
ities can be classified as taxonomy-eligible. According to the
NACE code, these two categories consist of item 3.4 Manu-
facture of batteries and item 3.6 Manufacture of other low
carbon technologies.

The POLYTEC GROUP’s economic activities contribute ac-
tively to a reduction in current negative environmental
impacts and hence to climate protection. POLYTEC ensures
this taxonomy eligibility by using only recyclable products as
the basis for reporting.

For POLYTEC, human rights and compliance with labour
regulations are non-negotiable fix points in a qualitative
supply chain, which is why their assurance is also demanded
outside the group as part of its Code of Conduct for suppliers.

As subsequently reported, the approach chosen by POLYTEC
for the analysis of its economic activities results in key figures
for turnover, CapEx and OpEx.
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TURNOVER (ECONOMIC ACTIVITIES)

For the calculation of the key figures relating to sales reve-
nues, the share of taxonomuy-eligible turnover was estab-
lished
IAS 1.82A. For the 2021 financial year, this results in a taxon-

in relation to total turnover in accordance with

omy-eligible share of approximately 32.7%. For more de-
tailed information on sales revenues, reference should be
made to the consolidated income statement, the group
management report and the notes to the consolidated fi-
nancial statements. The key turnover figures are presented
in the table below:

Absolute  Relative
Turnover NACE turnover  turnover
(economic activities) code IinEURmM in %
Manufacture of batteries 3.4 19.5 35
Manufacture of other low 3.6 162.3 29.2
carbon technologies
Taxonomy-eligible 181.8 327
turnover
Taxonomy-non-eligible 3741 67.3
turnover
Total POLYTEC GROUP 555.9 100
turnover
INVESTMENTS (CapEx)

In the calculation of the CapEx key figures, the numerator
includes assets or processes associated with taxonomy-
eligible economic activities. In turn, the denominator rep-
resents the additions to property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets during the financial year before deprecia-
tion and revaluations. For further information on capital ex-
penditure, reference should be made to the consolidated
cash flow statement, the group management report and the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. The CapEx
key figures are presented in the table below:

Absolute  Relative

invest- invest-

ments ments

Investments (CapEx) in EUR m in %
Taxonomy-eligible investments 111 30.7
Taxonomy-non-eligible investments 24.9 69.3
Total POLYTEC GROUP investments 36.0 100

OPERATING EXPENSES (OpEx)

For the calculation of the OpEx key figures, the numerator
accounted for the portion of the operating expenses includ-
ed in the denominator that relates to assets or processes
associated with taxonomy-eligible economic activities. Ac-
cordingly, the numerator incorporates operating expenses
related to taxonomy-eligible maintenance processes and
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repairs, research and development, and training. In turn, the
denominator consists of the total non-capitalised costs re-
sulting from research and development, maintenance and
repairs, training and short-term leasing. For more detailed
information on the operating expenses, please refer to the
consolidated income statement, the group management
report and the notes to the consolidated financial state-
ments. The OpEx key figures are presented in the table
below:

Absolute  Relative

operating operating

expenses expenses

Operating expenses in EUR m in %

Taxonomy-eligible operating 5.1 27.0
expenses

Taxonomy-non-eligible operating 13.9 73.0
expenses

Total POLYTEC GROUP operating 19.0 100
expenses

In allocating key turnover, CapEx and OpEx figures across all
the economic activities considered, double counting has
been avoided by clearly delineating and itemising the indi-
vidual product lines and their associated classification cate-
gories.

With this disclosure, POLYTEC is adopting a responsible
position and making a positive contribution to economic,

environmental and social progress with a view to sustainable
growth.

Horsching, 31 March 2022

The POLYTEC Holding AG Board of Directors

Markus Huemer
Chairman - CEO

Peter Bernscher
Member of the Board - CCO

Heiko Gabbert
Member of the Board - COO

Peter Haidenek
Member of the Board - CFO
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE 2021 FINANCIAL YEAR
with comparative figures from the previous year

in EUR k Note 2021 2020
Net sales revenues E 1 555,874 521,976
Other operating income E.2 9,685 8,971
Changes in inventory of finished and unfinished goods -7,930 1,893
Other own work capitalised 1,089 973
Expenses for materials and services received E3 -284,534 -257,577
Personnel expenses E 4 -180,331 -194,761
Other operating expenses E.5 -49,487 -50,229
Deconsolidation gain B.1 475 17,042
Earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation (EBITDA) 44,841 48,287
Depreciation E.8/E. 9 -32,543 -35,324
Earnings before interest and taxes = operating result (EBIT) 12,298 12,962
Interest result -2,775 -3,356
Other financial income 78 -1,931
Financial result E. 6 -2,697 -5,287
Earnings before tax 9,602 7,676
Tax income/expenses E.7 -2,557 1,799
Earnings after tax 7,045 9,475

thereof result of non-controlling interests -16 3,039
thereof result of the parent company 7,061 6,435
Earnings per share in EUR E. 19 0.32 0.29
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I CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE 2021 FINANCIAL YEAR

11.-3112.2021

Non-
controlling
Note Group interests Total
Earnings after tax 7,061 -16 7,045
Items that will not be reclassified (recycled)
in future periods in the income statement
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation, 17 0 17
net of tax
thereof related, deferred income taxes -27 -27
E. 21 -10 0 -10
Items that will be reclassified (recycled)
in future periods in the income statement
Currency translations 3,676 3,676
3,676 0 3,676
Other result after tax 3,665 0 3,665
Total result 10,727 -16 10,711
11.-31.12.2020
Non-
controlling
Note Group interests Total
Earnings after tax 6,435 3,039 9,475
Items that will not be reclassified (recycled)
in future periods in the income statement
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation, 783 0 783
net of tax
thereof related, deferred income taxes -242 -242
E. 21 541 0 541
Items that will be reclassified (recycled)
in future periods in the income statement
Currency translations -4,075 -4,075
-4,075 0 -4,075
Other result after tax -3,535 0 -3,535
Total result 2,900 3,039 5,940
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ASSETS
31.12.2021 31.12.2020 31.12.2019
in EUR k Note adjusted adjusted
A. Non-current assets
l. Intangible assets E. 8 8,212 5,120 4776
Il Goodwill E 8 0 0 6,537
lll.  Tangible assets E.9 265,764 249,862 276,789
IV.  Other non-current assets 1,112 2,035 126
V.  Revenues from contracts with customers E. 13 37,419 31,911 37,732M
VI. Deferred tax assets E. 10 7,517 8,169 7,245
320,025 297,097 333,206
B. Current assets
l. Inventories E. 11 42,615 38,570 40,875
Il Trade accounts receivable E. 12 42,644 55,020 53,413
IIl. Revenues from contracts with customers E. 13 65,164 58,901 88,042
V. Other current receivables E. 14 26,764 14,216 10,399
V. Income tax receivables 916 1,307 1,433
VI. Cash and cash equivalents E. 15 69,714 90,389 55,609
247,816 258,404 249,772
VII.  Assets held for sale E. 17 658 13,360 9,980
248,474 271,764 259,752
568,499 568,861 592,958
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
31.12.2021 31.12.2020 31.12.2019
in EUR k Note adjusted adjusted
A. Shareholders’ equity
l. Share capital 22,330 22,330 22,330
IIl.  Capital reserves 37,563 37,563 37,563
IIl. Treasury stock -1,855 -1,855 -1,855
IV.  Retained earnings 188,203 187,740 181,304"
V.  Other reserves -11,154 -14,820 -11,286
235,087 230,958 228,057
VI, Non-controlling interests 3,771 3,885 11,885
E. 18 238,859 234,843 239,942
B. Non-current liabilities
l. Non-current, interest-bearing liabilities E. 20 157,352 160,342 194,145
Il Provision for deferred taxes E. 10 1,680 1,803 4,275
ll.  Provisions for employees E. 21 27,465 26,899 30,616
IV.  Other long-term provisions E. 22 0 0 1,753
186,497 189,044 230,789
C. Current liabilities
l. Current interest-bearing liabilities E. 23 38,365 37,889 17,454
Il Liabilities on income taxes E 24 870 2,080 2,155
Il Trade accounts payable E. 25 57,255 52,703 52,908
IV.  Liabilities from contracts with customers E. 13 5,395 5,365 2,889
V.  Other current liabilities E. 26 26,460 31,718 29,760
VI. Current provisions E. 27 14,798 15,219 17,061
143,143 144,974 122,227
568,499 568,861 592,958

" The figures for the preceding years were adjusted. For information regarding these changes reference should be made to D. 19.
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I CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE 2021 FINANCIAL YEAR
with comparative figures from the previous year

in EUR k Note
Earnings before tax
+ Depreciation on fixed assets

- Non-cash income from deconsolidation B. 1
-(+) Interest result E.6
+(-) Other non-cash expenses and income F.
+(-) Increase (decrease) in non-current provisions for employees
-(+) Profit (loss) from fixed asset disposals E.2
-(+) Profit (loss) from the sale of assets held for sale E 17

-(+) Increase (decrease) in inventories
-(+) Increase (decrease) in trade and other receivables and contractual revenues
+(-) Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables and contractual liabilities
+(-) Increase (decrease) in current provisions

= Consolidated cash flow from current activities

+ Interest received

- Interest paid

- Taxes paid

= Consolidated cash flow from operating activities

- Investments in fixed assets F.

-(+) Purchase or disposal of subsidiaries less acquired and relinquished cash and F.
cash equivalents

+ Payments from the sale of assets held for sale
+ Payments from the disposal of intangible and tangible assets

-(+) Increase or decrease in interest-bearing and
other non-current other long-term receivables

= Consolidated cash flow from investing activities

+ Inflows from loan financing
- Repayments of loan financing
- Outflows from promissory note loans
+ Inflows from real estate loan borrowings
- Repayments of real estate loan borrowings
- Outflows from leasing agreements
+(-) Change in current financial liabilities
- Third party dividends
= Consolidated cash flow from financing activities F.

+(-) Consolidated cash flow from operating activities
+(-) Consolidated cash flow from investing activities
+(-) Consolidated cash flow from financing activities
= Change in cash and cash equivalents
+(-) Effect from currency translations
+ Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents
= Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents

" Loan financing and real estate loans correspond to the item “bank loans” under interest-bearing liabilities.
2 For “Outflows from leasing agreements” see items “Other interest-bearing liabilities” and “Leasing liabilities”.
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2021
9,602
32,543
-475
2,775
-1,088
433
-322
-138
-3,162
-11,640
-47
-506
27,975
209
-2,898
-2,605
22,681

-35,979
1,821

5,900
2,093
1,000

-25,165

12,927
-2,074
-24,000
7,681
-2,667
-4977
1,755
-6,697
-18,051

22,681
-25,165
-18,051
-20,535

-140

90,389

69,714

2020
7,676
35,324
17,042
3,300
-1,041
2526
173
0
-4,866
23,168
9,891
-3,039
51,020
168
-3.239
2,168
45,781

-14,200
17,094

0
9,164

12,058

14,1417
14,9597
-15,000

3,503
-3,073"
-7,1582

0
-250
-22,796

45,781
12,058
-22,796
35,044
-264
55,609
90,389
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I CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE 2021 FINANCIAL YEAR

in EUR k Note Share capital Capital reserves Treasury stock
As at 1.1.2021 22,330 37,563 -1,855
Comprehensive income after tax 0 0 0
Other result after tax 0 0 0
Comprehensive income 0 0 0
Dividends 0 0 0
As at 31.12.2021 E. 18 22,330 37,563 -1,855
in EUR k Note Share capital Capital reserves Treasury stock
As at 1.1.2020 22,330 37,563 -1,855
Adaptation pursuant to IAS8 D.19 0 0 0
Adjusted amounts as at 1.1.2020 22,330 37,563 -1,855
Comprehensive income after tax 0 0 0
Other result after tax 0 0 0
Comprehensive income 0 0 0
Dividends 0 0 0
Changes due to deconsolidation B. 1 0 0 0
As at 31.12.2020 E. 18 22,330 37,563 -1,855
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Other reserves

Shares of
Actuarial Reserves from  POLYTEC Holding AG Non-controlling
Retained earnings profit/loss currency translation stockholders interests Total
187,740 -5,955 -8,866 230,958 3,885 234,843
7,061 0 0 7,061 -16 7,045
0 -10 3,676 3,665 0 3,665
7,061 -10 3,676 10,727 -16 10,711
-6,599 0 0 -6,599 -98 -6,697
188,203 -5,965 -5,191 235,087 3,771 238,859
Other reserves
Shares of
Actuarial Reserves from  POLYTEC Holding AG Non-controlling
Retained earnings profit/loss currency translation stockholders interests Total
193,947 -6,496 -4,791 240,700 11,885 252,586
-12,643 0 0 -12,643 0 -12,643
181,304 -6,496 -4,791 228,057 11,885 239,942
6,435 0 0 6,435 3,039 9,475
0 541 -4,075 -3,535 0 -3,535
6,435 541 -4,075 2,900 3,039 5,940
0 0 0 0 -250 -250
0 0 0 0 -10,789 -10,789
187,740 -5,955 -8,866 230,958 3,885 234,843
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NOTES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE 2021 FINANCIAL YEAR OF POLYTEC HOLDING AG, HORSCHING

I A. GENERAL INFORMATION

The POLYTEC GROUP is an Austria-based, internationally
active corporation with a focus on plastics processing for
the automotive industry. The group acts as a supplier of
components and modules used largely in the engine com-
partment, or on vehicle exteriors in the high-volume market
segment, as well as a provider of original accessories and
parts for small and medium volume series. The company
address of the POLYTEC Holding AG is Polytec-Strasse 1,
4063 Horsching, Austria.

The consolidated financial statements of POLYTEC Holding
AG (hereinafter referred to as the “group” or “POLYTEC
GROUP”) for the 2021 financial year were prepared in accor-
dance with the guidelines of the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and their interpretations in line
with EU standard practice. They also comply with the addi-
tional requirements of § 245a Para. 1 of the Austrian
Commercial Code (UGB).

The Board of Directors released the consolidated financial
statements for transfer to the Supervisory Board on
31 March 2022. The Supervisory Board has the task of exam-
ining and stating its approval of the consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 2021. On this occasion, the
Supervisory Board has an opportunity to require the alter-
ation of the consolidated financial statements.

POLYTEC Holding AG headquarters are located in Horsching,
Austria, and the company is listed in the City of Linz Company
Register under the number FN 197646 g. The Legal Entity
Identifier (LEI) is 5299000VSOBJINXZACWS81.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thou-
sands of euros (EUR k). When collating rounded amounts
and information given as a percentage, rounding differences
may occur due to the use of automatic calculation systems.

The consolidated income statement of the group is prepared
in accordance with the total cost accounting method.

Pursuant to § 245a of the Austrian Commercial Code (UGB),
these consolidated financial statements replace the consoli-
dated financial statements which would otherwise have to
be prepared in accordance with § 244 et seq. UGB. Polytec
Composites Germany GmbH & Co KG and Polytec Plastics
Germany GmbH & Co KG claim exemption pursuant to §264b
of the German Commercial Code (HGB).

GOING CONCERN

When drawing up the consolidated financial statements,
management must also assess the POLYTEC GROUP’s ability
to apply the going concern assumption to its financial
reporting. If material uncertainties with regard to events or
conditions exist that cast significant doubt in respect of this
capability, these concerns must be explained. In the estima-
tion of the management no uncertainties are manifest in
relation to the continuation of the POLYTEC GROUP as a go-
ing concern. As at 31 December 2021, the group disposed
over equity amounting to EUR 2389 million, which corre-
sponds to an equity ratio of 42.0%. In addition, the group
can point to a stable liquidity situation (see the consolidated
cash flow statement for the 2021 financial year), as well as
cash and cash equivalents of EUR 69.7 million.
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1. NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS FROM THE 2021
FINANCIAL YEAR

The following new and amended standards were applicable
for the first time in the 2021 financial year:

NOTES

Application
mandatory
according to
IASB for
financial Adopted by the EU

Standard Interpretation years from as at 31.12.2021
IFRS 16 Covid 19-related rent concessions (after 30 June 2021) 1 April 2021 Yes
IFRS 9, IAS 39, Reform of the reference interest rates - Phase 2 1 January 2021 Yes
IFRS 7, IFRS 4,

IFRS 16

IFRS 4 Extension of the temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 1 January 2021 Yes

There are no material effects upon the POLYTEC GROUP’s
consolidated financial statements.

2. NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS FROM THE 2022
FINANCIAL YEAR

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) is
working on numerous projects which will initially affect the
financial years commencing on 1 January 2022. The follow-

ing new, amended or supplemented standards and IFRIC
interpretations that have already published by the IASB, but
for which application is partially not yet mandatory, have not
been applied prematurely by the POLYTEC GROUP and are
therefore irrelevant for these consolidated financial state-
ments:

Application
mandatory
according to
IASB for
financial Adopted by the EU

Standard Interpretation

IAS 37 Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract
IFRS 17 Insurance contracts (including changes to IFRS 17)
Annual Annual improvements 2018 to 2020
improvements

Amendments Classification of liabilities as current or non-current
to IAS 1 (including the deferral of the effective date)

Amendments to
IAS 1 and the
IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Disclosure of accounting policies

Amendments Definition of accounting estimates

to IAS 8

Amendments Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising

to IAS 12 from a single transaction

Amendments Revenue earned before an asset is ready for its intended use
to IAS 16

Amendments to

IAS 28 and IFRS 10

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and a subsidiary
or joint venture

Amendments Reference to the conceptual framework

to IFRS 3

Amendments Insurance contracts: initial application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 -
to IFRS 17 comparative information

" Indefinite deferral of the effective date by the IASB
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years from
1 January 2022
1 January 2023
1 January 2022

1 January 2023

1 January 2023

1 January 2023

1 January 2023

1 January 2022

Optional™

1 January 2022

1 January 2023

as at 31.12.2021
Yes
Yes

Yes

Outstanding

Yes

Yes

Outstanding

Yes

No

Yes

Outstanding
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With regard to the future application of additional standards
and interpretations that as yet have not come into effect or
be applied by the POLYTEC GROUP, no significant material
changes to the reported assets, liabilities or other disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements are expected.

I B. PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

1. SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

The scope of consolidation is determined in accordance with
the principles of IFRS 10 (Consolidated Financial Statements)
and IAS 28 (Investments in Associates). The parent company
is POLYTEC Holding AG, Horsching. The financial statements
of POLYTEC Holding AG and the financial statements of
the companies controlled by POLYTEC Holding AG as at
31 December of each year are included in the consolidated
financial statements by way of full or equity consolidation.

The scope of consolidation of the POLYTEC GROUP includes
42 (2020: 44) fully consolidated companies of which 33
(2020: 33) are located outside Austria.

Control exists if the company has the power of decision over
important activities, generates variable returns from the
subsidiary and can influence these returns through such
power of decision.

Accordingly, in addition to the parent company, eight (2020:
ten) national and 33 (2020: 33) international subsidiaries
were included, which are under the control of POLYTEC
Holding AG. The five companies (2020: six) which were
excluded are also immaterial in total. The balance sheet date
for all companies included in the consolidated financial
statements was 31 December 2021.

An overview of the fully consolidated companies can be
found in section G. 6.

As a rule, the annual financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date of acquisition until the date of disposal. A subsidiary is
first included when control of its assets and business activi-
ties is actually assigned to the respective parent companuy. In
the case of materiality, companies that have been founded
or closed are included in the consolidated financial state-
ments and where immaterial are excluded.

NOTES

The scope of consolidation in the financial year was as
follows:

As at 31.12.2020 44
Outflow due to company sale -2
As at 31.12.2021 42

thereof international companies 33

As in the previous year, in 2021 no interests were included in
the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method.

COMPANY TRANSACTIONS AND FOUNDATIONS IN 2021

At the end of the 2021 financial year, the POLYTEC GROUP
sold its shares in PUR Immobilien GmbH & Co KG and
PUR Immobilien GmbH, both of which have their company
address in Marchtrenk, Austria.

Decon-

Equity solidation

Company holding date

PUR Immobilien GmbH & Co KG, 100% 31.12.2021
Marchtrenk

PUR Immobilien GmbH, Marchtrenk 100% 31.12.2021

The deconsolidation effect with regard to PUR Immobilien
GmbH & Co KG and PUR Immobilien GmbH is included in the
“Result from deconsolidation” contained in the consolidated
income statement.

The contribution of the two deconsolidated subsidiaries to
the values reported in the consolidated income statement
for 2021 was as follows:

in EUR k 2021
Sales revenues 447
Result after income tax 415

The result from the deconsolidation of the aforementioned
companies was determined by the comparison of the net
asset outflow with the consideration received.

in EUR k 2021
Consideration received 1,940
Deduction of the net assets of -1,466
PUR Immobilien GmbH & Co KG and

PUR Immobilien GmbH

Deconsolidation result 475
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COMPANY TRANSACTIONS AND NEW FOUNDATIONS

IN 2020

In the fourth quarter of the 2020 financial year, the POLYTEC
GROUP concluded a contract for the sale of its “Industrial”
business area, which produced polyurethane moulded parts
and coatings, as well as machinery and plant for the pro-
cessing of plastics for a variety of applications at locations in
Bochum (Germany) and Marchtrenk (Austria). Following an-
titrust approval, closure of the sale took place at the begin-
ning of December 2020.

The POLYTEC GROUP thus disposed of its “Industrial” busi-
ness unit. Previously POLYTEC Holding AG held a 70% partic-
ipation in POLYTEC Industrial Plastics GmbH, which in an ini-
tial step was sold to the entirely operative companies in
which the non-controlling stockholder held a 30% participa-
tion. In a second step, the 70% participation held to date in
POLYTEC Industrial Plastics GmbH was sold off. As a result of
these two steps, the controlling interest in the “Industrial”
business unit was surrendered.

POLYTEC Holding AG did not actively pursue the sale of the
Industrial business unit, even though in recent years a
number of potential buyers made repeated approaches in
order to express their interest in purchasing this entity. At the
same time, POLYTEC Holding AG had begun to increasingly
focus on its strategy as an all-round supplier of plastics solu-
tions for the automotive industry and complex modules for
other sectors. The POLYTEC Group manufactures large
batches of know-how intensive products made from injec-
tion moulded plastic and fibre composites, and will continue
to do so via its Smart Plastic Applications product line, as this
production is completely unconnected to the activities of
“Industrial”.

The sale has further consolidated POLYTEC GROUP’s al-
ready solid financial basis and its management is thus able
to concentrate fully on its core business activities. Nonethe-
less, the POLYTEC GROUP is equally prepared to seize any
acquisition opportunities arising from the need for consoli-
dation within the industry, which is anticipated due to the
present economic environment.

During the 2020 financial year, production at POLYTEC
Industrielackierungen GmbH & Co KG, which was based in
Rastatt, Germany had to be closed and an application was
made for the opening of insolvency proceedings. The com-
pany provided paint jobs for the automotive industry and in
particular for truck production.
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PUR Immobilien GmbH & Co. KG, Marchtrenk and PUR
Immobilien  GmbH, Marchtrenk, Austria, and POLYTEC
Engineering GmbH, Lohne, Germany, were newly founded
during the 2020 financial year and included in the POLYTEC
GROUP’s scope of consolidation.

During the 2020 financial year, the following companies
were deconsolidated:

Decon-
Equity solidation
Company holding date
POLYTEC Industrial Plastics GmbH, 70% 30.11.2020
Bochum, Germany
POLYTEC EMC Engineering GmbH, 70% 30.11.2020
Marchtrenk, Austria
POLYTEC Thelen GmbH, Bochum, 70% 30.11.2020
Germany
POLYTEC Elastoform GmbH, 70% 30.11.2020
Marchtrenk, Austria
POLYTEC Industrielackierungen GmbH 100% 13.08.2020

& Co. KG Rastatt, Germany

The deconsolidation effect with regard to the “Industrial”
business unit and POLYTEC Industrielackierungen GmbH &
Co KG is included in the result from deconsolidation con-
tained in the consolidated income statement.

The contribution of the entire business area to the values
reported in the consolidated income statement for 2020 was
as follows:

in EUR k 2020
Sales revenues 28,686
Result after income tax -3212

The result from the deconsolidation of the entire business
area was determined by the comparison of the net asset
outflow with the consideration received, taking into account
the non-controlling interests recognised directly in equity to
date and the goodwill previously allocated to the “Industrial”
CGU.
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in EUR k 2020
Consideration received 25,377
Deduction of the net assets of the “Industrial” -10,548
business unit and POLYTEC Industrielackierungen

GmbH & Co KG

Goodwill divestment -6,537
Allocation of the “Industrial” sales result at -2,039
sub-group level to non-controlling interests

Cumulative non-controlling interests, which upon 10,789
the loss of control over the subsidiaries are

neutral

Deconsolidation result 17,042

2. METHODS OF CONSOLIDATION

FULL CONSOLIDATION

IFRS 3 (Business Combinations) was applied to acquisitions.
Capital consolidation was therefore carried out on the basis
of the revaluation method (recognition of all assets and lia-
bilities at fair value even in the case of non-controlling inter-
ests and the complete disclosure of hidden reserves, inde-
pendent of the amount of the non-controlling interests). The
investment carrying amount is counterbalanced by the pro
rata, newly evaluated equity of the subsidiary (purchase
accounting).

Any remaining differences are capitalised as goodwill. All
goodwill is subjected to an annual impairment test. A pur-
chase at below the market value demands an assessment
of whether all the assets and debts have been identified
correctly prior to the recognition of a gain. The remaining
badwill is reported under other operating income.

In accordance with IFRS 10, non-controlling interests are
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements under
group equity. Within the scope of initial consolidation, non-
controlling interests are determined on the basis of propor-
tional equity.

All accounts receivable and payables, as well as expenses
and earnings resulting from transactions between compa-
nies within the scope of consolidation are eliminated taking
the principle of materiality into account. Interim results from
internal group deliveries are also eliminated to the extent
that they are not immaterial.
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3. CURRENCY TRANSLATION

BUSINESS TRANSACTIONS IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In the individual group companies, transactions in foreign
currencies were valued at the exchange rate on the date of
the transaction. Resultant exchange rate differences are re-
ported in the group’s consolidated income statement.

TRANSLATION OF INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The functional currency of subsidiaries outside the Eurozone
is the respective national currency. The assets and liabilities
of international subsidiaries were converted using the refer-
ence exchange rate of the European Central Bank on the
balance sheet date. Resultant exchange rate differences are
reported in the group’s consolidated statement of compre-
hensive income. Positions in the group’s consolidated income
statement were converted using the average exchange rates
of the financial year under review.

The euro has been determined as the functional currency at
POLYTEC COMPOSITES South Africa (Pty) Ltd. This is be-
cause the percentage of transactions in euros at the plant
will increase considerably and the currency will be employed
for earnings and cost orientation.

Exchange rate differences derived from monetary positions,
which from an economic point of view belong to an interna-
tional company, e.g. long-term receivables and loans, are
netted against group equity without an effect upon compre-
hensive income and reported under the position “Currency
translation”.

The following currency exchange rates were used:

Average Exchange rate on the

exchange rate balance sheet date

2021 2020 31.12.2021 31.12.2020

CNY 7.5988 7.8927 7.1947 8.0257
CZK 25.6410 26.4550 24.8580 26.2467
GBP 0.8582 0.8888 0.8403 0.8990
HUF 3571429 3571429 369.1944 370.3704
TRY 10.5152 8.0321 15.2335 9.1158
usb 1.1809 1.1451 1.1326 1.2271
ZAR 17.5747 18.8324 18.0625 18.0180
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I C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The POLYTEC GROUP measures financial instruments at
either amortised cost or fair value. Fair value is defined
through the price that would be received in an orderly busi-
ness transaction between market participants on the valua-
tion date for the sale of an asset, or paid for the transfer of a
debt. During the measurement of fair value it is assumed
that the business transaction in the course of which the asset
sale or debt transfer occurs, takes place on the main market
for the asset or the debt, or should a main market not exist,
on the most advantageous market. The POLYTEC GROUP
measures fair value using the assumptions employed by the
market participants as a basis for pricing. It is presupposed
that the market participants act in their best business inter-
ests.

During the measurement of the fair value of a non-financial
asset, the ability of the market participant to generate eco-
nomic advantage through maximum and best asset use is
accounted for.

Valuation techniques are employed for the determination of
fair value which are appropriate under the respective condi-
tions and provide sufficient data for fair value measurement,
whereby observable input factors are used if possible.

Depending upon the significance of the influential factors
included in the valuation, a differentiation is made between
three fair value levels, which clarify the extent to which ob-
servable market data is available for fair value measure-
ment.

The levels of the fair value hierarchy and their application
with regard to assets and liabilities can be described as
follows:

Level 1:
Listed market prices for identical assets or liabilities in active
markets.

Level 2:

Information other than listed market prices that is directly
(e.g. prices) or indirectly (e.g. extrapolated from prices)
observable.

Level 3:
Information regarding assets and liabilities that is not based
on observable market data.
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I D. ACCOUNTING AND VALUATION PRINCIPLES

The principle of standardised accounting and valuation is
applied through directives that are valid throughout the
entire group. Insubstantial deviations with regard to the indi-
vidual financial statements of international group compa-
nies are retained. All financial statements are based on a
going concern principle of the group.

1. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Acquired intangible assets are valued at the cost of acquisi-
tion and subjected to scheduled amortisation on a straight-
line basis. The amortisation rates range between 10.0% and
50.0%.

Expenses for research are shown as expenses in the year of
their occurrence. Engineering costs also generally represent
periodic expenses. These are capitalised when certain condi-
tions can be proven and are cumulatively fulfilled. Among
other aspects, it must be verifiable that engineering activities
are very likely to result in the future accrual of funds, which
not only cover standard costs, but also the related develop-
ment expenses.

2. TANGIBLE ASSETS

Tangible assets are valued at the cost of acquisition or pro-
duction less scheduled depreciation. Scheduled depreciation
is determined using the straight-line method and takes place
either on the basis of fair value, or should this be higher, the
utility value.

The following rates are used for the scheduled depreciation
on depreciable tangible assets:

Buildings and leasehold improvements 2.5-20.0%
Technical equipment and machinery 6.7-50.0%
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 10.0-50.0%

Interest on borrowings is not capitalised since no material
borrowing costs for qualifying assets were incurred.

Obligations exist from leasing, rental and lease agreements,
which are reported as right-of-use assets in the tangible
assets of the consolidated balance sheet. In the 2021 finan-
cial year, right-of-use assets were mainly recognised for
office, production and warehouse buildings, company vehi-
cles and forklifts.
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3. INVENTORIES

Inventories are reported at their acquisition or production
costs, or the lower net realisable value on the balance sheet
date. The determination of acquisition and production costs
is performed for similar assets in accordance with the
weighted average cost method, or comparable methods.
Production costs only include directly attributable costs and
proportionate overhead costs. Interest on borrowed capital
is not capitalised, as no substantial borrowing costs are in-
curred that are directly attributable to qualifying assets. The
risk derived from obsolete inventory stocks is accounted for
by appropriate reductions in the carrying amount.

4. TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Receivables are capitalised at the transaction price.

Apart from the standard valuation of receivables on the
basis of a past analysis and an estimate of future develop-
ments, which takes into account default, country risk and
existing loan insurance, in the case of an individual impair-
ment, the likelihood of a payment receipt is also evaluated. In
particular, experiences with the customers, their credit-
worthiness and any hedging are taken into consideration.
Notes regarding value adjustments and corrections resulting
from price differences are shown in item E. 12.

5. CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES FROM CONTRACTS
WITH CUSTOMERS

The revenue and result realisation of a contract with custom-
ers for the production of tooling and engineering services
takes place in accordance with the percentage of completion
method (period-based sales revenue recognition), to the
extent that no possibility for alternative use and a right to
payment including an appropriate margin exist. Progress is
determined on the closing date on the basis of the ratio on
the balance sheet date of the costs incurred to the estimated
overall expense of the respective customer contract. Chang-
es to the contractual work, the requirements and perfor-
mance bonuses are included to the degree that their amount
can be determined reliably and legal enforceability is given.
The contract assets are reclassified as receivables if the
rights become unreserved. As a rule, this occurs when the
group presents the customer with an invoice.
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Should it not be possible to reliably determine the result of
customer contracts, the related income is only reported to
the amount of the incurred contractual costs that are proba-
bly recoverable. Contractual costs are recognised as an ex-
pense in the period in which they occur. If it is anticipated that
the entire contractual costs will exceed total contractual
income, the anticipated loss is reported immediately as an
expense (provision for impending losses).

If on the closing date the contractual costs plus recognised
profits and minus recognised losses exceed the partial in-
voices, then the surplus is to be reported as contract assets.
The company expects the recognition of the proceeds from
contract assets within a period of two to five years. In the
case of contracts in which the partial invoices exceed the in-
curred costs plus recognised gains and minus recognised
losses, the surplus is to be reported as a contract liability.
Amounts received prior to the provision of production per-
formance are reported in the consolidated balance sheet as
“Contract liabilities”. Settled amounts for already completed
performance that have not yet been paid by the customer
are included in the consolidated balance sheet under the
item “Trade accounts receivable” and as a rule are paid with-
in a short deadline.

In the case of series parts, which do not offer an alternative
possibility for use, the criteria for period-based sales reve-
nue recognition are met when an order has already been
received.

Contract assets from contracts with customers include
amortisation receivables from tooling and development
projects already accepted by the customer, and admission
fees. These contract assets usually contain an interest com-
ponent.

Amortisation receivables from tooling and engineering proj-
ects already accepted by the customer and for which cus-
tomer agreements to the offsetting of claims via a surcharge
on the part price exist, are capitalised and paid during the
settlement for serial parts.

Admission fees for order obtainment are capitalised and
repaid over the duration of the customer contract received.

In addition, the costs of engineering services and tooling are
reported as inventories where no enforceable contractual
claim to reimbursement exists, but nevertheless such ex-
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penses can be allocated directly to an ongoing or future
series production order. In accordance with IFRS 15 (Costs to
Fulfil a Contract) these contractual costs are capitalised and
recognised in profit and loss as an expense over the contract
period. In such cases the surcharges imposed upon the com-
ponent price for development services and tooling produc-
tion are first recognised as sales revenues upon delivery of
the serial products. Impairment is undertaken where the
capitalised contractual costs exceed the expected contribu-
tion received from the customer.

6. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Where existent, the reported other receivables include any
derivative financial assets that show a positive market value
and are classified as “measured at fair value through profit
or loss”.

Non-current receivables are recognised at present value
on the basis of an interest rate in line with the market.

7. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Assets held for sale are valued at the carrying amount or the
lower anticipated sales proceeds less selling costs. The antic-
ipated sales proceeds are determined by means of the mon-
itoring of comparable objects in the market and the initial
price indications of interested parties.

8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, cheques
and cash at banks.
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9. IMPAIRMENT

Intangible and tangible assets are subjected to an impair-
ment test if there is an indication that an asset or a cash
generating unit may be impaired. Intangible assets with an
indefinite useful life and intangible assets that are not yet
subject to wear and tear are subject to an annual impair-
ment test, regardless of whether there is an indication of
impairment.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are aggregat-
ed into the smallest identifiable group that can generate
largely independent cash
(cash-generating unit, CGU). Since 31 December 2021, the

inflows from other assets
cash-generating unit has represented the level of the entire
Group, which means that there is only one CGU. The back-
ground to this development is provided by the fundamental
and sustainable organisational realignment resulting from
the cross-technology orientation (the so-called POLYTEC
SOLUTION FORCE). Independent of the legal entities, regions
or product lines, the POLYTEC GROUP is clearly oriented
towards the production of complex plastic modules with a
focus on the automotive industry. Central control of the
entire group is therefore essential and is provided via the
holding company and the Board of Directors. This also
includes all strategic decisions. The change in the organisa-
tion is due primarily to the shift in the market and customer
requirements. The automotive industry is undergoing a pro-
cess of profound transformation driven by the major future
topics of sustainability, digitalisation and urbanisation (espe-
cially mobility services and shared mobility). This transition
in the automotive industry and the associated repositioning
of the POLYTEC GROUP means that the Car Styling, Compos-
ites and Plastics cash-generating units, which were identifi-
able until 31 December 2021, could no longer be seen as
such. Moreover, owing to the fact that the explained reorgan-
isation only became effective as at 31 December 2021, an
impairment test is carried out as per the reporting date in
both the previous CGU structure and for the first time in the
new CGU structure.

Impairment is deemed to exist if the recoverable amount of
the asset, or of the cash-generating unit is lower than the
carrying amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
the value in use and the fair value less selling costs.

The value in use of the asset corresponds to the present
value of the estimated future cash flow. The cash flow em-
ployed to determine the value in use is derived from current
plans approved by the Board of Directors and the Superviso-
ry Board. The calculation of future cash flow is based on a
planning horizon of three years. For the period after this
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planning horizon, a perpetual annuity is calculated based on
the assumptions for the third year. The interest rate used
to determine the present values is a pre-tax interest rate that
is customary in the market, adjusted to the specific risks of
the asset or cash-generating unit and corresponds to the
weighted average cost of capital.

Impairment expense is disclosed to the amount by which the
carrying amount of the individual asset or the cash-generat-
ing unit exceeds the recoverable amount. Impairment ex-
penses reduce the carrying amounts of the assets of the
cash-generating unit on a pro rata basis.

Should the reasons for impairment cease to exist, corre-
sponding write-ups are performed for tangible and intangi-
ble assets up to the amortised costs.

10. OBLIGATIONS TO EMPLOYEES

PROVISIONS FOR SEVERANCE PAYMENTS

Due to statutory obligations, employees of domestic group
companies who joined the company prior to 1 January 2003
are entitled to a one-off severance payment in the event of
the termination of their contract, or at the time of retirement.
The payment amount depends upon the number of years of
service and the relevant remuneration at the severance date.
For all employment contracts concluded after 31 December
2002, payments are made to a company pension fund for
employees and reported as an expense.

The provisions for severance payments are determined on
the balance sheet date using the projected unit credit meth-
od, as well as by applying a discount rate of 0.90% (2020:
0.80%) and allowing for future remuneration increases of
2.00% (2020: 1.75%). A discount for employee turnover based
on the years of service is included. The assumed uniform
retirement age for men and women, taking into account
certain temporary arrangements, is unchanged over the
preceding year at 62. Service costs are divided over the
entire period of service of employees from the date that they
join the company until they reach the expected retirement
age.

Pursuant to IAS 19, actuarial gains/losses are recognised
under other comprehensive income in the year in which they
occur. Current and past service costs are reported as per-
sonnel expenses in the consolidated income statement, while
the interest expense related to provisions for severance pay-
ments is reported in the financial result.

124

NOTES

PENSION OBLIGATIONS

Pension obligations exist for certain German group compa-
ny employees. These obligations are reported in accordance
with IAS 19. For this purpose, the current value of the defined
benefit obligation (DBO) is determined. The pension provi-
sions are calculated using the projected unit credit method,
whereby depending upon the distribution of the obligations
to entitlements and liquid pensions, and owing to the specific
regulations of the individual pension funds, a discount rate of
110% (2020: 1.00%), as well as an increase of 1.75% (2020:
1.75%) is applied. The 2018G - Dr. Klaus Heubeck tables are
used for the actuarial calculations.

In accordance with IAS 19, actuarial gains/losses are rec-
ognised under other comprehensive income in the year in
which they occur. Current and past service costs are report-
ed as personnel expenses in the consolidated income state-
ment, while the interest expense related to provisions for
pensions is reported in the financial result.

At the two Dutch companies, the entitlements of active pen-
sion scheme members are dealt with in the form of a defined
contribution pension plan. The pension entitlements of for-
mer employees and beneficiaries are calculated as a per-
centage of the annual remuneration during each year of
service. These benefits are handled via an insurance compa-
ny and are indexed on an ongoing basis in line with the spec-
ifications of the industry pension fund.

Two POLYTEC GROUP companies in Germany have out-
sourced their defined benefit pension commitments to a
mutual insurance society (pension fund), which is monitored
by the Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (BaFin). The
pension fund covers retirement, disability and survivor pen-
sions. Other insurance is not concluded. The pension fund
insures both active and former employees from 29 company
groups of which all share joint liability in order to fulfil their
benefit obligations. The pension fund invests the paid contri-
butions and secures the fulfilment of benefit commitments.
As at 30 June 2016, the POLYTEC GROUP terminated all
future contribution payments and will assume future pension
payments through internal financing (future services). Previ-
ously vested benefits (past services) remain in the pension
fund. Owing to insufficient information from the pension fund
regarding the status of the pension obligation, in accordance
with I1AS 19.34ff, the POLYTEC GROUP reports these as defined
contribution plans. On the date of its annual financial state-
ments on 31 December 2020, the pension fund disclosed
assets of EUR 512 million (2019: EUR 497 million) and obliga-
tions of EUR 495 million (2019: EUR 483 million), and therefore



POLYTEC 2021

equity of EUR 17 million (2019: EUR 14 million). The POLYTEC
GROUP holds a roughly 7% share of the net assets of the
pension fund (2019: 7%). For further information, see the es-
timated uncertainties.

OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS TO EMPLOYEES

Owing to collective or other company agreements, employ-
ees are entitled to receive a certain bonus in line with their
length of service. A provision has been formed for these ob-
ligations using the same amounts as those employed for
pension obligations (with the exception of the discount for
employee turnover).

11. TAXES

Tax receivables are reported as netted against tax liabilities
when they relate to the same fiscal authority and a possibili-
ty for netting is available.

The income tax expense (the income tax credit) includes both
actual and deferred taxes.

The group is unaware of any material tax risks. Moreover, in
the course of the determination of the provision for taxes
and deferred taxes, individual tax risks are countered by
means of a cautious probability balance. In the case of cur-
rent open tax audits, queries that have been raised, but do
not represent definitive issues within the context of an overall
estimate of the total group tax burden are accounted for in
the provision for income taxes. As a rule no deduction is
made for the detection risk.

The actual taxes for the individual companies are calculated
on the basis of the taxable income of the company and the
applicable tax rate in the respective country.

In particular, tax deferrals are formed for timing differences
between IFRS valuations and the tax balances of individual
companies, as well as for consolidation processes. Pursuant
to IAS 12, their determination takes place in accordance with
the balance sheet liability method. The likely realisable tax
advantage emanating from existing loss carryforwards is
alsoincluded in the investigative process. Deferred tax assets
are only formed on loss carryforwards when their use can be
expected within five years. The calculation of deferred tax is
based on the standard rate of national income tax.

125

NOTES

12. LIABILITIES

Trade accounts payable are measured at the fair value of
the goods and services received when the liabilities arise.
Subsequently, these liabilities are measured at amortised
cost. Other liabilities, especially borrowed interest-bearing
liabilities, are recognised at their repayment amount, unless
there is a material difference to the fair value. Subsequent
measurement is at amortised cost using the effective inter-
est method.

13. PROVISIONS

Provisions are formed when it can be determined with cer-
tainty that there are legal or de facto obligations to third
parties based on past business transactions or events that
are likely to lead to an outflow of resources. Such provisions
are recognised at the expected settlement amount with due
regard to all the identifiable risks attached. Within this con-
text, the settlement amount with the highest probability of
occurrence is assumed. Non-current provisions are discount-
ed if the discounting effect is material and the discounting
period can be estimated reliably.

Provisions for contingent losses and potential risks consist of
the provisions for contingent losses pursuant to IAS 37 and
for disadvantageous contracts in accordance with IFRS 3.

During the measurement of the provisions for disadvanta-
geous contracts pursuant to IFRS 3, the contracts concluded
with regard to purchase are analysed with respect to
onerous, legal and constructive obligations. An existing
burden or disadvantage is accounted for through the forma-
tion of a provision.

A provision for restructuring measures is recognised as soon
as the group has approved a detailed and formal restructur-
ing plan and the related measures have either commenced
or been announced publicly. Future operational losses are
not accounted for.
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14. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the balance
sheet should the group become a contractual party in rela-
tion to a financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights from the assets expire, or the assets are transferred
with all material rights and obligations. Financial liabilities
are also derecognised if the contractual obligations have
been settled, deleted or have expired. Purchases and sales of
financial instruments subject to customary market condi-
tions are generally reported with the settlement date.

Financial assets are categorised as follows:

a. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or
loss

b. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when the
asset is held in order to gather contractual cash flows as part
of the business model and the contractual terms result in
cash flows at specified dates, which solely represent the
reimbursement of capital and interest on the principal out-
standing. If these two conditions are not met, the valuation is
made at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL). In the finan-
cial year and the previous year, a valuation at FVPL was only
carried out for derivatives.

Financial liabilities are categorised as follows:

a. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

b. Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The only exception to measure-
ment at amortised cost is provided by derivatives, which are
measured in the consolidated financial statements at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL).

Other possible categories pursuant to IFRS 9 are not applied
and hedge accounting is also not employed. Financial deriv-
atives are only concluded for the hedging of basic business.
Financial derivatives that do not correspond to hedge ac-
counting pursuant to IFRS 9 are classified as assets or liabil-
ities measured at fair value through profit or loss and rec-
ognised in the balance sheet at fair value. This corresponds
to the current value, should one exist, or is determined using
standard valuation methods employing the market data
available on the valuation closing date. Fair value mirrors the
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estimated amount that the POLYTEC GROUP must pay or
receive if this transaction were to be completed on the bal-
ance sheet date. Changes in value are recognised in the
consolidated income statement through profit and loss.

15. REALISATION OF INCOME AND EXPENSES

As far as revenue recognition over a period of time is con-
cerned, see 5. “Contract assets/liabilities”. Revenue recogni-
tion at a point in time is not applied.

Operating expenses are recognised through profit and loss
when the service is rendered or the expenses are incurred.

16. FINANCIAL RESULT

The interest result (expenses) includes the interest arising
from debt financing and interest equivalent expenses from
leasing transactions, as well as the interest components of
the change in obligations to employees.

The interest result (revenues) includes the interest, dividends
and similar revenues realised from the investment of funds
and investment in financial assets. Interest income is realised
proportional to time and the effective interest rate of the
asset is taken into account. Dividend income is reported with
effect from the date of the legal claim.

Gains and losses from the disposal of financial assets, im-
pairment expenses from financial investments, exchange
rate gains and losses in connection with financing activities,
as well as the results from hedging transactions are reported
in the other financial result.

17. GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The indirect method was selected for the consolidated cash
flow from operating activities disclosed in the presentation
of the group cash flow statement. The financial fund
corresponds to the cash and cash equivalents and current
funding.
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18. UNCERTAINTIES WITH REGARD TO ASSESSMENTS
AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
requires that the management draws up estimates and as-
sumptions with regard to the application of accounting and
valuation principles, as well as potential future developments
that might influence the reporting and value of the rec-
ognised assets and liabilities, information regarding other
obligations on the balance sheet date, and the recognition of
income and expenses during the reporting period. The actu-
al amounts to be realised in the future may deviate from
these estimations.

In assessing the intrinsic value of intangible and tangible as-
sets management prepares estimates and future-related
assumptions regarding the surplus inflows expected over the
planning periods and the costs of capital of both the POLYTEC
GROUP and the cash-generating unit. Such estimates are
made in all good faith subject to the assumption that the
group is a going concern. They are also based upon experi-
ence and take any remaining uncertainty into due account.
With regard to the risk discounts in medium-term planning,
reference should be made to the information contained un-
der G. 2. d Climate risks. However, changed assumptions or
circumstances may necessitate corrections.

The revenue and result realisation of a customer contract for
the production of tooling and engineering services takes
place on the basis of the percentage of completion (peri-
od-related revenue realisation). The realisation of amortisa-
tion receivables and admission fees is also founded on esti-
mates that incorporate all the information available on the
balance sheet date. Subsequent changes are possible and
can lead to asset value adjustments and exert a material in-
fluence upon the results from subsequent periods.

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, the
management evaluates the likelihood that all deferred tax
assets will be realised. The final realisation of deferred tax
assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable
income in those periods during which temporary differences
become deductible. If the company is unable to generate
sufficient future taxable income, no deferred tax benefits
from operating loss carryforwards or temporary differences
can be recognised and their value has therefore to be adjust-
ed correspondingly. The assumptions regarding future pay-
ment surpluses and the future result subject to tax are based
on medium-term group planning. Assumptions concerning
future payment surpluses, as well as future taxable results,
are based on the medium-term planning of the group.
Should these prove to be incorrect, this can have consider-
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able effects on the assets reported in subsequent years. A
sensitivity analysis has shown that, as in the preceding year,
in comparison to medium-term planning a 10% reduction in
taxable income would not result in any additional value ad-
justment to the deferred tax assets from loss carryforwards
and temporary differences.

The estimation of the useful life of fixed assets is either based
on experience values resulting from the operation of compa-
rable plant, or a shorter anticipated product lifecycle. In
addition, during the determination of rights of use an esti-
mate regarding periods and any possible termination and
prolongation options, as well as the extrapolation of the tax
rate is of relevance.

The actuarial assessment of severance, pension and
long-service obligations carried out by independent actuar-
ies is based on a method that employs parameters such as
the expected discount rate, increases in remuneration pay-
ments and pension contributions. In addition to the interest
rate risk and the risk of a potential increase in remuneration
payments and pension contributions, there is also a longevi-
ty risk. If the development of these relevant parameters
differs significantly from the original expectations, this may
have considerable effects upon the provisions and conse-
quently upon the group’s net expenses for severance pay-
ments and pension contributions. In order to present the
impact of a change in the interest rate used to determine
severance payment and pension obligations, a sensitivity
analysis was carried out, which is explained in greater detail
under E. 21 “Obligations to employees”.

In view of existing and threatening contingent funding com-
mitments to a pension fund, a provision of EUR 2,322 k (2020:
EUR 724 k) was formed under the other provisions contained
in the POLYTEC GROUP’s consolidated financial statements.
This amount was established on the basis of information
provided by the management of the pension fund and re-
lates to probable liquidity outflows prior to the restoration of
the independent viability of the pension fund. The anticipat-
ed liquidity outflow derives from the restructuring plan
drawn up by the pension fund management, which has been
approved by the BaFin. Should the restructuring plan fail, as
the former employer, the POLYTEC GROUP could be subject
to a subsidiary liability. At present, no material indications
exist that point to a subsidiary liability becoming effective. In
2021, no payments were made to the pension fund (2020:
EUR 0 k).
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19. ERROR CORRECTION AND REPORTING AMENDMENT
PURSUANT TO IAS 8

In the course of a random sample audit by the Austrian
Financial Reporting Enforcement Panel (OePR), the consoli-
dated financial statements as at 31 December 2019 and the
related group management report, as well as the half-year
financial reports as at 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2020 were
selected and subjected to an audit pursuant to § 2 Para. 1
Clause 2 RL-KG (audit without special cause).

As a result of its audit, the Austrian Financial Reporting
Enforcement Panel identified a breach of the IAS 36 regula-
tions in connection with the goodwill of the Car Styling CGU in
the consolidated financial statements of POLYTEC Holding AG
as at 31 December 2019. The resulting correction has now
been accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
as at 31 December 2021 under the previous year’s figures
for “Goodwill” and "Retained earnings” to an amount of
minus EUR 12,643 k (see tables below). This had no effect on
the consolidated income statement of the previous year. The
violation is justified as follows:

The impairment test performed for the Car Styling CGU is
based on cash flow projections that are not founded on rea-
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sonable and supportable assumptions in accordance with
IAS 36.33(a), which constitute the management’s best esti-
mate of economic conditions. Furthermore, management
has not ensured that in accordance with IAS 36.34 the as-
sumptions on which the cash flow projections are founded
are consistent with actual past performance. In addition, the
surmise of a continuous increase in earnings (as made in the
medium-term planning for the terminal value assumptions)
does not contradict the stipulations of IAS 36.37, according to
which competition is expected to lead to pressure on earn-
ings margins.

Therefore, the recoverability of almost all of the goodwill for
the Car Styling CGU amounting to EUR 12,643 k could not be
demonstrated as at 31 December 2019 and as consequence,
the result and equity as at 31 December 2019 and the equity
as at 30 June 2020 have been overstated.

In addition to the correction of errors, a change was made to
the reporting of contract assets from contracts with custom-
ers in the current consolidated financial statements. Due to
improved reporting instruments, which allow for an analysis
of maturities, a breakdown into current and non-current
is now made. The previous year’s values were adjusted
accordingly.

ERROR CORRECTION AND REPORTING AMENDMENT TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 1 JANUARY 2020 PURSUANT TO IAS 8

Assets

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Tangible assets

Other non-current assets

Revenues from contracts with customers
Deferred tax assets

Non-current assets

Inventories

Trade accounts receivable

Revenues from contracts with customers
Other current receivables

Income tax receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets held for sale

Current assets

Total assets
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Previous Correction Adjusted
in EUR k in EUR k in EUR k
4,776 4,776
19,180 -12,643 6,537
276,789 276,789
126 126

0 +37,732 37,732

7,245 7,245
308,117 +25,089 333,206
40,875 40,875
53,413 53,413
125,774 -37,732 88,042
10,399 10,399
1,433 1,433
55,609 55,609
287,504 -37,732 249,772
9,980 9,980
297,484 -37,732 259,752
605,601 -12,643 592,958
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Previous Correction Adjusted
Equity and liabilities in EUR k in EUR k in EUR k
Share capital 22,330 22,330
Capital reserves 37,563 37,563
Treasury stock -1,855 -1,855
Retained earnings 193,947 -12,643 181,304
Other reserves -11,286 -11,286
Equity of the parent company owner 240,700 -12,643 228,057
Non-controlling interests 11,885 11,885
Equity 252,585 -12,643 239,942
Non-current interest-bearing liabilities 194,145 194,145
Provision for deferred taxes 4,275 4,275
Provisions for employees 30,616 30,616
Other long-term provisions 1,753 1,753
Non-current liabilities 230,788 230,788
Current interest-bearing liabilities 17,454 17,454
Liabilities on income taxes 2,155 2,155
Trade accounts payable 52,908 52,908
Liabilities from contracts with customers 2,889 2,889
Other current liabilities 29,760 29,760
Current provisions 17,061 17,061
Current liabilities 122,228 122,228
Total assets 605,601 -12,643 592,958
ERROR CORRECTION AND REPORTING AMENDMENT TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 PURSUANT TO IAS 8

Previous Correction Adjusted
Assets in EUR k in EUR k in EUR k
Intangible assets 5,120 5,120
Goodwill 12,643 -12,643 0
Tangible assets 249,862 249,862
Other non-current assets 2,035 2,035
Revenues from contracts with customers 0 +31,911 31,911
Deferred tax assets 8,169 8,169
Non-current assets 277,829 +19,268 297,097
Inventories 38,570 38,570
Trade accounts receivable 55,020 55,020
Revenues from contracts with customers 90,812 -31,911 58,901
Other current receivables 14,216 14,216
Income tax receivables 1,307 1,307
Cash and cash equivalents 90,389 90,389

290,315 -31,911 258,404
Assets held for sale 13,360 13,360
Current assets 303,675 -31,911 271,764
Total assets 581,504 -12,643 568,861
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Previous Correction Adjusted
Equity and liabilities in EUR k in EUR k in EUR k
Share capital 22,330 22,330
Capital reserves 37,563 37,563
Treasury stock -1,855 -1,855
Retained earnings 200,383 -12,643 187,740
Other reserves -14,820 -14,820
Equity of the parent company owner 243,601 -12,643 230,958
Non-controlling interests 3,885 3,885
Equity 247,486 -12,643 234,844
Non-current interest-bearing liabilities 160,342 160,342
Provision for deferred taxes 1,803 1,803
Provisions for employees 26,899 26,899
Other long-term provisions 0 0
Non-current liabilities 189,044 189,044
Current interest-bearing liabilities 37,889 37,889
Liabilities on income taxes 2,080 2,080
Trade accounts payable 52,703 52,703
Liabilities from contracts with customers 5,365 5,365
Other current liabilities 31,718 31,718
Current provisions 15,219 15,219
Current liabilities 144,974 144974
Total assets 581,504 -12,643 568,861

E. NOTES TO THE GROUP’S CONSOLIDATED INCOME -

I STATEMENT, COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT n EUR K 2021 2020
AND BALANCE SHEET vw 182,368 166,116
Daimler 146,329 105,795
Jaguar Land Rover 43,370 35,894
1. NET SALES REVENUES AND SEGMENT REPORTING Other Automotive 110,549 139,210
Non-Automotive 73,259 74,960
Following a comprehensive analysis of the reporting struc- Total 555874 521,976

ture, it was concluded that the POLYTEC GROUP is a one-
segment group. Therefore, the obligatory operating seg-
ment reporting for a single segment in the 2021 and 2020
financial year is limited to inter-segmental disclosures in
accordance with IFRS 8.31 et seq.

As an automotive industry sub-supplier, the group naturally
depends upon a small number of major customers. The
distribution of sales according to customers is as follows:
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In 2021 and 2020, two respective customer groups provided
more than 50% of the group’s total sales. Due to the exten-
sive range of models and marques of these key accounts,
which as a rule operate in the passenger car and commercial
vehicle sectors, the customer-supplier relationship in both
cases relates to all business areas, although to differing
degrees.



POLYTEC 2021

The distribution of sales according to market segments is as

follows:
in EUR k 2021 2020
Passenger Cars & Light 390,193 328,746
Commercial Vehicles
Commercial Vehicles 92,422 118,269
Industrial Applications 73,259 74,960
Total 555,874 521,976

The disclosures concerning geographical areas to be made
at group level (determined in the sales revenues area in line
with the location of customers’ business premises) on the
balance sheet dates can be summarised as follows:

Intangible assets,
goodwill and

in EUR k External sales fixed assets

2021 2020 2021 2020"
Austria 36,695 22,303 82,102 81,079
Germany 319,411 285,561 89,748 92,404
UK 45,665 43274 29,011 21,921
Sweden 23,292 24,486 0 0
Hungary 24,090 12,055 4,999 4,277
Rest of EU 78,012 103,695 37,717 31,035
Other countries 28,709 30,603 30,398 24,266
Total 555,874 521,976 273,976 254,982

" The figures for the previous year were adjusted. See Item D. 19.

Period-related sales revenues are divided according to
categories as follows:

in EUR k 2021 2020
Part sales and other revenues 489,654 463,811
Tooling and engineering sales 66,220 58,165
Total 555,874 521,976
2. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

in EUR k 2021 2020
Income from the disposal of and 302 1,085
additions to fixed assets excluding

financial assets

Income from cost reimbursements 264 292
Grants and receivables 4,538 1,156
Income from rents 1 29
Income from pension fund surpluses 270 2,378
Other income 4,310 4,031
Total 9,685 8,971

NOTES

The income from pension fund surpluses relates to excess
payments in past financial years, which were repaid in the
2021 and 2020 financial years.

In the past financial year, grants from public funds amount-
ing to EUR 4,827 k (2020: EUR 14,045 k) were recognised in
the income statement. These consist mainly of fixed cost
grants of EUR 3,782 k (2020: EUR 1,156 k), which are reported
under other operating income, and short-time working
grants of EUR 289 k (2020: EUR 12,889 k). These are netted
out from wages and salaries. Since a large number of the
employees affected were able to gradually return to full
employment in the 2020 financial year, a sizeable decrease
was recorded in this regard.

3. EXPENSES FOR MATERIALS AND SERVICES RECEIVED

in EUR k 2021 2020
Material expenses 240,178 154,360
Expenses for services received 44356 103,217
Total 284534 257,577
4. PERSONNEL EXPENSES

in EUR k 2021 2020
Wages and salaries 130,668 144,433
Expenses for leasing personnel 17,481 12,414
Statutory social expenses 26,479 27,190
Expenses for severance payments 4,750 9,449
and pensions

Other personnel expenses 953 1,276
Total 180,331 194,761

The expenses for severance payments and pensions also
include expenses for defined contribution plans. For the
Austrian companies within the group, these expenses
amounted to EUR 294 k (2020: EUR 319 k).

In connection with government grants, we would refer you
to the information under item E. 2 “Other operating income”.

The number of employees of the POLYTEC GROUP (including
leasing personnel) was as follows:

2021 2020
Average 3,585 3,939
As at 31 December 3,420 3,636
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The number of employees of the POLYTEC GROUP (exclud-  The other operating costs also contain the following expens-

ing leasing personnel) was as follows: es for the services provided by the group auditors:
2021 2020 in EUR k 2021 2020
Average 3,182 3,683 Annual and group financial audit 204 207
As at 31 December 3,144 3,228 Other non-auditing services 5 9
Other services 51 34
The average numbers of POLYTEC Holding AG employee
verage num NG AL eMPIOYEES  rotal 260 250
(excluding leasing personnel) and of the Austrian subsidiar-
ies of the POLYTEC GROUP were as follows:
2021 2020 6. FINANCIAL RESULT
Blue-collar employees 250 278
White-collar employees 180 212 in EUR k 2021 2020
Total 430 490 Interest income and income from 209 168
securities
Interest component of pension -247 -259
commitments
5. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES Other interest expenses -2,596 -2,984
Interest derived from leasing liabilities -141 -281
in EUR k 2021 2020 Other financial income/expenses 78 -1,931
Maintenance costs 13,341 13,639 Total -2,697 -5,287
Other operating costs 9,022 10,407
Other administrative costs 7672 5275 The interest component from pension commitments is a
- h item. All other int 1 int ti
Outgoing freight 4985 5167 non-cash item other interest expenses or interest income
consist largely of cash items.
Rent for property 0 81
Other sales costs 1,339 1,677
Other rent and leasing costs 3,032 4517
IT and communication costs 5,750 4,343
Legal and consulting costs 3,038 3,012
Taxes and charges not included 1,005 705
in income tax
Risk provisions and damage cases 169 75
Losses from the disposal of fixed 34 1,258
assets excluding financial assets
Expense for currency translation 100 74
differences
Total 49,487 50,229

The net result according to valuation categories is as follows:

31.12.2021 Operating result Financial result
Result from
Value Currency FV mea-
in EUR k adjustment translation Interest surement  Net result
Financial assets measured at amortised cost -153 0 209 0 56
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 0 -100 -2,596 0 -2,696
Fair value through profit and loss (FVPL) 0 0 0 89 89
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31.12.2021

in EUR k
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Fair value through profit and loss (FVPL)

7. TAX INCOME/EXPENSES

in EUR k 2021 2020
Expenses for current taxes 2,288 1,828
thereof aperiodic 33 -1,356
Changes in deferred income taxes 269 -3.627
thereof aperiodic -636 0
Total 2,557 -1,799
thereof aperiodic -603 -1,356

The income tax expense for the 2021 financial year amount-
ing to EUR 2,557 k is EUR 157 k higher than the calculated
income tax expense totalling EUR 2,400 k, which would have
resulted from the application of a tax rate of 25% on the
result before income tax of EUR 9,602 k.

Operating result
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Financial result

Result from

Value Currency FV mea-
adjustment translation Interest surement  Net result
117 0 168 -2,004 -1,719
0 -74 -2,984 0 -3,058
0 0 0 61 61

The reasons for the difference between the calculated and
the disclosed group income tax expense can be summarised

as follows:
in EUR k 2021 2020
Earnings before income tax 9,602 7,676
thereof 25% calculated income tax 2,400 1,919
expense

Tax-free deconsolidation result 0 -4,261
Change in the value adjustment for 264 1,426
deferred tax assets

Participation and inter-company -549 363
valuations

Tax-free grants and subsidies =559
Non-capitalised tax losses less utilised 1,327
non-capitalised loss carryforwards

Permanent differences and 309 -255
other changes

Differences from the discrepancy -253 365
between the local and consolidated

tax rates

Tax expense/income for the 3,160 -443
reporting period

Aperiodic income tax expense/ 33 -1,356
income

Aperiodic deferred income tax -636 0
income/expense

Disclosed income tax expense/ 2,557 -1,799

income

The aperiodic deferred tax income amounting to EUR 636 k
(2020: EUR 0 k) resulted mainly from past tax losses, which
are recognised for the first time in the financial year, reduced
by the aperiodic deferred tax expense from the assertion of
the loss carryback.

The aperiodic current tax income of EUR 1,356 k reported in
the previous financial year stemmed largely from completed
tax audits.
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8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL
The classification of the intangible assets shown in the consol-

idated balance sheet and their development are as follows:

Advance
Development payments

in EUR k costs Rights Goodwill made Total
Acquisition costs

As at 1.1.2020 (0] 13,956 45,508 1,328 60,792
Change in the scope of consolidation 0 -16 -6,537 0 -6,553
Currency translation differences 1 -14 0 0 -13
Additions 0 394 0 1,515 1,909
Disposals 0 -91 0 0 -91
Reclassifications 0 0 0 -104 -104
As at 31.12.2020 1 14,229 38,971 2,739 55,940
As at 1.1.2021 1 14,229 38,971 2,739 55,940
Change in the scope of consolidation 0 0 0 0 0
Currency translation differences 0 -40 0 0 -40
Additions 0 1,344 0 2,952 4,296
Disposals -1 -482 0 0 -483
Reclassifications 0 147 0 -147 0
Reclassifications purs. to IFRS 5 527 0 0 527
As at 31.12.2021 15,725 38,971 5,544 60,240
Accumulated depreciation

As at 1.1.2020 0 10,508 26,328 (o] 36,836
Adjustment pursuant to IAS 87 0 0 12,643 0 12,643
Adjusted figures as at 1.1.2020 (0] 10,508 38,971 0 49,479
Change in the scope of consolidation 0 -38 0 0 -38
Currency translation differences 1 -7 0 0 -6
Scheduled depreciation 0 1,443 0 0 1,443
Impairments 0 0 0 0 0
Disposals 0 -57 0 0 -57
Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0
As at 31.12.2020 1 11,850 38,971 0 50,821
As at 1.1.2021 1 11,850 38,971 0 50,821
Change in the scope of consolidation 0 0 0 0 0
Currency translation differences 0 -24 0 0 -24
Scheduled depreciation 0 1,055 0 0 1,055
Impairments 0 0 0 0 0
Disposals -1 -335 0 0 -336
Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0
Reclassifications purs. to IFRS 5 511 0 0 511
As at 31.12.2021 13,057 38,971 (0} 52,028
Carrying amounts as at 31.12.2020 0 2,380 0 2,739 5,120
Carrying amounts as at 31.12.2021 2,668 0 5,544 8,212

" The previous year’s figures (carrying amount EUR 12,643 k) were adjusted. See item D. 19.
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The research and development expenses of the group during
the financial year amounted to approximately EUR 18,701 k
(2020: EUR 15,912 k).

IMPAIRMENTS

In the 2021 financial year, the intangible assets were subject-
ed to impairment testing. With regard to the recoverability of
the goodwill presented in the past, please refer to Item D. 19.
As in previous years, there was no need for impairment of
other intangible assets.

The impairment tests were based on the following assump-
tions:

31.12.2021 31.12.2020

Cash flow planning period 3 Years 3 Years
Long-term perpetuity growth rate 0.00% 0.00%
CGU level until 31.12.2021:

Discount rate (WACC) before taxes - 9.78% 5.74%
Car Styling

Discount rate (WACC) before taxes - 9.72% 6.53%
Plastics

Discount rate (WACC) before taxes - 9.57% 6.21%
Composites

CGU level from 31.12.2021:

Discount rate (WACC) before taxes - 9.82% n.a.

1- CGU

The Board of Directors has determined that a change in two
key assumptions could cause the carrying amount to exceed
the recoverable amount. The amount of excess cover for the
1-CGU level is EUR 175,132 k. The following table shows the
amount by which each of these two assumptions would need
to alter in order for the estimated attainable amount to equal
the carrying amount.

135

NOTES

2021
CGU level until 31.12.2021:
CGU - Car Styling
Discount rate 0.40%
Future free cash flows 2.33%
CGU - Plastics
Discount rate 16.41%
Future free cash flows 60.71%
CGU - Composites
Discount rate 2.74%
Future free cash flows 21.01%
CGU level from 31.12.2021
1CGU
Discount rate 4.56%
Future free cash flows 33.73%



9. TANGIBLE ASSETS

POLYTEC 2021 | NOTES

The classification of the tangible assets shown in the consol-

idated balance sheet and their development is as follows:

in EUR k
Costs of acquisition
As at 1.1.2020

Change in the scope of
consolidation

Currency translation differences
Additions

Disposals

Reclassifications purs. to IFRS 5
As at 31.12.2020

As at 1.1.2021

Change in the scope of
consolidation

Currency translation differences
Additions

Disposals

Reclassifications
Reclassifications purs. to IFRS 5
As at 31.12.2021

Accumulated depreciation
As at 1.1.2020

Change in the scope of
consolidation

Currency translation differences
Scheduled depreciation
Disposals

Reclassifications purs. to IFRS 5
As at 31.12.2020

As at 1.1.2021

Change in the scope of
consolidation

Currency translation differences
Scheduled depreciation
Disposals

Reclassifications purs. to IFRS 5

As at 31.12.2021

Carrying amounts
as at 31.12.2020

Carrying amounts
as at 31.12.2021

Land and

Real estate

buildings rights of use

167,900
-175

-2,653
2,319
-3.987
-4,101
159,303

159,303
-3,103

1,795
4,121
-5,312
2,848
8,841
168,493

31,767
-105

311
6,321
-3,092
-707
33,873

33,873
-84

93
5,137
-4,906
2,658
36,772

125,431

131,722

12,807
-7,957

-5
0
-3,407

1,438

1,438

38
4,828
-1,038

5,266

2,939
-3,095

2,301
-1,119

1,027

1,027

19
741
-884

903

411

4,363

Technical
equipment
and
machinery

263,895
-2,869

-1,957
8,703
-8,571
0
259,201

259,201
0

2972
17.894
-43,382
28,335
10,632
275,652

192,675
-4

-845
17,188
-8,475

0
200,539

200,539
0

1,476
17,066
-42,219
10,080
186,942

58,661

88,710
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Machinery
rights of use

5,341
-37

-278
9,578
-2,264
0
12,341

12,341
0

52
7,123
-3,014
0

0
16,502

2,315

0
3,418
-2,089
0
3,644

3,644
0

18
3,555
-2,919

4,298

8,697

12,204

Fixtures,
fittings and
equipment

73,341
-1,211

-134
1,740
-3,120
0
70,616

70,616
0

234
1,867
-12,667
4,354
910
65,314

52,081
-266

-89
5,169
2,471
14
54,410

54,410
0

150
4,989
-12,381
721
47,889

16,206

17,425

Advance
payments
made and

assets under
construction

35,285
0

-72
5,258
0

0
40,470

40,470
-2,500

82
8,839

0
-35,537
0
11,354

o

[eBNeoRENe)

12

12

O O O -~

13

40,458

11,341

Total

558,569
-12,249

-5,099
27,598
21,350
-4,101
543,369

543,369
-5,603

5173
44,672
-65,413
0
20,383
542,581

281,781
-3,469

-1,245
34,406
-17,246
-721
293,505

293,505
-84

1,757
31,488
-63,309
13,459
276,816

249,862

265,764
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“Land and buildings” contains a real property value of
EUR 33,222 k (2020: EUR 33,633 k).

As at 31 December 2021, the obligations relating to unpaid
orders for the delivery of fixed assets amounted to
EUR 4,818 k (2020: EUR 8,405 k).

Tangible assets with a carrying amount of EUR 85,457 k
(2020: EUR 92,759 k) were mortgaged or pledged as a surety
for bank and other interest-bearing liabilities totalling
EUR 21,300 k (2020: EUR 16,339 k).

In detail, the due dates of the leasing liabilities reported on
the balance sheet date are as follows:

in EUR k 31.12.2021 31.12.2020
Within one year 4,433 2,655
Longer than one year and within 11,095 6,247
five years

Longer than five years 1,171 206

In the 2021 financial year, the total cash and cash equivalent
outflows emanating from leasing agreements amounted to
EUR 4,977 k (2020: EUR 7,158 k). Apart from repayments, this
figure includes outflows of cash and cash equivalents relat-
ing to short-term leases (EUR 2,310 k) and leases on low-
value assets (EUR 44 k). In the preceding year, there were
short-term leases and leases for assets of low value totalling
EUR 270 k. The interest expenses for leasing costs totalling
EUR 141 k (2020: EUR 281 k) are non-cash.

| NOTES

10. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

The discrepancies between the amounts stated in the tax
and IFRS balance sheets result from the following differenc-
es and take effect on deferred taxes as follows:

in EUR k 31.12.2021 31.12.2020
Assets Liabil- Assets Liabil-
ities ities
Tangible assets 5,225 3,238 3,280 2675
Loss carryforwards 5,464 0 5,128 0
Contract assets 0 6,829 0 6,448
Other assets 0 193 0 389
Provisions for pensions 3,349 0 3244 0
Provisions for severance 906 0 605 0
payments
Other provisions for 258 0 50 0
personnel
Contract liabilities 266 0 414 0
Other provisions 629 0 2842 0
Other liabilities 0 0 315 0
Subtotal 16,097 10,260 15,878 9,512

Offsetting due to identical ~ -8,580 -8,580 -7,709 -7,709
tax authorities

Deferred taxes pursuant 7517 1,680 8,169 1,803
to the balance sheet

In 2021, group companies reported net deferred tax assets
on temporary differences and loss carryforwards totalling
EUR 7,517 k (2020: EUR 8,169 k). These were regarded as
realisable, as on the basis of current medium-term planning
it is assumed that these companies will generate taxable
profits in future.

As at 31 December 2021, group income tax loss carryfor-
wards totalled EUR 59,738 k (2020: EUR 56,176 k) and
demonstrated the following structure:

in EUR k 31.12.2021 31.12.2020
Total 59,738 56,176
of which capitalised loss 27,705 25,156
carryforwards
of which applicable for an 27,705 25156
unlimited period
of which non-capitalised loss 32,033 31,020
carryforwards
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No deferred tax assets were recognised for deductible tax
loss carryforwards amounting to EUR 32,033 k (2020:
EUR 31,020 k), as a future taxable result against which
unused tax losses can be employed is currently assessed as
being insufficiently guaranteed. This equates to deferred tax
assets of EUR 6,170 k (2020: EUR 6,660 k).

In accordance with IAS 12.39, no deferred taxes were created
for temporary differences in connection with shares in sub-
sidiaries amounting to EUR 37,913 k (2020: EUR 32,447 k), as
it could be assumed on 31 December 2021 that the differ-
ences between the valuation of investments for tax purposes
and the pro rata equity of subsidiaries included in the consol-
idated financial statements would remain tax-free for the
foreseeable future.

The deferred taxes contain tax asset deferrals recognised in
equity amounting to EUR 2,645 k (2020: EUR 2,672 k) and
deferred tax liabilities recognised in equity amounting to
EUR 0 k (2020: EUR 0 k).

11. INVENTORIES

Inventories are structured as follows:

in EUR k 31.12.2021 31.12.2020
Raw materials and supplies 40,054 25,903
Unfinished goods 1,224 5,125
Advance payments received -304 -2,374
Finished goods and merchandise 272 4,796
Order costs 204 4,233
Advance payments made 1,166 887
Total 42,615 38,570

The unfinished goods and order costs total EUR 1,428 k
(2020: EUR 9,358 k). No impairment for contractual costs oc-
curred in the 2021 financial year.

The change (balance from formation and reversal) in the
impairment losses on inventories recognised through profit
and loss amounted to EUR 2,069 k in the year under review
(2020: EUR 638 k). Inventories that were recognised as
material expenses in the reporting period amounted to
EUR 260,779 k (2020: EUR 230,897 k).
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In the case of inventories with a carrying amount of
EUR 2,538 k (2020: EUR 2,247 k), realisation is first anticipat-
ed after twelve months.

As in the previous year, no inventories were reclassified as

collateral or pledged as a surety for financial liabilities.

12. TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The existing provisions for impairments to trade accounts
receivable developed as follows in the financial year under

review:

in EUR k 31.12.2021 31.12.2020
As at 1.1. 1,530 1,700
Use -120 -45
Release 0 -117
Allocation 153 0
Foreign exchange rate differences 3 -8
As at 31.12. 1,566 1,530

The impairment provisions contain individual valuation ad-
justments and price differences (Level 3). Owing to the low
loss quotas of the past, further pro rata impairment provi-
sions can be regarded as insignificant. According to esti-
mates made by the management, there are no substantial
differences between the carrying amount and the current
value of accounts receivable.

FACTORING

Since the 2008 financial year, factoring agreements have
existed owing to which banks and factoring companies are
obliged to purchase certain POLYTEC GROUP trade accounts
receivable with a monthly rotating nominal volume. For the
receivables sold, once the purchase has been completed the
default risk linked to the receivables (del credere risk) passes
without recourse to the purchasing bank or factoring compa-
ny. As at 31 December 2021, the factoring agreements had a
maximum usable nominal volume totalling EUR 82,950 k
(2020: EUR 65,000 k). On the balance sheet date, receivables
amounting to EUR 47,054 k (2020: EUR 34,275 k) had been
sold and derecognised from the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS 9.

As at 31 December 2021, the non-advanced amount of
EUR 20,412 k (2020: EUR 13,557 k) was disclosed under
“Trade accounts receivable”. Owing to the short-term nature
and good creditworthiness of the receivables, the carrying
amount may be regarded as a reliable approximate figure
for fair value.
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13. REVENUES/LIABILITIES FROM CONTRACTS
WITH CUSTOMERS

Receivables from construction contracts and service trans-
actions, which pursuant to IFRS 15 are subject to period-
related revenue recognition, are reported in the balance
sheet under the position “Revenues from contracts with
customers”. In addition the revenues from contracts, entry
fees and amortisation receivables also include those unfin-
ished and finished goods which according to IFRS 15 owing
to customised production are also subject to period-related
revenue recognition.

The revenues from contracts with customers are thus divid-
ed as follows:

in EUR k 31.12.2021 31.12.2020
Unfinished customised goods 0 0
Finished customised goods 0 0
Contract assets from tooling and 37,419 31,911
engineering sales

Non-current revenues from 37,419 31,911
contracts with customers

in EUR k 31.12.2021 31.12.2020
Unfinished customised goods 10,540 9,188
Finished customised goods 15,883 12,180
Contract assets from tooling and 38,740 37,533
engineering sales

Current revenues from 65,164 58,901

contracts with customers

The contract liabilities totalling EUR 5,395 k (2020:
EUR 5,365 k) consist of advance payments received with
regard to tooling and engineering. In the 2021 financial year,
the sum of EUR 5,365 k reported as contract liabilities at the

beginning of the period was recognised as sales revenue.

Owing to the low default quotas of the past, the default risk
can be seen as negligible. For details regarding impairment
provisions, we would refer you to G. 2 “Risk reporting”.

The amount of the impairment of contract assets as at
31 December 2021 was influenced by a reduction of
EUR 699 k (2020: decrease of EUR 544 k).
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14. OTHER CURRENT RECEIVABLES

The other current receivables include receivables from
input taxes, supplier bonuses, derivatives, deposits and the
blocked amount from factoring totalling EUR 26,764 k (2020:
EUR 14,216 k). Except for the receivables from input taxes,
these mainly represent financial receivables.

Owing to the low default quotas of the past, default risk can
be seen as negligible. No impairments were undertaken.

15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

On the balance sheet date, none of the amounts included in
this item were subject to restrictions as to their use.

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS

In the valuation categories contained in IFRS 9 as at
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 respectively, the
carrying amount of financial assets disclosed at amortised
cost represents a reasonable approximation of fair value.
All the fair values of financial assets are allocated to Level 3
of the measurement hierarchy. However, in a deviation, the
derivative financial contracts received and cash and cash
equivalents are allocated to Level 2.

In general, cash and cash equivalents of EUR 69,714 k (2020:
EUR 90,389 k), trade accounts receivable of EUR 42,644 k
(2020: EUR 55,020 k), other financial receivables of
EUR 26,764 k (2020: EUR 14,216 k) and other non-current
assets of EUR 1,000 k (2020: EUR 2,000 k) have short
remaining terms. Therefore, their carrying amounts as of the
balance sheet date approximate to the fair value and also
take into account the creditworthiness of the contractual
partners. The default risk is accounted for through the
formation of value adjustments.

17. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

As at 31 December 2021, the item “Assets held for sale”
relates to a closed plant in Germany and above all the relat-
ed real estate awaiting sale. On the balance sheet date, the
closed plant and property are valued with the carrying
amount (EUR 658 k), as the anticipated proceeds from the
sale less sale costs are higher than the carrying amount.
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As at the reporting date of the previous financial year, the
item “Assets held for sale” included other closed plants in
Germany and Turkey. The balance sheet value as at
31 December 2020 amounted to EUR 13,360 k. During the
2021 financial year, a plant in Germany was sold at a profit
of EUR 138 k (2020: carrying value EUR 5,762 k). The inten-
tion to sell the plants in Turkey and Germany still exists, but a
sale is not expected within the next 12 months. Accordingly,
the related carrying values were reclassified in the corre-
sponding asset classes of non-current assets. The reclassifi-
cation increased the carrying amounts as follows: land and
buildings EUR 6,183 k; technical equipment and machinery
EUR 552 k; office furniture and equipment EUR 189 k; rights
EUR 16 k.

18. GROUP EQUITY

On the balance sheet date POLYTEC Holding AG share capi-
tal amounted to EUR 22,330 k (2020: EUR 22,330 k) divided
into 22,329,585 ordinary shares (2020: 22,329,585 ordinary
shares) with a nominal value of EUR 1.00 each. The share
capital is fully paid in.

The buyback of the 334,041 treasury shares held on the bal-
ance sheet date (equates to 1.5% of share capital) at an ac-
quisition value of EUR 1,855 k and a market value on the
reporting date of EUR 2,295 k (2020: EUR 2,509 k) took
place in its entirety in accordance with the buyback pro-
gramme approved at the Annual General Meetings held on
16 May 2012 and 14 May 2014.

The treasury share portfolio remained unchanged in the
2021 financial year.

Treasury Shares in
Shares shares circulation
31.12.2020 22,329,585 -334,041 21,995,544
Change in 0 0 0
treasury share
portfolio
31.12.2021 22,329,585 -334,041 21,995,544

NOTES

In accordance with a resolution from the 21t Annual General
Meeting held on 13 July 2021, until 12 January 2024 the
Board of Directors is authorised to purchase treasury shares
amounting to a maximum of 10% of share capital at a mini-
mum price of EUR 1,00 and a maximum price that is 10%
above the average, unweighted closing market price on the
five days preceding purchase.

In addition, authorised capital was agreed with the passing
of a resolution by the 19" Annual General Meeting held on
10 May 2019. With the consent of the Supervisory Board, at
the latest, three years after the entry of the authorised capi-
tal in the company register, i.e. up to 4 September 2022, the
Board of Directors is empowered to increase share capital
by a nominal amount of EUR 6,698,875.00 through the issue
of new shares at a minimum price of EUR 1.00 each. The is-
sue of the new shares may also take place subject to the
preclusion of the subscription rights of shareholders when
share capital is increased in exchange for contributions in
kind from companies, operations, part-operations or shares
in one or several enterprises.

The capital reserves derive from premiums in connection
with capital increases and are therefore entirely committed.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The following table shows summarised financial information
regarding all non-controlling interests prior to intra-group
eliminations. For reasons of materiality, it is presented on an
aggregate basis for all non-controlling interests.

in EUR k 31122021  31.12.2020
Non-current assets 97,264 101,345
Current assets 6,190 1,205
Non-current liabilities 0 0
Current liabilities -33,968 -31,016
Net assets 69,486 71,533
Share of equity/voting rights without ~ 5.0% and 5.0% and
a controlling interest 5.5% 5.5%
Carrying amount of interests without 3,771 3,885
controlling influence

Pro rata gain of interests without -16 3,039
controlling influence

Pro rata other result of interests 0 0
without a controlling influence

Dividends on interests without 98 250

a controlling interest
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INFORMATION CONCERNING CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
POLYTEC GROUP’s capital management strategy is aimed
at safeguarding business operations, increasing goodwill,
creating a solid capital basis to finance a profitable growth
course and guaranteeing capital service and attractive divi-
dend payments.

POLYTEC Holding AG is subject to the minimum capital
requirements of Austrian corporation law. Statutory mini-
mum capital requirements do not apply. Nonetheless, the
group considers a solid equity base a key element in insol-
vency prevention. The ratio between equity capital and total
capital can be summarised as follows:

in EUR k 31122021 31.12.2020"
Total equity 238,859 234,843
Balance sheet total 568,499 568,861
Equity ratio 42.0% 41.3%

D The figures for the preceding year were adjusted. For information
regarding these changes reference should be made to Item D. 19.

For the POLYTEC GROUP, the term capital management
means the control of equity capital and net financial liabili-
ties. The POLYTEC GROUP’s net financial liabilities are cen-
trally controlled. The objectives in this regard include secur-
ing long-term liquidity, the efficient use of debt financing and
the adoption of appropriate measures for financial risk miti-
gation in tandem with the optimisation of both earnings and
costs.

Apart from the equity ratio, the POLYTEC GROUP mainly em-
ploys the gearing and return on capital employed (ROCE)
parameters for the supervision of its capital. The entire costs
of the capital employed and the risks related to the different
types of capital are monitored on a permanent basis.

The POLYTEC GROUP strives to maintain a sustainable equi-
ty ratio of more than 30%. A small deviation from this target
equity ratio would only be acceptable temporarily in the
case of strategically important M&A transactions.

Gearing is defined as the ratio of net financial liabilities
(non-current and current financial liabilities less cash and
cash equivalents and interest-bearing receivables) to equity
capital. Appropriate control instruments consist primarily
of the issuance and repayment of financial liabilities, as well
as the consolidation of the equity base through the retention
of earnings or the adjustment of dividend payments. The
POLYTEC GROUP management regards a gearing ratio of
below 1.00 as being lastingly solid.

| NOTES

Gearing developed as follows:

in EUR k 31.12.2021 31.12.2020

Financial liabilities™ 195,717 198,231

- Non-current interest-bearing 37,419 31,9112
contract assets

- Current interest-bearing 7934 7,978%
contract assets®

- Other non-current interest-bearing 1,000 2,000
receivables

- Cash and cash equivalents 69,714 90,389

Net financial liabilities (+)/assets (-) 79,650 65,953

/ Equity carrying amount 238,859 234,8432

Gearing 0.33 0.28

" Financial liabilities include non-current and current interest-bearing
liabilities.

2 The previous year’s figures were adjusted. For information regarding the
adjustments reference should be made to Item D. 19.

¥ The current interest-bearing contract assets relate mainly to amortisa-
tion receivables.

ROCE is defined as the ratio between EBIT and the average
capital employed. The capital employed includes the non-
current operating assets (intangible and tangible assets,
goodwill and other non-current receivables) less other
non-current operating provisions and net working capital
assets non-interest-

(non-interest-bearing current less

bearing current liabilities).

ROCE represents the most important calculation parameter
for the vast majority of the POLYTEC GROUP’s executive
bonus plans. ROCE developed as follows:

in EUR k 2021 2020
Average capital employed 330,670 348,763"M
EBIT 12,298 12,962
Return on capital employed (in %) 37 37

U The figures for the preceding year were adjusted. For information
regarding these changes reference should be made to Item D. 19.

The minimum ROCE target is in the double-digit percentage
range, but in 2021 and 2020 this figure was not achieved.

The POLYTEC GROUP’s dividend policy is oriented towards
profitability, strategic growth perspectives and the group’s
capital requirements.
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19. EARNINGS PER SHARE AND DIVIDENDS

Pursuant to IAS 33 (Earnings per Share), basic earnings per
share result from the division of the net income for the period
due to the shareholders (annual net profit of the group after
income taxes and non-controlling interests) by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
reporting period.

Unit 2021 2020
Net income after income  EUR k 7,061 6,435
taxes and after
non-controlling interests
Average number of Shares 22,329,585 22,329,585
ordinary shares issued
Average number of Shares 334,041 334,041
retained treasury shares
Average number of Shares 21,995,544 21,995,544
shares in circulation
Earnings per share EUR/share 0.32 0.29

The diluted earnings per share equate to the non-diluted
earnings per share, as no financial instruments with a dilutive
effect are currently in circulation.

At the 21t Annual General Meeting, which was held at the
Courtyard by Marriott hotel in Linz on 13 July 2021, the
attending stockholders and stockholder representatives
passed a resolution approving the distribution of a dividend
of EUR 0.30 per dividend bearing share, or EUR 6.6 million for
the 2020 financial year (previous year: no dividend), which
was paid out on 21 July 2021.

In accordance with the provisions of the Austrian Stock Cor-
poration Act, the separate financial statements of POLYTEC
Holding AG prepared in accordance with the Austrian
accounting regulations as at 31 December 2021 provide the
basis for the payment of a dividend.

The Board of Directors of POLYTEC Holding AG will propose
to the 22" Annual General Meeting the distribution of a
dividend for the 2021 financial year of EUR 0.10 per dividend
bearing share.

NOTES

In principle, dividends are subject to the deduction of a capi-
tal gains tax of 27.5%. For individuals subject to unlimited tax
liability, this means that their income tax is settled (final
taxation). Corporations subject to unlimited corporate in-
come tax liability, which hold at least 10% of share capital,
are exempt from the capital gains tax. For individuals subject
to limited tax liability, all relevant double taxation treaties
must be taken into due account.

20. NON-CURRENT INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES

This item includes all interest-bearing liabilities with a
residual term of more than one year and can be structured

as follows:
in EUR k 31122021 31.12.2020
Promissory note loans 84,362 105,290
thereof with a residual term >5 years 1,000 1,000
Liabilities to banks 4,100 4,100
thereof with a residual term >5 years 0 0
Bank loans 48,729 42,727
thereof with a residual term >5 years 7,330 6,494
thereof with collateral securities 11,975 12,364
Other interest-bearing liabilities 7,895 1,772
thereof with a residual term >5 years 0 0
thereof with collateral securities 7,501 1,686
Leasing liabilities 12,266 6,453
thereof with a residual term >5 years 1,171 206
Non-current interest-bearing 157,352 160,342

financial liabilities

The group’s outstanding non-current and current interest-
bearing liabilities to banks exist in the following currencies:

2021 2020
Average Average
nominal nominal
Share interest Share interest
% % % %
EUR 98.00 1.02 99.2 1.26
GBP 2.00 159 0.8 1.65

In the 2014, 2017, 2018 financial years and most recently in
2019, the POLYTEC GROUP issued promissory note loans
with the following repayment dates:

in EUR k 30.03.2022 07.11.2023 21.01.2024
Fixed 11,500 19,500 0
Variable 9,500 15,500 28,500
Total 21,000 35,000 28,500

30.03.2024 07.11.2025 07.11.2028 Total
1,500 0 0 32,500
7,500 11,000 1,000 73,000
9,000 11,000 1,000 105,500
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In the 2021 financial year EUR 24,000 from the promissory
note loans were repaid. In the 2020 financial year,
EUR 15,000 k from the 2017 to 2022 variable promissory
note tranche were repaid prematurely.

21. PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEES

This position contains all non-current provisions for obliga-
tions to current and former employees:

in EUR k 31122021 31.12.2020
Provisions for severance payments 3,648 3,087
Provisions for pensions 22,040 22,094
Provisions for long-service payments 1,778 1,719
Total 27,465 26,899

The anticipated payments for the obligations to employees
in the 2022 financial year amount to EUR 1,049 k.

PROVISIONS FOR PENSIONS
The present value of the obligations for defined benefit
pension plans developed as follows:

in EUR k 2021 2020
Cash value of pension obligations 22,094 24134
(DBO) as at 1.1.
Service costs 982 759
Interest expense 224 258
Change in the scope of consolidation 0 -1,081
Pension payments -799 -1,043
Actuarial gains and losses:
Due to demographic assumptions 0 0
Due to financial assumptions -347 340
Due to experience-based -114 -1,272
adjustments
Cash value of pension obligations 22,040 22,094

(DBO) as at 31.12.

With regard to the most important actuarial parameters and
relevant accounting principles, please refer to Item D. 10.

The pension expenses for the 2021 financial year consist
mainly of defined benefit pension plans, whereby service
costs are disclosed in the personnel expenses under the item
“Expenses for severance payments and pensions” and inter-
est costs are recognised in the financial result under the item
“Interest component defined benefit plans”. The actuarial
result comprises gains and losses resulting from the changes
to demographic, financial and experience-based assump-
tions.
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The average duration of pension obligations amounts to

sixteen years (2020: 16 years).

in EUR k 31122021 31.12.2020
Service costs 982 759
Interest expense 224 258
Total 1,206 1,016

The actuarial gains/losses recognised under other com-
prehensive income developed as follows (after taxes):

in EUR k 2021 2020
Actuarial gains (+)/losses (-) -5,370 -6,021
as at 1.1.

Actuarial gains (+)/losses (-) 323 653
in the financial year

Actuarial gains (+)/losses (-) -5,049 -5,370

as at 31.12.

A change in interest rates of 25 basis points would have led
to an increase in pension obligations of EUR 888 k (2020:
EUR 913 k), or to a decrease of EUR 835 k (2020: EUR 857 k).

PROVISIONS FOR SEVERANCE PAYMENTS
The present value of the obligations for defined benefit plans
developed over time as follows:

in EUR k 2021 2020
Present value of severance 3,087 3,793
payments (DBO) as at 1.1.
Service costs 156 66
Interest expense 25 29
Change in the scope of consolidation 0 -324
Severance payments -64 -626
Actuarial gains and losses:
Due to demographic assumptions 7 8
Due to financial assumptions 42 -41
Due to experience-based 394 182
adjustments
Present value of severance 3,648 3,087

payments (DBO) as at 31.12.
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With regard to the most important actuarial parameters and
relevant accounting principles, please refer to Item D. 10.

Total severance costs for the 2021 financial year are divided
between defined contributions and defined benefit plans,
whereby the service costs included in personnel expenses
are reported under the expenses for severance payments
and pension provisions and the interest expense are report-
ed in the financial result under interest components. The
actuarial result comprises the gains and losses resulting
from changes to the demographic, financial and experi-
ence-based assumptions.

The average duration of severance payment obligations
amounts to eight years (2020: nine years).

| NOTES

PROVISIONS FOR LONG-SERVICE PAYMENTS
The provision developed over time as follows:

in EUR k 2021 2020
Present value of the defined benefit 1,778 1,719
obligation =

The provision for long-service

payments

Total expenses for long-service payments for the financial
year amounted to EUR 59 k (2020: EUR 652 k).

22. OTHER LONG-TERM PROVISIONS

As at Reclassifi- Alloca- As at
Defined contribution plans Impending 0 0 0 0
losses and
Expense for defined contribution 294 319 risks
plans
Defined benefit plans
Service costs 156 66 As at Reclassifi- Alloca- As at
in EUR k 1.1.2020 cations tions 31.12.2020
Interest expenses 25 29
Impending 1,753 -1,753 0 0
Expense for defined benefit plans 182 95 losses and
Expense for severance payments 476 414 risks
Actuarial gains/losses recognised under other comprehen-
sive income developed as follows (after taxes): 23. CURRENT INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES
in EUR k 2021 2020 in EUR k 31.12.2021 31.12.2020
Actuarial gains (+)/losses (-) -572 -460 Promissory note loans 21,313 24,473
asat 1.1. Liabilities to banks 1,906 141
Actuarllol gculns (+)/losses (-) -333 -112 Bank loans 8,793 8214
in the financial year
Actuarial gains (+)/losses () 905 572 Other interest-bearing liabilities 1,920 2,406
as at 31.12. thereof with collateral securities 1,824 2,289
Leasing liabilities 4,433 2,655
A change in interest rates of 25 basis points would have  Interest-bearing current financial 38,365 37889

led to an increase in severance payment obligations of
EUR 74 k (2020: EUR 71 k), or to a decrease of EUR 72 k
(2020: EUR 68 k).

liabilities
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24. LIABILITIES ON INCOME TAXES 26. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

The Liabilities on income taxes consist largely of liabilities in EUR k 31.12.2021 31.12.2020
from corporate and trade income taxes (or comparable Liabilities to employees 1,996 2,770
taxes) in different states, where group companies have their Provision for outstanding incoming 2,999 3,656
registered offices. Liabilities developed as follows: invoices
Other liabilities 3,930 3,307
in EUR k 31122021 31.12.2020 Other current financial liabilities 8,925 9,733
As at 1.1.2021 2,080 2,155 Accrual for unclaimed leave 3,396 4322
Exchange rate differences L 3 Other tox liabilities 5787 10176
Use for tax payments -1,523 -2,158 Social security liabilities 1,365 1,078
Release -31 0 Deferred income 2,628 1,674
Addition in the financial year 343 2,080 Accrual for other personnel expenses 4358 4,735
As at 31.12.2021 870 2080 1ot 26,460 31718
25. TRADE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
in EUR k 31.12.2021 31.12.2020
Trade accounts payable 57,255 52,703
Financial trade accounts payable 57,255 52,703
liabilities
27. CURRENT PROVISIONS
Change
in the
Balance scope of Currency Balance
as at consoli- transla- Reclassifi- Assign- as at
in EUR k 1.1.2021 dation tion cation Utilisation Release ment 31.12.2021
Provision for impending losses 5,395 0 9 0 1,141 836 366 3,793
and risks
Guarantees and warranties 1,263 0 0 708 135 437 857
Other current provisions 8,561 71 0 5,881 1,480 8,877 10,148
Total 15,219 80 0 7,730 2,451 9,680 14,798
Change
in the
Balance scope of Currency Balance
as at consoli- transla- Reclassifi- Assign- as at
in EUR k 1.1.2020 dation tion cation Utilisation Release ment 31.12.2020
Provision for impending losses 5,905 0 -5 1,753 1,860 922 523 5,395
and risks
Guarantees and warranties 1,018 18 0 0 114 498 839 1,263
Other current provisions 10,138 -458 -76 0 6,877 2,502 8,336 8,561
Total 17,061 -440 -81 1,753 8,851 3,922 9,698 15,219

The reclassifications in the financial year relate to the chang- Amongst the other current provisions are provisions for
customer claims totalling EUR 4,008 k (2020: EUR 4,961 k),
retirement obligations of EUR 180 k (2020: EUR 154 k) and

legal risks amounting to EUR 2,322 k (2020: EUR 670 k).

ing recognition of non-current and current provisions.
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28. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

In accordance with IFRS 9, financial liabilities comprise the
non-current and current interest-bearing liabilities disclosed
in the consolidated balance sheet, trade accounts payable
and other current financial liabilities.

Except for derivative financial contracts, financial liabilities
in the

amortised cost” valuation category. The derivative financial

are included “Financial liabilities measured at
instruments are classified as “financial liabilities measured at

fair value through profit or loss™.

With the exception of other current liabilities, which are as-
signed to the Level 3 valuation category, all financial liabili-
ties and derivative financial contracts (financial year 2021:
EUR 0 k; 2020: EUR 89 k) are allocated to Level 2.

The POLYTEC GROUP only determines the fair value for in-
terest-bearing liabilities for disclosures in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. Fair value is established
using recognised measurement methods based on the dis-
counted cash flow method. The main input factor is the dis-
count rate, which takes available market data (risk-free inter-
est rates) into account. In the case of financial liabilities, the
creditworthiness of the POLYTEC GROUP is considered. On
the balance sheet date, the Level 2 non-current financial
liabilities showed a fair value of EUR 1577106 k (2020:
EUR 161,589), as compared to a carrying amount of
EUR 157,352 k (2020: EUR 160,342 k). On 31 December 2021,
the current interest-bearing financial liabilities showed a fair
value of EUR 38,395 k (2020: EUR 39,532 k), as opposed to a
carrying amount of EUR 38,365 k (2020: EUR 37,889 k). The
carrying amount for Level 3 financial liabilities represents a
reasonable approximation of fair value.

Reference should be made to the risk report with regard to
the determination of the fair value of derivatives.
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I F. CASH FLOW STATEMENT

NON-CASH BUSINESS TRANSACTIONS

During the financial year expired, the POLYTEC GROUP
undertook the following non-cash investment and financial
transactions that are not reported in the cash flow state-
ment. In the cash flow statement, the non-cash effects
derived from IFRS 16 additions reduce the investments in
fixed assets. The disposal of subsidiaries resulted in sales
proceeds of EUR 1,940 k, which were offset by an outflow of
cash and cash equivalents of EUR 119 k.

OTHER NON-CASH EXPENSES AND INCOME

The non-cash expenses and income consist largely of cur-
rency translation differences, non-cash interest payments
and the write-off of receivables.

CHANGES TO FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The difference between the change in the carrying amount
of the financial liabilities and the payment flows reported
under group cash flow from financing activities results large-
ly from foreign currency translation totalling EUR 8,840 k
(2020: EUR 6,976 k).

Leasing liabilities (current and non-current) as at 1 January
2021, amounting to EUR 9,108 k (2020: EUR 12,894 k), are
reduced by leasing payments totalling to EUR 4,977 k (2020:
7158 k). New leases totalling EUR 11,951 k (2020: EUR 9,848 k),
disposals of EUR 250 k (2020: EUR 7,363 k) and currency
translation differences of EUR 866 k (2020: minus EUR 283 k)
result in leasing liabilities as at 31 December 2021 of
EUR 16,699 k (2020: EUR 9,108 k).
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I G. OTHER INFORMATION

1. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Events occurring after the balance sheet date which are of
significance for the evaluation on the balance sheet date
such as outstanding legal cases or claims for compensation
and other obligations or impending losses, which would have
to be reported or disclosed in accordance with IAS 1019, are
accounted for in these consolidated financial statements
and reported under the respective item.

Likewise, events that need not be taken into account are to
be shown if they are of particular importance.

On 20 January 2022, it was decided to gradually reduce the
Austrian corporate income tax rate from 25% to 23% with
effect from 1 January 2023. This reduction will not affect the
current or deferred tax recognised as at 31 December 2021.
However, this change will lead to a corresponding reduction
in the future actual tax burden of POLYTEC Holding AG. If the
changed tax rates had been used for the calculation of de-
ferred tax as at 31 December 2021, deferred tax assets
would have decreased by EUR 157 k.

Since 24 February 2022, there has been a military confronta-
tion between Russia and Ukraine. From a current perspec-
tive, the financial effects cannot yet be fully assessed. How-
ever, it may be assumed that these will become tangible in
the changed call-off behaviour of customers, raw material
restrictions (cable harnesses) and cost increases. For more
detailed information on the Ukraine crisis, see G. 2. d Produc-
tion risks.

2. RISK REPORTING

In the course of its business operations, the POLYTEC GROUP
is subject to numerous risks, which are indelibly linked to its
entrepreneurial the POLYTEC
GROUP risk management is an integral element in its strate-

activities. Therefore, for
gy and all business processes. The comprehensive certifica-
tions required by an automotive industry supplier (e.g. IATF
16949:2016 and ISO14001: 2015) already specify appropri-
ate regulations, which are also monitored via external audits.
In line with the organisational structure of the POLYTEC
GROUP, risks are locally managed and monitored close to
the market, especially in the course of ongoing business pro-
cesses. However, group headquarters provides central finan-
cial risk management. The following major risk areas can be
identified:
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SPECIFIC COMPANY RISKS

a. (Sales) market risk

General sales market risk. The general conditions to which
the automotive industry is subject are currently undergoing
a fundamental change. Moreover, owing to the repressive
constraints upon the combustion engine and the furtherance
of e-mobility, which represent the direct driving forces be-
hind this upheaval, as well as the indirect effects of autono-
mous driving and new mobility concepts, the coming years
are also set to be most challenging. The task is therefore to
adjust to this altered situation and establish a clear position
in the new market environment by means of innovation and
a targeted sales strategy. To date, the automotive supply in-
dustry was already seen as highly competitive and charac-
terised by consolidation and restructuring amongst its com-
peting players. This trend will now intensify and the POLYTEC
GROUP must exploit the resultant opportunities derived from
market consolidation.

In addition, current economic and political risks are far more
acute than in recent years. The internationalisation of the
markets and supply chains has not only created major pos-
sibilities, but also increased risks, as demonstrated clearly by
the outbreak of the coronavirus. International trade disputes
have also resulted in falls in demand and complications with-
in the global supply arrangements. Moreover, there is a risk
that these uncertainties will continue to have a negative
impact upon the automotive industry in the next few years.

Volume risk. This emanates from unplanned demand vola-
tility and part quantity development. During series produc-
tion, the sub-supplier is dependent on the sales of the vehicle
for which it is supplying components, while being unable to
influence this success. The unplanned call-off of quantities
can result in two types of problem, one of which is formed by
capacity bottlenecks, which may lead to delayed deliveries
and hence reputational damage. Conversely, the lack of call-
offs can cause capacity utilisation difficulties and a subse-
quent fixed cost deficit. The POLYTEC GROUP attempts to
keep the dependency upon individual delivery relationships
to a minimum by means of a balanced customer and order
mix.

Owing to the focus of the OEMs on only a few models and
engines, sharp reductions and increases in quantities during
series production are becoming increasingly frequent. More-
over, especially in recent months, the visibility of call-offs has
deteriorated greatly. For the POLYTEC GROUP this means
that the call-off situation and model development must be
monitored extremely closely. Material changes must evoke
both a cost-related reaction, but also with justified claims for
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increased costs, particularly with regard to the falling short
of agreed planned quantities.

b. Procurement market risk

One substantial risk is represented by the fluctuations in raw
material prices, which in the case of a plastics processor like
the POLYTEC GROUP are due mainly to long-term oil price
shifts, but can also be caused by changes in refinery capac-
ity. This risk is countered by means of sliding material price
clauses in the disclosed calculations, in as far as these are
acceptable to the customer. To a certain extent, negotiations
involving raw materials and purchased parts take place di-
rectly between the POLYTEC GROUP’s customers and the
suppliers. Where prices are only agreed with the customer
on an annual basis, changes in raw material prices are an
important parameter for the annual price renegotiations.
Furthermore, increased research and development activities
are dimed at the use of new raw materials (natural fibres).

c. Investment risk

A considerable investment on the part of the POLYTEC
GROUP is necessary in order to guarantee OEMs a supply
capability and this naturally results in a corresponding risk.
This investment risk can be defined as the uncertainty relat-
ed to the advantageousness of an investment. During invest-
ment decisions subject to risk, the possibility exists that the
future payment surpluses and returns related to an invest-
ment project may fluctuate. The volatility of the payment
surpluses involves the danger of lower returns.

Meeting the infrastructural needs of the OEMs necessitates
large-volume investments by the POLYTEC GROUP many
years in advance, irrespective of whether the purchase of
machinery and plant, or the building of complete production
facilities is involved. Therefore, should planned orders not be
received, this results in an undefined prolongation of the am-
ortisation period. Moreover, as investments relate partly to
specific products or customers, an alternative possibility for
their use is only available to a limited extent. Accordingly, as
a rule an appropriate delivery volume is defined with the
OEMs, which thus bear a corresponding degree of the invest-
ment risk.

148

NOTES

d. Production risk

The production risk describes the overall negative deviations
to be anticipated during product manufacture. Product risks
in the POLYTEC GROUP derive mainly from effects which
result in unstable or defective output that in turn can lead to
part number fluctuations and customer production line
breakdowns. As a consequence, delivery problems may
result and damage to the reputation with the customer.

Production risks also encompass quality problems, which
can again have a detrimental impact on customer relation-
ships. The POLYTEC GROUP minimises this risk through on-
going improvements to its production processes (POLYTEC
Performance Systems, digitalisation offensive, etc.), as well
as the continual preparation of organisational measures for
enhanced process quality.

FINANCIAL RISKS, THEIR MANAGEMENT AND
SENSITIVITY

Credit risk. Owing to its customer structure with roughly 90%
of total sales revenues being generated with OEMs or major
systems suppliers, the POLYTEC GROUP is subject to the au-
tomotive industry credit risk. However, outstanding accounts
are monitored meticulously on a permanent basis and the
payment of accounts receivable as agreed is secured. In the
2021 financial year, approximately 59% (2020: 58%) of sales
were obtained from the two largest customer groups. This
results in a certain accumulated credit risk, which however
has been assessed by the management as being uncritical
with regard to potential non-payments. Dependency upon
only a few customers is a basic characteristic of the automo-
tive sub-supplier industry. Within this context, the customer is
defined as a group of affiliated companies, which can also
produce several automotive marques.

The risk of non-payment with regard to cash and cash equiv-
alents is deemed as low.

Despite a credit risk generally classified as limited, the maxi-
mum theoretical risk of non-payment corresponds to the
carrying amounts of the individual financial assets. The bulk
of the trade accounts receivable are covered by credit insur-
ance, which means that in the case of a default, POLYTEC
would only be subject to a deductible loss of 10%. As at the
reporting date, a credit insurance agreement was in place
which insured trade accounts receivable of EUR 34,484 k
(2020: EUR 54,858 k). Therefore, the theoretical risk of non-
payment amounts to EUR 207,222 k (2020: EUR 193,147 k).
The theoretical default risk is calculated from the carrying
amounts of trade accounts receivable (reduced by insured
trade account receivables), contractual assets from con-
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tracts with customers, other current receivables and cash
and cash equivalents reported as at the reporting date.

The analysis of the gross carrying values of trade accounts
receivable, contractual assets, non-current interest-bearing
and other financial receivables as at 31 December 2021 can
be presented as follows:

31.12.2021 Overdue in days
Impair- Up 60 120

Gross ment to to to Over

in EUR k amount provisions 60 120 360 360

Non-current 1,000 0 0 0 0 0

interest-bear-

ing receiv-

ables

Trade 44,210 1566 5,148 1,155 2,804 3,372

accounts

receivable

Contract 103,961 1,378 0 0 0 0

assets from

contracts with

customers

Other 26,764 0 0 0 0 0

financial

receivables

31.12.2020 Overdue in days

Impair- Up 60 120

Gross ment to to to Over

in EUR k amount provisions 60 120 360 360

Non-current 2,000 0 0 0 0 0

interest-bear-

ing receiv-

ables

Trade 56,550 1530 8,311 1,121 1,590 712

accounts

receivable

Contract 92,889 2,077 0 0 0 0

assets from

contracts with

customers

Other 14,216 0 0 0 0 0

financial

receivables

The impairment provisions contain individual valuation ad-
justments and price differences. No doubts exist concerning
the collectability of financial assets that are neither overdue
nor impaired. There are no significant risk concentrations
resulting from the investment of financial assets in only one
business partner.

Liquidity risk. The group hedges its liquidity needs by means
of the maintenance of a cash reserve and the premature
refinancing of mature financial liabilities. Group headquarters
undertakes the active management of the liquidity risk.

NOTES

On the basis of the agreements concluded, the group’s finan-
cial liabilities (excluding derivatives) show the following
expected cash flows (including interest payments made at
the interest rate on the balance sheet date):

Total thereof
Carrying con- over 1 thereof
amount tractual thereof but less more
as at cash within  than  than
in EUR k 31.12.2021 flows 1 year 5 years 5 years
Promissory 105,675 108,370 21,983 85,363 1,024
note loans
Bank loans 73,343 73,338 12,656 51,309 9,373
and other
interest-bearing
liabilities
Leasing 16,699 16,866 4,477 11,206 1,183
liabilities
Trade accounts 57,255 57,255 57,255 0 0
payable
Other financial 8,925 8,925 8,925 0 0
liabilities
Total 261,896 264,753 105,295 147,878 11,580
Total thereof
Carrying con- over 1 thereof
amount tractual thereof but less more
as at cash within  than  than
in EUR k 31122020 flows 1 year 5 years 5 years
Promissory 129,763 133,986 25,616 107,334 1,036
note loans
Bank loans 59,359 60,696 9,754 43,690 7,251
and other
interest-bearing
liabilities
Leasing 9,108 9,269 2,702 6,357 210
liabilities
Trade accounts 52,703 52,703 52,703 0 0
payable
Other financial 9,643 9,643 9,643 0 0
liabilities
Total 260,577 266,298 100,419 157,382 8,497

Bank borrowings on current accounts will continue to be
made available to the group until further notice and are
therefore adjudged to be current. However, a short-term call-
in on the part of the lender banks is not to be expected.
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Foreign exchange risk. The vast majority of POLYTEC

GROUP sales revenues are invoiced in euros and conse-

quently the foreign exchange risk only affects the group to a
limited degree. Moreover, the purchase of preliminary work
takes place partially in the same currency as sales, which
results in natural hedging. The group is subject to higher for-
eign exchange risks in those countries in which invoices are

written in euros, but preliminary work must be purchased in

local currency. For example, such risks apply to the Czech

crown, Hungarian forint and the South African rand. In many

cases, these risks cannot be transferred to financial instru-

ments, as they are mainly attributable to personnel costs.

Owing to the expansion of production activities in the UK and

the volatility of the British pound since the Brexit vote, the

POLYTEC GROUP is subject to an increased currency risk in

this connection. If required it counters this risk through hedg-

ing transactions although primarily natural hedge positions

were used.

The financial instruments and financial liabilities reported on
the balance sheet date show the following distribution with
regard to their currency of origin:

in EUR k 31.12.2021
In foreign

In euros currency Total
Trade accounts 30,152 12,492 42,644
receivable
Contract assets from 101,023 1,560 102,583
contracts with customers
Other receivables 21,966 2,796 24,762
(excluding prepaid
expenses and accrued
income)
Non-current 1,000 0 1,000
interest-bearing
receivables
Cash and cash 62,263 7,451 69,714
equivalents
Total 216,404 24,299 240,703
in EUR k 31.12.2021

In foreign

In euros currency Total
Non-current 154,441 2,911 157,352
interest-bearing liabilities
Current interest-bearing 33,435 4930 38,365
liabilities
Trade accounts payable 48,145 9,110 57,255
Other current liabilities 7,394 1,531 8,925
Total 243,415 18,482 261,897
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in EUR k 31.12.2020
In foreign

In euros  currency Total
Trade accounts 46,470 8,550 55,020
receivable
Contractual assets from 89,259 1,554 90,813
contracts with customers
Other receivables 11,005 778 11,783
(excluding prepaid
expenses and accrued
income)
Cash and cash 2,000 0 2,000
equivalents
Total 85,333 5,056 90,389
Gesamt 234,067 15,938 250,005
in EUR k 31.12.2020

In foreign

In euros currency Total
Non-current 157,722 2,620 160,342
interest-bearing liabilities
Current interest-bearing 36,857 1,032 37,889
liabilities
Trade accounts payable 46,858 5,846 52,704
Other current liabilities 8,684 1,048 9,732
Total 250,120 10,547 260,667

The distribution shows that the risk to which the group is sub-
ject owing to exchange rate fluctuations is low, as both finan-
cial assets held in foreign currency totalling 10.10% (2020:
6.4%) and the corresponding liabilities totalling 7.05% (2020:
4.0%) account for only a minor part of the total volume.
Furthermore, a currency fluctuation would equally affect
both assets and liabilities and therefore display compensa-
tory effects.

A shift in exchange rates with regard to non-inter-group
trade accounts receivable and trade accounts payable of
+/-10% would have no material effect upon results or equity.

Since the 2021 financial year, an FX forward has been used
to hedge a foreign currency receivable in South African rand
(ZAR). The nominal value is ZAR 80,000 k. Due to the positive
fair value as at 31 December 2021, there is no default risk.
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The following table shows the fair values, nominal values and
residual contractual terms of the outstanding derivatives at
the end of the reporting period:

31.12.2021 Fair value Residual term
more
upto1 1to5 than5
in EUR k pos. neg. Nominal year years years
FX forward 175 0 4,394 4,394 0 0
Total 175 0 4394 4394 (o] 0
31.12.2020 Fair value Residual term
more
upto1 1to5 than5s
in EUR k pos. neg. Nominal year years years
FX forward 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0] 0 0 0

The fair values shown in the table above correspond to the
market values at the end of the reporting period. They were
determined using current market parameters on the balance
sheet date.

Interest rate change risk. The POLYTEC GROUP counter-
acts the interest rate change risk by means of a portfolio of
variable and fixed forms of financing that corresponds with
the long-term interest rate projection, whereby long-term
financing activities are predominantly subject to variable
interest rates. In the 2020 financial year, derivative products
were used to hedge interest rates.

The following table shows the fair value, the nominal amounts
and the residual contractual periods of the outstanding
derivatives at the end of the reporting periods:

31.12.2021 Fair value Residual term
more
upto1 1to5 than5
in EUR k pos. neg. Nominal year years years
Receive 0 0 0 0 0 0
floating pay
fixed swaps
Total 0 0 (0] 0 0 0
31.12.2020 Fair value Residual term
more
upto1 1to5 than5s
in EUR k pos. neg. Nominal year years years
Receive 0 89 8,500 8,500 0 0
floating pay
fixed swaps
Total 0 89 8,500 8,500 (o] 0

The fair values stated in the tables above correspond with
the current values at the end of the reporting period. They
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were determined using current market parameters on the
balance sheet date.

Interest-bearing liabilities show the following structure on the
balance sheet date:

in EUR k 31.12.2021 31.12.2020
Promissory note loans 105,675 129,763
thereof with fixed interest 32,675 56,763
thereof with variable interest 73,000 73,000
Bank loans 63,529 55,181
thereof with fixed interest 42,566 21,477
thereof with variable interest 20,963 33,704
Other interest-bearing liabilities 9,815 9,108
thereof with fixed interest 9,815 9,108
thereof with variable interest 0 0
Leasing liabilities 16,699 4,178
thereof with fixed interest 16,699 4,178
thereof with variable interest 0 0
Total 195,717 198,231
thereof with fixed interest 101,755 91,526
thereof with variable interest 93,962 106,703

The vast majority of the variable-interest liabilities and fi-
nancial assets (EUR 67,633 k; 2020: EUR 88,860 k) are depen-
dent upon the 6-month EURIBOR. An increase/reduction of
the reference interest rate by 100 basis points would mean
an increase/reduction in the result before taxes of around
EUR 264 k (2020: EUR 178 k).

The reference interest rate reform (IBORs) has led to lower
risks within the group. At present, only the GBP LIBOR, which
is used as the reference value for GBP factoring, is affected
by this change. Moreover, owing to an alteration in the calcu-
lation method, EURIBOR, which the most important variable
refinancing indicator for the POLYTEC GROUP, will continue
to be possible for both existing and new contracts. The group
assumes that this reference interest rate will remain in place
for the foreseeable future.

As from 1 January 2022, the successor to the GBP Libor ref-
erence value will be the Sterling Overnight Index Average
(SONIA), which is a reference value that refers to loans in GBP
with a term of one day. The ICE Benchmark Administration
Limited (IBA) will publish the ICE Term SONIA Reference
Rates (ICE TSRR) on this basis. From a global perspective,
the ICE TSRRs are considered to be a suitable successor to
GBP LIBOR. These are forward-looking standardised interest
rates for longer maturities, which are determined from
current market prices.
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The IBOR reform has no effect upon hedging measures in
the derivatives area. The group’s Treasury department anal-
yses current developments on an ongoing basis and initiates
any necessary measures for the transition to the new refer-
ence interest rates.

Cyber crime. The POLYTEC GROUP is also subject to an in-
crease in cyber crime attacks, but to date these have been
warded off successfully. Nonetheless, the growing profes-
sionalism in this regard has come to represent a serious risk
area in operative business. The POLYTEC GROUP’s internal
controls are being continually tightened and employee sen-
sibility with regard to this topic is addressed at regular inter-
vals and subjected to constant evaluation.

Climate risks. Climate change and other environmental
pressures pose an increasing global threat in a diversity of
areas. Companies are therefore faced with the challenge of
improving their energy and resource efficiency, as well as
limiting their consumption. Accordingly, the promotion of
these goals is also becoming increasingly important in the
automotive supply industry.

The European Commission has responded to this situation
with the “European Green Deal”, which incorporates a series
of measures in the areas of financial market regulation,
energy supply, transport, trade, industry, agriculture and
forestry. The aim is to achieve the goal of a drastic reduction
in CO, emissions within the European Union.

The “European Green Deal” is also leading to a fall in de-
mand for internal combustion engines. The share of POLYTEC
GROUP products in sales of combustion engines is thus set to
decline significantly from a current level of around 20% to a
medium-term planning value of approximately 5% in. The
POLYTEC GROUP has been able to counteract this downturn
with new substitute products and considers itself well posi-
tioned for the future. Moreover, in the group’s medium-term
planning, risk discounts in the order of 10%, 15% and 20%
have been made for the financial years beginning in 2024
based on the respective sales plans of group customers.

Companies are faced with the difficult task of both raising
their energy and resource efficiency and limiting their ener-
gy consumption. For example, the POLYTEC GROUP has for
the first time employed green financing, which has been
used to fund a state-of-the-art machinery and plastics recy-
cling plant at its Ebensee location. This project demonstrates
clearly that ecological and economic requirements can be
ideally combined.
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The additional costs resulting from both investments in
climate-friendly technologies and energy price increases
constitute an economic risk for the POLYTEC GROUP. The
group deals with these risks as described under Item b. Pro-
curement market risk.

In the 2021 financial year, the POLYTEC GROUP analysed the
potential risks resulting from resource scarcity and climate
change. No risks were identified that exert a significant influ-
ence upon the POLYTEC GROUP business model.

Ukraine crisis. Owing to the escalating hostilities in Ukraine
since the end of February 2022 and the extensive economic
sanctions imposed upon Russia, the availability of raw mate-
rials, semi-finished and finished products within Europe and
in other regions has already been greatly reduced. Further-
more, this problem has been accompanied by sharp price
increases for materials, oil, gas and electricity. It can there-
fore be assumed with a high degree of probability that the
automotive industry will continue to experience production
interruptions and irregular call-offs.

Representatives of the automotive suppliers interests warn
that a wave of insolvencies, especially amongst small and
medium-sized automotive suppliers, could result from per-
sistently low and irregular call-offs in tandem with the grow-
ing financing burdens emanating from massive price rises.

For an indefinite period, the risks attached to the develop-
ments in the war in Ukraine will clearly constitute the great-
est uncertainty for almost all sectors, including the auto-
motive industry.

Other risks. The Board of Directors is unaware of any other
material risks and obligations exist that have not been
appropriately mentioned in these consolidated financial
statements or the notes.

3. RELATED PARTIES AND COMPANIES

As at the 31 December 2021 balance sheet date, on the basis
of the shares issued, the shareholder structure was as
follows:

Huemer Group: 29.04% (16.00% Huemer Holding GmbH and
13.04% Huemer Invest GmbH)

Treasury shares: 1.50%

Remaining free float: 69.46%
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Apart from the members of the Board of Directors and the
Supervisory Board, related parties pursuant to IAS 24 pri-
marily include the Huemer Group. During the 2021 financial
year corresponding business activities involved IMC Verwal-
tungsgesellschaft mbH, Huemer Invest GmbH, HI Solar
GmbH and Globe-Air AG, all of which are based in Hoérsching,
as well as the RSAG Immobilienbeteiligungen GmbH & Co KG,
Vienna. The conditions of business transactions conform to
standard market and industry practice.

in EUR k Huemer Group
31.12.2021 31.12.2020
Receivables 0 50
Liabilities 0 24
Rental income 109 127
Other income 123 45
Other expenses 230 341

The consulting services provided to the POLYTEC Holding AG
by IMC Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH, Horsching, were ter-
minated with effect from 30 June 2021. The rental income
derives from the leasing of offices in Horsching.

During the 2021 financial year, as part of a joint venture with
the German Stinshoff Holding GmbH, RSAG Immobilien-
beteiligungen GmbH & Co KG, which is company with close
ties to Fred Duswald, the Deputy Chairman of the Super-
visory Board, acquired a plant site located in Marchtrenk
that belonged previously to the Industrial business unit,
which was sold to a group of investors at the beginning of
December 2020. Owing to this sale, as at 31 December 2021,
a prior POLYTEC Holding AG IC financing of the buyers
totalling EUR 1,000 k was outstanding. In addition, as at
31 December 2021, a loan receivable of EUR 351 k and
another receivable in the amount of EUR 73 k existed
against PUR Immobilien GmbH & Co KG, an affiliate of RSAG
Immobilienbeteiligungen GmbH & Co KG.

On 15 October 2021, POLYTEC Car Styling Hérsching GmbH
concluded a leasing agreement for a photovoltaic system
with HI Solar GmbH, Hérsching. In the 2021 financial year, the
resultant leasing expense amounted to EUR 16 k (reported
above under “Other expenses”).

As in the previous year, there are no allowances for or unre-
coverable debts in connection with transactions with related
parties, nor were any expenses for doubtful or uncollectible
receivables recognised in 2021 or the previous year. Guaran-
tees were neither granted nor received.
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4. KEY MANAGEMENT

Total remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors
in the 2021 financial year amounted to EUR 1,989 k (2020:
EUR 1,561 k) and as in the previous year was entirely attrib-
utable to short-term benefits. The variable component to-
talled EUR 430 k (2020: EUR 215 k) and as was the case in the
preceding year, during the 2021 financial year no payments
were made after the termination of the working relationship.

As yet unpaid variable salary components affecting the 2021
business year are reported in the “Other current liabilities™.

There are no stock option plans or similar share-based
remuneration pursuant to IFRS 2. Total expenses for the
emoluments to Supervisory Board members in the 2021
financial year amounted to EUR 124 k (2020: EUR 120 k).
There are no loans or advance payments relating to current
or former members of company bodies. No former members
of the governing bodies of the company receive any kind of
salary from the group or one of its affiliated companies.

5. POLYTEC HOLDING AG GOVERNING BODIES

During the year under review and at the time of the prepara-
tion of the consolidated financial statements, the members of

the Board of Directors were as follows:

Markus Huemer, Wallern
(Chairman of the Board of Directors)

Peter Bernscher, Linz

Heiko Gabbert, Scharnstein

Peter Haidenek, Velden a. W. (until 31 March 2022)

During the year under review and at the time of the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements, the members of the

Supervisory Board were as follows:

Friedrich Huemer, Wallern (Chairman)
(since 13 July 2021)

Fred Duswald, Thalheim (Deputy Chairman)

Manfred Helmut Trauth, Knittelsheim, Germany

Viktoria Kickinger, Vienna

Reinhard Schwendtbauer, Leonding
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Company

POLYTEC Anlagenfinanzierung GmbH

POLYTEC CAR STYLING Horsching
GmbH

POLYTEC Car Styling UK Ltd.
POLYTEC FOHA Corp.

Polytec Foha Inc.

POLYTEC Car Styling Schoten N.V.

POLYTEC CAR STYLING Weierbach
GmbH

Polytec Netherlands Holding B.V.
Polytec Composites NL B.V.

Polytec Plastics NL B.V.

Polytec Hungary Kft.

Polytec Komlo Kft.

POLYTEC Germany GmbH

PT Composites GmbH

Polytec Holding Deutschland GmbH

Polytec Deutschland Verwaltungs
GmbH

Polytec Plastics Germany GmbH &
Co KG?

Polytec Plastics Idstein GmbH &
Co KG?

POLYTEC Plastics Ebensee GmbH

Polytec Interior Zaragoza S.L. iL.

POLYTEC AUTO PARTS Tianjin Co,, Ltd

PT Beteiligungs GmbH

POLYTEC Composites Beteiligungs
GmbH

POLYTEC Composites Verwaltungs
GmbH

POLYTEC Composites Germany GmbH

& Co KG?

POLYTEC Compounds GmbH &
Co. KG?

POLYTEC Compounds Verwaltungs
GmbH

POLYTEC Composites Slovakia s.ro.

Company
address

Horsching

Horsching

Bromyard
Markham
Warren
Schoten

Idar-
Oberstein

Roosendaal
Roosendaal
Putte
Komld
Komld
Lohne
Gochsheim
Lohne

Lohne

Lohne

Idstein

Ebensee
Zaragoza
Tianjin
Horsching
Gochsheim
Gochsheim
Gochsheim
Gochsheim

Gochsheim

Sladkovicovo

PT Plastik Urunleri Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. Aksaray

Polytec Composites Bohemia s.ro.
POLYTEC Composites Weiden GmbH
POLYTEC Engineering GmbH

POLYTEC Industrielackierung Weiden
GmbH

Chodovd
Pland

Weiden

Lohne
Waldnaab

Coun-
try

AUT
AUT

GBR
CAN
USA
BEL
GER

NED
NED
NED
HUN
HUN
GER
GER
GER
GER

GER

GER

AUT
ESP

CHN
AUT
GER

GER

GER

GER

GER

SVK
TUR
CZE

GER

GER
GER

Shareholder
POLYTEC Holding AG
POLYTEC Holding AG

POLYTEC Holding AG
POLYTEC Holding AG
POLYTEC Holding AG
POLYTEC Holding AG
POLYTEC Holding AG

POLYTEC Holding AG

Polytec Netherlands Holding B.V.
Polytec Netherlands Holding B.V.
POLYTEC Holding AG

POLYTEC Hungary Kft.

POLYTEC Holding AG

POLYTEC Germany GmbH
POLYTEC Germany GmbH

Polytec Holding Deutschland GmbH

Polytec Holding Deutschland GmbH

Polytec Holding Deutschland GmbH

POLYTEC Holding AG

POLYTEC Holding AG
POLYTEC Holding AG
POLYTEC Holding AG
PT Composites GmbH

PT Beteiligungs GmbH

POLYTEC Composites Beteiligungs
GmbH

POLYTEC Composites Beteiligungs
GmbH

POLYTEC Composites Beteiligungs
GmbH

PT Beteiligungs GmbH
PT Beteiligungs GmbH
PT Beteiligungs GmbH

POLYTEC Composites Beteiligungs
GmbH

POLYTEC Holding AG

POLYTEC Composites Beteiligungs
GmbH
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2021
Direct Type
and of
indirect  con-
holding solida-
% tion"
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KO
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KO
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KO
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KO
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV

2020
Direct Type
and of
indirect  con-
holding solida-
% tion™
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KO
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KO
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KO
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KO
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
100.0 KV
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2021 2020
Direct Type Direct Type
and of and of
indirect con- indirect con-
Company Coun- holding solida- holding solida-
Company address try Shareholder % tion"V % tion"
POLYTEC COMPOSITES South Africa  East RSA  PT Beteiligungs GmbH 100.0 KV 100.0 KV
(Pty) Ltd. London
POLYTEC Immobilien Holding GmbH  Hérsching AUT  POLYTEC Holding AG 100.0 KV 100.0 KV
PT Immobilien GmbH Horsching AUT  POLYTEC Immobilien Holding 100.0 KV 100.0 KV
GmbH
POLYTEC Immobilien GmbH Horsching  AUT  PT Immobilien GmbH 94.5 KV 945 KV
POLYTEC Composites Immobilien Kraichtal GER  POLYTEC Immobilien Holding 94.5 KV 94.5 KV
GmbH GmbH
PPI Immobilien GmbH Ebensee AUT  POLYTEC Immobilien Holding GmbH 95.0 KV 95.0 KV
POLYTEC Immobilien Deutschland Lohne GER  POLYTEC Immobilien Holding GmbH 94.5 KV 94.5 KV
GmbH
POLYTEC Real Estate Gayrimenkul Aksaray TUR  POLYTEC Immobilien Holding GmbH 100.0 KV 100.0 KV
Limited Sirteki
POLYTEC Estates Slovakia s.ro. Sladkovicovo SVK  POLYTEC Immobilien Holding GmbH 100.0 KV 100.0 KV
POLYTEC Estates Belgium N.V. Schoten BEL  POLYTEC Immobilien Holding GmbH 100.0 KV 100.0 KV
SPELAG s.ro. Chodovd CZE  POLYTEC Immobilien Holding GmbH 100.0 KO 100.0 KO
Pland&
POLYTEC ESTATES Bohemia k.s. Chodovd CZE  POLYTEC Immobilien Holding GmbH 100.0 KV 100.0 KV
Pland
POLYTEC ESTATES UK Ltd. Bromyard GBR  POLYTEC Holding AG 100.0 KV 100.0 KV
PUR Immobilien GmbH & Co KG Marchtrenk AUT  POLYTEC Immobilien Holding GmbH - 100.0 KV
PUR Immobilien GmbH Marchtrenk AUT  POLYTEC Immobilien Holding GmbH - 100.0 KV

YKV = fully consolidated companies
KO = companies excluded due to lack of materiality

2 Pursuant to §264 b of the German Commercial Code, the companies are released from an obligation to prepare, audit and publish annual financial
statements and a management report in accordance with the current regulations applicable to corporations.

Hoérsching, 31 March 2022

The Board of Directors of POLYTEC Holding AG

Markus Huemer
Chairman of the Board of Directors - CEO

Peter Bernscher
Member of the Board of Directors - CCO

Heiko Gabbert
Member of the Board of Directors - COO

Peter Haidenek
Member of the Board of Directors - CFO
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DECLARATION OF

DECLARATION OF ALL LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES

ALL LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES

PURSUANT TO § 124 (1) 3 OF THE 2018
AUSTRIAN STOCK EXCHANGE ACT

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge, the consoli-
dated financial statements prepared in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards, give a true and fair view of
the assets, financial and earnings position of the group, that
the group management report gives a true and fair view of
the business performance, result and position of the group,
with the consequence that a true and fair view of the assets,
financial position and earnings of the group is created, and
moreover that the management report provides a descrip-
tion of the principal risks and uncertainties that the group
faces.

Hoérsching, 31 March 2022

The Board of Directors of POLYTEC Holding AG

Markus Huemer

Chairman of the Board of Directors - CEO
Responsibilities: M&A, investment management,
corporate strategy, corporate communications,
purchasing, IT, legal affairs, human resources

Peter Bernscher
Member of the Board of Directors - CSO
Responsibilities: Sales, engineering, marketing

Heiko Gabbert

Member of the Board of Directors - COO
Responsibilities: Operations, innovation,
industrial engineering

Peter Haidenek

Member of the Board of Directors - CFO
Responsibilities: Finance, controlling,
accounting, investor relations, internal audit
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We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge, the financial
statements of the parent company prepared in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards, give a true and
fair view of its assets, financial and earnings position, that
the management report gives a true and fair view of the
company’s business performance, result and position, with
the consequence that a true and fair view of the assets,
financial position and earnings of the company is created,
and moreover that the management report provides a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that the
company faces.
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AUDIT CERTIFICATE

I REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

AUDIT OPINION
We have examined the consolidated financial statements of

POLYTEC Holding AG,
Hoérsching,

and its subsidiaries (the group), which consist of the consoli-
dated balance sheet, the consolidated income statement
and consolidated statement of comprehensive income as at
31 December 2021, the consolidated cash flow statement
and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
financial year ended on this reporting date, and the notes to
the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements comply
with the mandatory regulations and give a true and fair view
of the consolidated assets and financial position of the group
as at 31 December 2021, as well as its earnings position and
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on this reporting
date in accordance with the International Financial Report-
ing Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU, and the addition-
al requirements pursuant to § 245a UGB (Austrian Commer-
cial Code).

BASIS FOR THE AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the EU Regula-
tion No. 537/2014 (subsequently referred to as the EU regu-
lation) and with Austrian auditing standards. These stan-
dards require the audit to be conducted in accordance with
the International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our responsi-
bilities pursuant to these rules and standards are described
in the “Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the con-
solidated financial statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the audited entity as prescribed by Austrian
commercial law and professional regulations, and have ful-
filled our other professional responsibilities in line with these
relevant ethical requirements. We believe that the audit evi-
dence we obtained up to the date of our opinion is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
this date.

AUDIT CERTIFICATE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those facts that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance for our audit of the con-
solidated financial statements for the financial year. These
matters were considered within the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a sepa-
rate opinion on these matters.

CHANGE IN THE LEVEL OF THE CASH-GENERATING UNIT
See notes, items D. 9, E. 8.

Risk for the financial statements

As at 31 December 2021, POLYTEC Holding AG changed the
level at which the cash-generating unit is defined. Previously,
the Car Styling, Composites and Plastics units were defined
as the smallest identifiable groups of assets that could gen-
erate largely independent cash inflows from other assets
(cash-generating units). However, owing to the fundamental
and lasting organisational realignment resulting from the
cross-technology orientation, the three cash-generating
units were merged to form only one.

For the financial statements, there is a risk that the cash-gen-
erating unit is not defined as the smallest identifiable group
of assets which can generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets, and consequently a
risk exists that intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment are overvalued.

Our auditing approach
We adjudged the change in the level of the cash-generating
unit as follows:

e In order to assess the appropriateness of the change in
the level of the cash-generating unit, we obtained an
understanding of how the management manages the
operations of the entity. We also evaluated how man-
agement makes decisions about the continuation or
disposal of assets and the discontinuation of opera-
tions. We performed these procedures in consultation
with our specialist International Accounting Depart-
ment.
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e In addition, we determined whether the management
performed the required impairment tests for the previ-
ous cash-generating units at the time of the change to
the level of the cash-generating units.

e Furthermore, we completed an examination in order to
ascertain if the required disclosures in the notes con-
tained all the necessary explanations and are ade-
quately described.

IMPAIRMENT OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
See notes, items D. 9,D. 18,E. 8,E. 9

Risk for the financial statements

In the 2021 financial year, POLYTC Holding AG identified indi-
cations of impairment of intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment. Due to the change in the level of the
cash-generating unit as at 31 December 2021, in an initial
step the impairment test was carried out as on this reporting
date at the previous level and in a second step, according to
the new structure.

The recoverable amounts determined (impairment test of
the cash-generating unit concerned) showed sufficient
coverage of the carrying amounts. For the impairment test,
the valuation is carried out on the basis of discounted net
cash inflows, which are dependent upon future earnings
expectations, using discount rates derived from market data.

These valuations are subject to significant estimation uncer-
tainties, particularly with regard to long-term planning
assumptions and market insecurities. For the financial state-
ments, there is a risk of an overvaluation of intangible assets
and property, plant and equipment.

Our auditing approach
We adjudged the recoverability of intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment as follows:

e In order to assess the appropriateness of the planning,
we obtained an understanding of the planning process
and compared the assumptions used with the historical
development. We juxtaposed the earnings expectations
and investments on which the valuation was based with
the budget prepared by the Board of Directors and
approved by the Supervisory Board, including the medi-
um-term planning. In addition, we discussed the as-
sumptions with management and obtained an under-
standing of how historical experience influences mana-
gerial planning.
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e We assessed the internal controls for identifying and
adjudging indications of impairment or impairment
reversals and evaluated their design and implementa-
tion.

e Furthermore, we assessed the appropriateness of the
determined discount rates and the calculation model of
the impairment test. We critically assessed whether the
long-term development of the profitability level in the
pension phase appeared consistent and plausible in
comparison with the results achieved in the past, the
development in the medium-term planning and a busi-
ness segment-specific peer group. We performed these
audit procedures with the assistance of our valuation
specialists.

e In addition, we assessed whether the required disclo-
sures in the notes contained all the necessary explana-
tions and whether the significant estimation uncertain-
ties are described appropriately.

OTHER INFORMATION

The company management is responsible for other infor-
mation. This includes of all the information contained in the
annual report and the annual financial statements, with the
exception of the consolidated financial statements, the
group management report, and the auditors’ report thereon.
It is probable that we will be provided with the annual report
and the annual financial report after the date of of the audit
certificate.

Our opinion regarding the consolidated financial statements
does not extend to such other information for which we offer
no type of guarantee.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, it is our responsibility to read this other informa-
tion as soon as it is available and to assess whether, in view
of the knowledge gained during our audit, it contains any
material inconsistencies with regard to the consolidated
financial statements, or any apparent material misstate-
ment.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE MANAGEMENT AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The management is responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements and that in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
adopted by the EU, and the additional requirements pursu-
ant to Section 245a UGB (Austrian Commercial Code), they
provide a true and fair view of the group’s asset, financial
and earnings position. In addition, the management is also
responsible for such internal controls, as it deems necessary
in order to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

When drawing up the consolidated financial statements,
management is also responsible for assessing the group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, and, where appropri-
ate, to disclose matters that are relevant to the group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, and to apply the going
concern assumption in its financial reporting, except under
circumstances in which the management intends to liquidate
the group, cease operations, or has no realistic alternative to
such measures.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the
group’s financial reporting process.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE AUDITOR FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain sufficient assurance as to if the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free of
material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an audit report that includes our opinion. Sufficient
assurance means a high degree of assurance, but provides
no guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
the EU regulation and Austrian auditing standards, which
require the audit to be performed in accordance with ISA, will
always detect a material misstatement should it exist. Mis-
statements may result from fraud or error and are consid-
ered material if they could, individually or in total, reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial state-
ments.

AUDIT CERTIFICATE

As part of an audit in accordance with the EU regulation and
the Austrian auditing standards, which require the audit to be
performed in accordance with ISA, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain a critical, professional approach
throughout the audit.

In addition:

* We identify and adjudge the risks of material misstate-
ment of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, plan and perform procedures to
address such risks and obtain sufficient and appropri-
ate audit evidence to serve as a basis for our audit opin-
ion. The risk that material misstatements due to fraud
remain undetected is higher than that of material
misstatements due to error, since fraud may include
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions and misleading
representation, or the overriding of internal controls.

We obtain an understanding of the internal control sys-
tem of relevance to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control system.

We evaluate the appropriateness of the accounting
policies employed and the reasonableness of both the
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

We prepare conclusions on the appropriateness of
management’s use of the going concern assumption
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists in relation to events or condi-
tions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s abil-
ity to continue as a going concern. Should we conclude
that there is a material uncertainty about the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern, we are obliged to
draw attention to the respective note in the consolidat-
ed financial statements in our audit report or, should
such disclosures be inappropriate, to modify our audit
opinion. We base our conclusions on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our audit report. However,
future events or conditions may result in the group de-
parting from the going concern assumption.
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e We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements, includ-
ing the notes, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves the fairest possible
presentation.

We obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regard-
ing the financial information of the entities and business
activities within the group in order to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are re-
sponsible for the direction, supervision and perfor-
mance of the group audit. We bear sole responsibility
for our audit opinion.

We confer with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of our
audit, as well as important findings that include any sig-
nificant deficiencies in the internal control system, which
we identify in the course of our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a declaration
that we have complied with the relevant professional
requirements in respect of our independence and report
on any relationships and other events that may reason-
ably be thought to affect our independence and, where
applicable, the related safeguards.

From the matters discussed with the audit committee,
we determine those that were of greatest significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
financial year and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless
laws or regulations preclude public disclosure about
such matters or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicat-
ed in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so could reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.
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OTHER STATUTORY AND LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

REPORT ON THE GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT

In view of Austrian company law provisions, the group man-
agement report is to be audited as to whether it is consistent
with the consolidated financial statements and if it has been
prepared in accordance with legal requirements.

As far as the non-financial declaration in the group manage-
ment report is concerned, we are responsible for ensuring it
has been prepared, its reading and an assessment as to
whether it materially contradicts the consolidated financial
statement, or appears to contain other material misstate-
ment.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the group
management report in accordance with the Austrian com-
pany law provisions.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the professional
standards for the auditing of group management reports.

Opinion

In our opinion, the group management report has been
prepared in accordance with the valid legal requirements,
contains appropriate disclosures pursuant to § 243a UGB
(Austrian Commercial Code) and is consistent with the
consolidated financial statements.

Statement

In view of the knowledge gained in the course of the audit of
the consolidated financial statements and the understand-
ing of the group and its environment thus obtained, we did
not determine any material misstatements in the group
management report.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH
ARTICLE 10 EU REGULATION

We were selected as the group auditors at the Ordinary
Annual General Meeting on 13 July 2021 and on 2 August 2021
were commissioned by the Supervisory Board with the audit
of the entity for the financial year ending on 31 December
2021.

We have served without interruption as the company
auditors since the consolidated financial statements as at
31 December 2017.

We declare that our opinion expressed in the “Report on the
Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report is
consistent with our additional report to the audit committee
in accordance with Article 11 of the EU regulation.

We declare that we have not provided any prohibited
non-audit services (Article 5 Paragraph 1 of the EU regula-
tion) and that we have ensured our independence of the
members of the group throughout the course of the audit.

RESPONSIBLE AUDITOR
The auditor responsible for the audit contract is Dr. Elisabeth
Rebhan-Briewasser.

Linz, 31 March 2022

KPMG Austria GmbH
Wirtschaftsprifungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft

Qualified electronic signature
Dr. Elisabeth Rebhan-Briewasser
Auditor

This document bears a qualified electronic signature and is only valid in
the version. The publication or dissemination of the consolidated financial
statements with our auditors’ report may only take place in our approved
version. This auditors’ report relates solely to the German language ver-
sion of the complete consolidated financial statements including the man-
agement report. For other versions, the regulations contained in §281
Para 2 of the Austrian Commercial Code are to be observed. (This is a
translation of the original German version for information purposes with-
out liability; the German version takes precedence.)
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GLOSSARY

Company and technology

ABS Acrylonitrile butadiene styrene

CEO Chief Executive Officer: Chairman of the Board of Directors, responsible for M&A, investment
management, corporate strategy, corporate communications, purchasing, IT, legal affairs,
human resources

CCO Chief Commercial Officer: Responsible for sales, engineering, marketing

COO Chief Operations Officer: Responsible for operations, innovation, industrial engineering

CFO Chief Financial Officer: Responsible for finance, controlling, accounting, investor relations,

internal audit

Injection moulding

Process in which material is liquefied (plastified) and injected into a mould under pressure

Just-in-sequence

Punctual delivery of workpieces to the assembly line in the correct sequence

Just-in-time

Punctual delivery of workpieces to the assembly line

OEM

Original equipment manufacturer

People mover

Automatic means of (public) transport for short distances

Powertrain Drivetrain

PUR Polyurethane: Plastic or synthetic resin

USP Unique Selling Proposition: Unique feature that clearly distinguishes an offer from competitive offers
Financials

ACEA European Automobile Manufacturers’ Association

AktG Austrian Stock Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz)

CAD Canadian dollar

CapEx Capital Expenditures

Capital employed

Capital employed includes non-current assets required for operations (intangible assets, goodwill,
tangible assets, participations in companies accounted for at equity and other non-current
receivables) less other non-current provisions and net current assets (non-interest bearing current
assets less non-interest bearing current liabilities).

CGU Cash-generating unit

CNY Chinese renminbi yuan
CzK Czech koruna

DBO Defined Benefit Obligation

Deferred taxes

Balance sheet item to show fiscal valuation differences. In the case of temporary discrepancies
between the group balance sheet and the fiscal balance sheet, both deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are recognised in order to report the tax expenses in accordance with the
group financial result.

EBIT Earnings before interest and taxes

EBITDA Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation
EBIT margin EBIT/sales revenues

ECB European Central Bank

EFTA European Free Trade Association

Equity ratio Equity/balance sheet total

ESG Environmental Social Governance
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Financials

EUR k Euro thousands

EURIBOR Euro Interbank Offered Rate: Reference interest rate

FTE Full-time equivalents of employees

FV Fair value

FVPL At fair value through profit or loss

FX Foreign exchange

GBP Great British pound

Gearing Net financial debts/equity

HGB German Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch)

HUF Hungarian forint

IAS International Accounting Standards

IASB International Accounting Standards Board: An independent, private-sector body which develops and
adopts the IFRS

IATF International Automotive Task Force: Certification according to IATF 16949 demonstrates that a
company in the automotive industry meets the quality management requirements

IBOR Interbank Offered Rates: Reference interest rate

IFRIC International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee: The committee responsible for the
development of interpretations of the IAS and IFRS

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards, including International Accounting Standards

ISIN ATOOOOAOOXX9 International Securities Identification Number of POLYTEC share

kWp Kilowatt Peak: The peak power which a photovoltaic system can generate in kilowatts

LEI Legal Entity Identifier: The unique international code number of POLYTEC Holding AG:
5299000VSOBJNXZACWS81

LIBOR London Interbank Offered Rate: Reference interest rate

M&A Mergers and Acquisitions

MAR Market Abuse Regulation

Market capitalisation

Value of enterprise: Number of issued shares multiplied with certain share price

Net current assets

Non-interest bearing current assets less non-interest bearing current liabilities

Net financial liabilities/
assets

Interest-bearing current and non-current liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and
interest-bearing receivables

OpEx Operational Expenditures

R&D Research & Development

RL-KG Austrian Accounting Control Act (Rechnungslegungs-Kontrollgesetz)
ROCE Return on capital employed (EBIT/average capital employed)
SONIA Sterling Overnight Index Average: Reference interest rate

TRY Turkish lira

UGB Austrian Commercial Code (Unternehmensgesetzbuch)

usD United States dollar

WACC Weighted Average Cost of Capital of the POLYTEC GROUP

ZAR South African rand
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I NOTE

This annual report has been prepared
with the greatest possible care and
every effort has been made to ensure
the accuracy of the data that it con-
tains. Nevertheless, rounding, typo-
graphical and printing errors cannot
be excluded. The use of automatic cal-
culating devices can result in rounding-
related differences during the addition
of rounded amounts and percentages.
This annual report is published in
German and English. The English trans-
lation serves information purposes
and the original German text is the sole
legally binding version. The annual fi-
nancial report and the annual report for

2021 were published on 22 April 2022
and are available for download on
the POLYTEC Holding AG website at
www.polytec-group.com, section Inves-
tor Relations, Publications.

Editorial closing date: 12 April 2022
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